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At a glance

Severn Trent Water aims to be the best water and waste water company n the UK, by providing the
highest standards and lowest possible charges, through great people

Our long term objectives

Over the last year, we have consulted widely with our stakeholders and customers about investment
prionties for the medium and longer term Based on that consultation, we have set out ten long term
objectives

We will provide water that 1s good to drink

We will ensure water is always there when you need it
We will safely take your waste water away

We will provide excellent customer service

We will have the lowest possible charges

We will help you if you struggle

We will protect cur water environment

We will protect the wider environment

We will make a positive difference in the community
10 We will finance our business sustainably

OO ~NOObhWN-=

We measure our performance against 16 key performance indicators (KPls) Details of our KPIs can
be found on page 104

Where we operate
Our region stretches across the heart of the UK We serve more than 4 2 million households
and businesses, from the Bristol Channel to the Humber, and from mid-Wales to the East Midlands

Key Facts
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*Before interest, tax and exceptional items

Delivered through four focus areas

We implement our strategy and plans by focusing on four key areas our customers, people, process
and finance We aim to deliver the highest standards and lowest charges to our customers, through a
highly skilled and committed workforce

Customers

Our household customers have the lowest average combined water and sewerage bills in England
and Wales Delivering customer satisfaction aiso requires us to provide water that's good to dnink,
always avallable and to take away waste water, to reflect customers’ pnorties in our plans, to
communicate clearly, and to keep our promises and put things nght if they go wrong

People

Our people are the cornerstone of our success We strive to recruit, develop and retain the best
people, provide them with great workplaces and maintain a strong culture of safety, personal
respansibility and continuous improvement

Severn Trent Water Annual Report and Accounts 2013 1




Process

Our drnive to work safer, better and faster 1s the foundation of our approach to continuous
improvement Making sure we have the nght processes and systems is fundamental to achieving
operational excellence

Finance

The higher our standards, the more effectively and efficiently we work This helps us to keep our costs
low and generate progressive, sustainable returns which earn the trust of and reward for our investors
We look to finance the company In an efficient, sustainable way and maintain an investment grade
credit rating
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Chief Executive’s review

The world 1s changing for water companies and Severn Trent Water leads the way in shaping that
change We are continually improving our performance, improving our customer service and
positioning the group for sustainable growth

Delivering the future of water

The UK water industry faces significant challenges We need to deal with the real impact of climate
change and the increasing frequency of water shortages and flooding We need to access and use
water and environmental resources more efficiently We need to keep mproving customer service and
customer choice whilst keeping our bills affordable We need to mamntain the significant investments
that are required to ensure that our networks can deliver the essential water and waste water services
And, whilst keeping bills as low as we can for our customers, we need to generate sustainable returns
for our nvestors

Proposals from the Government and Ofwat will help us respond to these challenges The changes are
evolutionary, but together they add up to the largest shift in the industry’s rules since privatisation

The Water Bill will allow more competition for non-household customers, greater “upstream”
competition — water trading in particular — and increase the scope for mergers and acquisitions, which
should eventually lead to a more efficient industry structure

Ofwat 1s considering important changes to the way it regulates, as it prepares for the next price review
in 2014 (PR14) Notable differences from the current regime include separate controls for the
wholesale part of the business — the networks and treatment plants — and the retail element, which
manages customer relationships This will increase focus on delivening the best customer service at
lowest cost, and create more choice for non-household customers

There will be greater emphasis on achieving objectives that companies set in consultation with their
customers, helping them to innovate and benefit all stakeholders Companies will be able t¢ choose
larger incentives for outperformance, at the nsk of bigger penalties if they fall short Also our
customers and other stakeholders now have a much bigger role in influencing our next five year plan
Further details of our stakeholder engagement and the role of the Water Farum are provided on page
12

Severn Trent Water welcomes these changes We've been active in the debate about the future of
water and we're pleased that the proposals are aligned with much of our own thinging That's allowed

us to prepare for these changes, through a strategy that creates opportunities to leverage our core
skills

Focused on continucus improvement

Our customers benefited for the fourth year running from the lowest average bills for water and
sewerage combined in England and Wales Whilst prices increased they were below the industry
average We continued to supply customers with excellent drinking water and, despite the drought at
the start of the year, we once again avoided a hasepipe ban

Severn Trent Water continued to improve Iits operational and environmental performance These
improvements, along with effective procurement and capital delivery, help us to be more efficient In
this Regulatory Period we are re-investing £150 milhon of our efficiency gains into our plant and
networks to improve services for our customers further

This investment contnbuted to our ongoing performance improvement We cut leakage to a 20 year
low and beat our target Underlying levels of interruptions to supply also fell, with our Ofwat measure
improving, although a handful of burst mains which affected numerous customers meant that we didn’t
meet our internal target We further reduced pollution incidents, while comphance at our waste water
treatment works reached a new record high, contnibuting to improving river water quality
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During the year, we delivered the outputs that Ofwat required from us We were pleased to see that
recent investment in the flood defences at Mythe Water Treatment Works proved theirr worth as the
plant withstood exceptionally heavy rains and flooding We also reduced the number of homes at nisk
of sewer flooding and there are now fewer properties on the ‘at-nsk’ register than ever before

In previous years, we've dentified customer service as an area where we would like to improve Our
customer experience programme I1s changing the way we think about how we interact with our
customers, which has led to pleasing improvements in our customer service scores, as measured by
Ofwat’s Service Incentive Mechanmism (SIM)

This contnbuted to a customer satisfaction level of 4 36 out of 5 In our SIM quantative survey, as well
as falling levels of complaints However, we know we have much further to go and we are not
complacent This includes resolving more of our customers’ 1ssues to their satisfaction on first point of
contact and continuing to invest In our people, to help them form a better appreciation of our
customers’ needs and concerns when they have to contact us

Qur combined SIM score for 2012/13 was 78 1 against 69 8 in 2011/12 This represents a 12% year
on year improvement We created a sustainable improvement of 10% this year and we're the most
improved water and wasle water company

People and culture
The performance we've delivered this year shows the quality of our people and ther desire to do an
excellent job | would like to thank them for everything they have done

We have talented and committed people throughout the company Together, they have a wide breadth
of expertise, from hydrologists and engineers to customer service experts and technologists They
apply these skills to our common mission, delivening high standards and the lowest possible charges
for customers, with great people

We've created a culture of continuous improvement that sustains our desire to do hetter This culture
Is key While we have a sophisticated set of tools which combine behawvioral science and lean
management to help us improve the way we work, it's the culture, values and attitude of our people
that make those tools effective and dnve us forward, every day

Looking forward

Severn Trent Water 1s well positioned as the industry enters the next phase of development We have
accepted Ofwat's proposed licence modifications and are aligned to the agenda for regulatory reform
and the Water Bill, both of which we continue to help shape

Our preparations for the next Price Review 2014 (PR14) are progressing well Customers are at the
heart of our planning, through the widespread engagement we've already conducted and through our
customer challenge panel, the Water Forum Further details are provided on page 12

Regulatory and political support for trading 1s growing and companies are likely to be incentivised to
trade in the future Severn Trent Water has an ongoing dialogue with neighbouring companies and we
are well placed to benefit from more effective use of the country’s water resources

Locking further ahead, companies will have to ensure they're sustainably financed The utiliies sector
will need to find bilions of pounds for Investment and it 1sn't certain that all of this can be done through
debt Equity 1s therefore likely to play a part, which means companies will have to be able to earn an
appropnate return to attract that funding We published important discussion papers on this subject
during the year
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In summary, Severn Trent Water 1s operating from a great base We have the night people doing the
nght things and delivenng the nght outcomes Our customers need clean water and waste water
services, and we have the nght focus to prosper

Tony Wray, Chief Executive

Our Strategy

A strategy to deliver the future of water

Our “Focus Water” strategy, with the goal of creating sustainable growth through our focus on water
and waste water services drives everything that we do As one of the UK's biggest water and waste
water companies, Severn Trent Water 1s well positioned to succeed

Our focus on sustainable growth means that we balance the needs of our customers, our people and
the environment Achieving this balance leads directly to good financial performance It allows us to
deliver organic growth and rehable returns over the longer term, without excessive risk

We recognise that economic cenditions are tough and that our customers have seen therr incomes
squeezed While prnices will inevitably rnse because of the ongoing need for investment, we're
determined to keep them as low as we can and deliver value for money This means further improving
our service, protecting customers from the effects of drought and floods, and prowiding them with
water that’'s good to drnink and always available

Protecting the environment s also key because we and our customers depend on it to provide the
resources we need

Our people are central to our future We work hard to make sure they have the skills and tools they
need, and are motivated to continually improve our service to customers

With significant changes in the sector approaching, we keep our strategy under constant review This
includes having open and constructive relationships with all our key stakeholders, so we understand
what they expect from us We then formally review our strategy each year so it remains relevant,
balanced and sufficiently forward lcoking

i (et i
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Our Strategy
Sustainable

Strategy aim

Highlights 2013

Key measures

Delivering value for our
customers.

* We met our leakage target,
reduced interruptions to
supply and protected more
homes from sewer flooding

+ We maintained the lowest
average bills for water and
sewerage combined in
England and Wales

o Qur Focus on Water Strategy
provides value for money for
our customers

441 MIid 419

Leakage Customer

megalitres per written

day complaints per

(2012 464) 1,000
properties
(2012 4 88B)

Responsible leadership,
protecting the
environment, thinking
long term and setting
high standards in
everything we do.

+ We achieved our best ever
health and safety
performance

s We made further progress
with our catchment
management programme

» We continued to influence
the regulatory debate about
the future of our industry,
through a series of
publications

« 02 Lost tme wncidents per
100,000 hrs worked
(2012 0 3)

¢« We support the direction of the
Water Bill, which 1s expected to
become law later this year

Sustainable financing,
ensuring we have a
strong and flexible
balance sheet

e We remained prudently
financed and maintained our
strong credit rating

£758 6m 61 3%

Cash Net Debt/RCV
generated Gearing

from (2012 63 1%)
operations

(2012 £639 4)

Growth

Strategy aim

Highlights 2013

Key measures

Growth through
investment in our
network and services.

» We continued to make good
progress with our
preparations for PR14

+ We invested £212 milhon In
our infrastructure

» We increased our regulatory
capital value by £275 million

39%
RCV growth
(2012 4 0%)
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Our business model

Water 1s essential to Iife and to the communities in which we live and work Severn Trent Water 1s
intninsically linked to the Iife cycle of water The customer 1s at the heart of our continuous dnive to
improve our operations and services across collection, delivery and cleaning of water

Severn Trent Water 1s a regulated business We work within five year planning cycles, known as Asset
Management Plans (AMP), with customer pnces set by our economic regulator, Ofwat, to allow us to
fund our investment programme and cover an efficient level of operating costs We are also subject to
regulation by two qualty regulators — the Drninking Water Inspectorate (DW1) and the Environment
Agency (EA)

We also work with the Government (including the Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affarrs
and the Welsh Assembly Government) and other agencies such as the Consumer Council for Water,
Natural England and Natural resources Wales, to make sure we meet the highest customer service
and environmental standards, while offering our customers the lowest prices

Our prices and asset base are adjusted by retal prnice index (RPl} inflation each year. In certain
circumstances we can ask for prices to be reviewed within the five year period due to costs associated
with ‘notified items’ or ‘relevant changes of circumstance’ Customer bad debt and the adoption of
private drains and sewers are included in these categones for the current five year period

The company earns a return on its asset base We can generate additional returns if we outperform
Ofwat's assumptions by becoming more efficient in the delivery of our capital programme, managing
our operational costs more effectively, and by financing our business at a lower cost

Our operating performance s assessed and benchmarked against the sector by Ofwat At the next
price review there 1s scope to earn additional income, or incur penalties, based on our perfermance

Legal & Regulatory risks

We operate within a complex legal and regulatory environment as a water and sewerage service
provider in England and Wales As a result we face a number of nsks including those associated with
possible non-comphiance with our legal and regulatory framework, failure to obtain support from Ofwat
for our business plan for 2015-2020 and failure to meet the terms of our regulatory contract as set out
In our agreed business plan for 2010-2015 We also face rnsks associated with possible future
changes in legislation which may result in our business plans becoming unsustainable A list of the
Principal Risks facing Severn Trent Water can be found on page 33
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Business review
Overview

Industry and market

The water industry in England and Wales invests more than £3 billlon each year and employs over
27,000 people There are currently 10 water and sewerage companies in England and Wales, as well
as a number of smaller water only companies

The pnivatisation of the industry in 1989 has led to improvements in customer service, better drinking
water and higher environmental standards However, our sector stll faces signifficant long term
challenges These include further improvements to operational and environmental performance,
enhancing security of supply, dealing with extremes of dry and wet weather, managing the country's
water resources more efficiently and in the long term, sustainably financing the industry’s
infrastructure investment Our proposals for changes in our industry are informing the debate about
meeting these challenges

Key strengths
We have a number of key strengths and we work hard to maintain them In particular
» Our average bills for water and sewerage combined are the lowest in England and Wales
* We continually work to improve our performance and deliver cost and operational efficiencies
against KPls, which are aligned to our long term strategy
* We are committed to long term sustainability, keeping in balance the needs of our customers,
the environment and our investors
e Our high standards and efficiencies keep our costs low, which in turn helps keep charges low
for customers
e We have a clear strategy and business plan and a strong management team

How we measure success

Severn Trent Water has published its own set of KPIs since 2007 In 2011/12 Ofwat adopted a set of
KPIs that it required all water companies to publish Severn Trent Water has adapted its own KPIs to
meet this new requirement These KPls provide Ofwat with an overall picture of performance agamst
the company’s commitments made as part of the AMP5 price review Our KPls are set out on page
104

For the 2015-2020 period we have defined 10 long term objectives to meet customer and stakeholder
needs In April 2013 we published a consultaticn on our proposals for bills and services for the period
("Your water Your choices’) This included consultation on a proposed new set of measures by which
our customers, stakeholders, and regulators can see how much progress we are making towards
achieving these objectives Following the consultation, we will be finalising the measures and including
them in our busmess plan which we will submit to Ofwat in December 2013

Further details of our performance are provided in our Annual Regulatory Performance Report, which
Is availlable at www stwater ¢co uk

Key Facts

IS o
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Progress against our long term objectives

Long term objective

Progress In the year

1 We will provide water that
1$ good to dnnk

QOur drinking water quality remained high and we
maintained our compliance with the DWI's standards
We invested in improvements to our water treatment
plants and developed Drinking Water Safety Plans

2 We will ensure water 1s
always there when you need
it

We continued to manage our water resources
effectively and once again avoided any hosepipe
bans

We reduced leakage to its lowest ever level and cut
the underlying number of interruptions to supply

3 We will safely take your
waste water away

We Increased waste water treatments works
compliance and reduced properties on the ‘at-nsk’ of
sewer flooding register to its lowest level

We made substantial investment to improve sewer
systems

4 We will provide excellent
customer service

We introduced a range of iniiatives to improve
customer service, resulting in increased customer
satisfaction scores

We achieved the best improvement in customer
experience across cur peer group as measured by
Ofwat

5 We will have the lowest
possible charges

Our average combined water and sewerage bills
remained the lowest in England and Wales
Qur bills will remain the lowest in 2013/14

6 We will help you if you
struggle

We helped 44,821 customers who struggled to pay
bills via a range of flexible tariffs and schemes

We donated £3 ¢ million to the Severn Trent Trust
Fund

7 We will protect our water
environment

We reduced pollution incidents year on year
We continued to take an industry leading role in
shaping the regulatory regime and new legislation

8 We will protect the wider
environment

Around one quarter of our electricity needs were
provided by our Severn Trent Plc group renewable
energy operations

We reduced our net greenhouse gas emissions
duning the year and are on target to beat our
business plan target by 2015

9 We will make a positive
difference in the community

We invested heawvily into our network and treatment
plants, making a substantial contnbution to jobs and
the local community

Woe talked to schools, other organisations and social
housing about water efficiency, contributing to one of
the lowest per capita consumptions in the country

10 We will finance our
business sustainably

We continued to ensure we were properly financed,
with a strong balance sheet and investment grade
credit rating

We continued to help shape the debate on future
industry financing and published our paper,
‘Changing Course through Sustainable Financing'
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Business review
Performance

At Severn Trent Water we focus on four key areas — customers, people, process and finance (as we
explain on page 1) Having the nght people with the right skills, using the right processes, enables us
to offer high quality, low cost services to our customers This in turn dnves our financial results

The following pages descnbe what we achieved in each of these areas during the year

Customers
For the fourth year runnming, our average combined water and sewerage bills were the lowest in
England and Wales, at £326 Our bills will remain the lowest in 2013/14

We aim to supply water that's good to dnink and always availlable Despite the drought at the start of
this year, we managed our water resources carefully and once again avoided any hosepipe bans or
other limits on our customers’ water use The subsequent heavy rain helped restore our reservoirs and
aquifers and our water resources are now In good shape

Our water quality remained high and we maintained our complance with the Drinking Water
Inspectorate’s standards at 99 98% We delivered water at the right pressure and further improved our
overall performance on supply interruptions However our company KPl (performance on
interruptions) was not as good as last year owing to a single burst trunk main which affected
numerous customers We remain focused on cutting supply interruptions, with further investment
planning to improve our performance

We continue to invest to ensure we provide the best water quality and resiience To achieve this we
have numerous projects, including renewing nearly 300 km of water mains, mproving resilience in
South Gloucestershire, and refurbishing 5 km of the Derwent Valley aqueduct We're also renewing
sections of high nisk trunk mains, to minimise the nsk of interruptions to supply Other significant
projects include new treatment plants in Shropshire, Warwickshire, Nottinghamshire and Derbyshire,
to address catchment quality 1ssues

We made further progress with our catchment management programme dunng the year This involves
encouraging farmers and other large land users to reduce ther impact on water resources The
drought and wet weather made 1t a difficult year for farmers, but therr interest n catchment
management remains high During the year, we completed around 150 water qualty inveshgations
ansing from Drinking Water Safety Plans, and hit our target for catchment management investigations
under the EA's National Environment Programme, receiving a positive response from the EA

One 1ssue associated with wet weather i1s an increasing problem with metaldehyde, a pesticide used
to control slugs and snails We took additional action from late summer, but could not prevent a
number of higher pesticide results in the autumn We continue to take a leading role nationally in
seeking an industry solution to metaldehyde

The intense rain In 2012 led to an increase in the number of internal severe flooding repeat incidents
Last year was the second wettest year on record and parts of our region suffered severe flooding
Some of our customers experienced flooding during the year and we did everything we could to help
the local authonties and the EA respond, for example by providing large pumps to protect roads and
properties adjacent to nvers

We are investing significant amounts In our waste water services to improve the service to our
customers Further details of the investment can be found on page 16 and 17
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Customer experience

We work hard to provide our customers with a service experience that 1s consistently reassuring and
reliable, whilst doing whatever we can to personalise the way in which we deal with each indwidual
customer query

We aspire to be an orgamisation that 1s designed around its customers, not just its network We know
that customer expectations continue to be influenced by the vast number of brands, products and
technologies that they interact with It's therefore essential for us to look at our processes, policies and
general ways of working through a customer lens and not an operational lens We started this cultural
journey two years ago when we launched our Customer Expenence Programme By engaging every
Severn Trent Water colleague n the practical pursuii of the best possible expenence for our
customers, we've succeeded in achieving a very real improvement across our key indicators of
customer satisfaction

We're proud of what we've achieved - but we won't stop until our customers consider us to be one of
the very best customer service providers in the industry We are able to benchmark our performance
against that of our peer group via Ofwat’s iIndependent SIM

Ofwat's SIM measures our customers’ expenence of dealing with us The SIM score has two
elements quantitative, based on the number of customers that have to contact us, and qualitative,
which assesses our service quahty when they do

We have consistently received good quanttative scores, hut in the past, our qualty of service has
fallen short In the last 12 months, we have focused on improving the areas our customers say are
important to them, namely

* resolving their issues or quenes at first point of contact,

*» being available to them when they want us, and

+ keeping them informed every step of the way

To do this, we created a cross company group o look at how we could drive improvement m our
processes, response times and simplfy the language we use to communicate with our customers
This helped us improve both elements of our SIM score In 2012/13

We're pleased to have demonstrated the best improvement in SIM performance across our peer
group, but we're not yet where we want to be from a benchmark perspective And so the journey
towards the best possible customer expenence continues with a relentless focus on putting our
customers at the heart of how we operate

Our ‘voice of the customer’ tool gives us direct feedback from customers at the end of a call or when
we've fimshed doing something for them We get around 12,000 responses a month This valuable
feedback helps us improve cur processes and how we deal with customers when they feel they need
us most

We have maintained first point of contact resolution at around 90% Our Customer Advisors are
consistently recewving satisfaction scores in the 90s and, as a result, our complaints volume
continues to dechne at a very healthy rate We also further reduced wntten complaints, which were
down 14%

One of the important points of contact with customers 1s when they receive a bill from us We've
continued to improve our bill design to make them easier to understand, and to pass on useful
information, such as the different ways customers can get in touch with us We will also be introducing
e-billing for customers who prefer it
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Managing debt

Some customers choose not to pay and some customers genuinely struggle to pay In line with our
commitment to fair and affordable biils for all, we operate robust processes to influence the behaviours
of those who choose not to pay, which in turn controls our healthy debt levels

For our customers who truly struggle to pay, we offer a range of flexible tanffs and schemes These
can involve matching the customer's payments, capping bills for people with low incomes who have to
use large amounts of water for medical or family reasons, or allowing customers to make payments
directly from their benefits In 2012/13, we helped a total of 44,821 customers this way

The Severn Trent Trust Fund offers an alternative avenue of support and has helped many customers
over the years to fund their water bills Durning the year we donated £3 0 million to the Severn Trent
Trust Fund to enable the chanty to support our customers who have difficulty in paying theirr water
bills However, a customer who struggles with their water bill 1s likely to struggle with other household
bills We wish to provide these customers with more meaningful support and have therefore entered
into a partnership with the Citizens Advice Bureau which has the skills to help customers address therr
financial 1ssues at a deeper level We hope in this way to help our most financially vuinerable
customers to manage and avoid household debts more effectively in the future

Engaging with our customers
One of the significant differences between the process for PR14 and the previous price review I1s the
increased role for customers and other stakeholders in helping us to formulate and challenge our plan

The Water Forum 1s our customer challenge group for PR14 It inciludes representatives from
customers, our environmental regulators and local authonties, and has an independent chair, Dame
Yve Buckland, who 1s also national chair of the Consumer Council for Water

The role of the Water Forum 15 to ensure that customer and other stakeholders’ views are understood
and represented by Severn Trent Water when we submit our plans to Ofwat in December 2013

Ofwat will assess our plan against four cntena outcomes, costs, nsk and reward, and affordability and
financeability Our plan will then be categorised as ‘enhanced’, ‘standard’ or ‘resubmission’ This will
determine the level of scrutiny and challenge of our plan and the financial incentives available The
Water Forum reports on the qualty of our customer engagement, and how well our business plan
reflects customer views and prionties It will form a key input to Ofwat’s assessment against the
outcomes criteria

We also have a broader engagement programme and have run workshops on topics including
managing climate change, water and waste water issues, and customer service A wide range of
stakeholders attended these sessions We also carried out a major customer survey, to understand
their wilingness to pay for improvements we could deliver as part of our plan

In April 2013, we 1ssued another consultation paper, "Your water Your choices’, which set out our
thinking on what might happen to customer bills, investment and investor returns over the next five
years This will give us further clanty on our stakeholders’ views

Sevemn Trent Water Annual Report and Accounts 2013 12




ORIV ESHACED

People

We aim to have people with the nght skills and approach to work, personal development and customer
focus To drive the behaviours we think are important, we have a Code of Conduct ('Doing the right
thing — The Severn Trent way’) that applies across the group and explains our approach to I1ssues
ranging from health and safety, to ethics and honesty, and to delivering excellent customer service

A safe and healthy workforce
Protecting the health and safety of our customers, people and contractors 1s our number one priority
We were delighted to reduce lost time incidents once again, making 2012/13 our safest year yet

Our MindSafety™ training programme contributed to this improvement It teaches our people about
different states of awareness, so they understand how they should work and can take responsibility for
theirr own safety We have coaches around the business to reinforce the MindSafety™ approach and
will be running refresher programmes Other initiatives to enhance safety dunng the year included
improving our rnisk assessments and making sure that our people understand ther roles and
responsibilities

One area that has concerned us 1s an increase In road traffic accidents Whilst our staff didn't cause
these accidents, we are looking at ways to reduce the nisk by minimising the miles they travel and
providing traning on safe and effective driving and preventative actions

As well as raising safety standards, we aim to be more proactive with our people’s health and well-
being In 2012/13, we appointed a new occupational health provider We're legally required to monitor
the health of some employees, for example if they’re exposed to noise or vibration, or work in confined
spaces QOur new occupational health provider has a mobile unit, which visits sites to monitor our
people This saves time and prowvides a friendlier environment than an off-site facility

We're also working with a new provider to help employees with musculoskeletal problems Our partner
looks at job design and how we can make changes to help people back to work We are increasingly
looking to take action before problems arise
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Engaging our people

Our annual employee survey once again showed that our people are positive about working for us
Our overall Engagement Index rose to 79%, ahead of our target of 75% and the industry benchmark of
74% The survey response rate also increased, a sign that our people know that it's important to us
that

they give their feedback and that we listen

The most improved area was In people believing we are committed to customer service Our score for
commitment to customers rose from 71% to 83%

A number of factors were behind the mproved survey results Developing cur managers has made
them more wiling to engage with their teams and we have also put effort into making sure managers
understand our business goals and can communicate them to therr teams Our continuous
improvement programme also contnbuted, by giving our people the tools and techniques to solve
problems they face at work

Previous employee surveys showed that our people wanted to see more of our executive team and to
find out how they were leading the business This year, we ran a rolling programme where Executive
Committee members went out to meet people across the business More than 1,000 of our people
attended these meetings, enabling them to ask any question they wanted The feedback has been
positive and our executives have also learned where we need to communicate better

Developing our people

Every year, we Invest significant amounts in people development, (£3 9 million in 2012/13) This year,
we piloted a ‘Leading for Performance’ programme in our waste water business The aim 1s to have
leaders who can inspire and engage our people and lead them through change — an area where we
know we can do better The programme helps our leaders to understand themselves and to leam how
to coach others as well as build high performing teams After positive results, we’re now rolling out the
programme across all of our operational leadership

We have many other leadership programmes, which together form our ‘Line Manager Journey' They
make sure that as people move into management, they have the skills to lead effectively For
example, to drnive our performance culture, we want all our employees to have a performance
discussion with their manager We run programmes for managers at all levels, so they understand the
process and can have those sometimes difficult conversations

We’'ll soon be launching an initiative for nearly 1,400 people in Customer Relations, called the Great
People Programme Managers will learn about creating a customer orientated culture and coaching
people in customer service skills Frontine advisors will become better at giving customers a positive
and memorable expenence when they get in touch with us

As part of our talent review process, we piloted new development centres this year These took people
identified as promotable and assessed therr strengths and development needs Each person came out
with an in-depth development plan

In a changing world, we need leaders with a breadth of experience who can nse to different
challenges We therefore reintroduced our graduate programme, taking on nine high calibre people In
2013/14, we plan to Increase this to 20 and we're also considering introducing a technical graduate
scheme, with progression to chartered engineering

Finding people with the nght skills 1s a challenge across the industry, so we further expanded our
apprenticeship scheme We now have 82 apprentices at different stages of development, including 22
we recruted in September 2012 for technical training, including two for a new environmental
conservation apprenticeship Almost all our apprentices move on to permanent jobs with us
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Through a pilot programme called 'Employee Ownership of Skills’, the Government has asked
employers to set out how we might use public funds alongside our own Investment to improve the
skills we currently have in the industry, identify the skills we’ll need in the future and where we should
invest

We're also continuing to support projects in the Midlands to encourage young people to study science,
technology, engineering and maths (STEM} subjects Iin order to be able to take up engineering and
technical careers in the future

Attracting a diverse workforce

Our goal 1s to attract a diverse range of talent, wrth a balance of gender and ethnicity that reflects the
market we operate In At the moment, our workforce 1s slightly more diverse than the sector average,
with more female employees and people from black, Asian and ethnic minonty groups

We have a diversity working group, with members from across the business Its current focus I1s on
gender diversity in leadership roles We are also starting to get more insight into ethnic diversity

it's important that we attract the broadest range of candidates when we recruit, so we track our
attraction rates across different genders and ethnic backgrounds We have also refreshed our careers
website, to make it appeal to a wider range of people

Helping our people tc manage their finances
In Apnl 2013, we auto enrolled more than 1,000 people into our pension scheme We believe that
pensions are important and we're committed to providing a competitive scheme

As many of our people told us that they didn’'t understand pensions, we set up a financial education
programme which 1s now part of our ongoing training So far, 1,200 employees have attended a
session to learn about pensions, debt, mortgages, savings and other financial matters

Process

To deliver great service to our customers, we look to continuously improve our processes and
technology

Qur approach to continuous improvement is called Safer Better Faster It helps our people to find
ways to do things better, so we can improve our service We continue to invest, including building and
training our team of expert practittoners, who work with colleagues to help them use Safer Better
Faster techniques on a daily basis

During the year, we exploited our previous investment in SAP and desktop technologies, and used our
Safer Better Faster approach to improve our business processes For example, we introduced better
processes In solving bursts an private properties, fixing stop tap problems and giving our customers a
better service We implemented software to allow work crews to access maps and asset data on therr
laptops, so they can pinpoint leaks and blockages more efficiently We're also increasing the use of
remote monitoring to improve performance across our networks This helps us to detect leaks and
prevent supply interruptions, allowing us to respond to problems before customers are affected

One of our biggest challenges was improving how we engage with our customers at our call centres
During the year we made a strategic investment in telephony systems, to improve our customers’
expenience when they call us The new system links to our other back office systems, giving our
people better information to resolve customer issues dunng the call

By investing 1n our people and technology, we've reduced to almost zero the number of customers

who receive an engaged tone, More customers can speak to someone quickly, so fewer are hanging
up because we've kept them waiting
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Using text messages, our new website and other technologies has helped us keep our customers
informed about what we're doing Live update maps on our website tell customers what's going on in
their area and we're also making more use of Twitter We want customers to contact us in the way
that’s best for them, and around one quarter of all contacts are now through our website, where
customers can pay bills and update their details

We increased the resiience of our technology, by investing in new data centres We also made
significant investment in business modelling software, which will allow us to model different planning
scenanos for the next five years reflecting the input we have received from our PR14 customer focus
group

We are improving the efficiency of our procurement We're working with our supply chain to get better
value for money, including using our SAP system to give us more visibility of what we buy and where

Duning the year, we and our One Supply Chain framework partners continued to deliver greater
efficlencies in our capital programme Our strategic relationships waith our One Supply Chain partners
help us to become more Innovative as we work together, for example by consolidating buying
throughout the supply chain

We want to work with responsible suppliers, so we've developed guidelines and standards that we
expect supplers to meet to ensure they are aligned to our philosophy of doing the nght thing and our
underlying policies These cover key areas of corporate responsibility, such as our suppliers’ approach
to health and safety, anti bribery and anti corruption, and environmental performance

A number of new technologies went live in our waste water operations this year In order to dnve
efficlency we are expleiting technology innovation at places such as Ashbourne where we have
installed the UK’s first full scale HYBACS plant HYBACS s a treatment technology that allows us to
process higher volumes, while using less energy In Birmingham we have installed the UK's first
Annamox plant to treat high concentrations of ammonia Anaerobic ammomum oxidation intensifies
the sewage treatment process, so we can use fewer and smaller assets In Nottngham we are
installing one of the UK's first struvite recovery plants to reclaim phosphate so that we can sell it on
We have also been working with a partner which provides arr compressors that can reduce electricity
consumption by around 20% These play an important part In sewage treatment More broadly, we
work extensively with other organisations to develop new processes and have more than 30 academic
or industnal research partners

Environment
Delivering our environmental obiigations has a real impact on our customers and the communities In
which they hive and work

Managing waste water

We achieved good improvements in our environmental performance in waste water The number of
reported pollution incidents fell from 458 in the previous year to 376, a reduction of 18% While we are
one of the industry leaders at preventing the most senous pollution incidents, we can still improve n
other less serious categories We are investing in training, working on faster response times and using
technology to try to predict where pollutions might occur

Woe have around 1,000 sewage treatment works Of these, only 0 85% failed to reach their comphance
mits (2012 2 54%), our best ever performance This was down to our improvement group, which has
analysed the root causes of fallure and enabled us to systematically ehminate those problems, as well
as the ongoing benefits of our investment programme and more remote monitoring of our sewage
treatment process This year has seen us reach half way on our £200 milhon major projects
programme of work Upgrades are under way to our key sewage treatment works serving Nottingham,
Leicester, Worksop, Stoke, Coventry, Burton-upon-Trent and Telford Elsewhere this year we have
invested almost £204 million to maintain service to our customers and undertaken key environmental

Severn Trent Water Annual Report and Accounts 2013 16




improvements to our rivers Looking forward, we're investing significantly in improving nver water
quality and have carried out a pilot study with the EA on how to achieve zero pollutions and breaches
of consent

Sewer systems are primarily designed to handle waste water, and on occasions can be overwhelmed
duning heavy rain events

Sewer flooding I1s one of the worst service failures that can happen to a customer During the year we
have made improvements to protect 158 properties from internal flooding and 70 external areas
including substantial investment to improve sewer systems in Leamington Spa and Gloucester The
number of homes on the risk of sewer flooding register 1s now at 1ts lowest ever level We expect to be
ahead of our target at the end of this regulatory period

We have a proactive programme to clean and repair our sewer network which helps to prevent
blockages, pollutions, flooding and collapses of our sewerage system

This was our first full year of managing the 37,000 km of private drains and sewers that transferred to
us on 1 October 2011 While this increased the number of blockages we had to deal with, overall we
saw a lower level of reactive work than we expected We are carrying out more inspections and
condition/ CCTV surveys of these assets, so we can learn more about them and have better informed
plans for the future

Deploying water resources wisely

Severn Trent Water 1s the only company to target a significant reduction in l[eakage dunng AMP5 We
made further good progress, cutting leakage to its lowest ever level at 441 Ml/d This compares with
464 Ml/d last year and our internal target of 465 Ml/d Qur performance benefited from our ongoing
investment programme and the relatively mild weather

Managing water resources effectively also means helping our customers to reduce the amount they
use We have a sizeable cutreach programme with schools and other organisations, to teach people
about using less water We also distribute water efficient devices and have industry leading initiatives
with social housing All of these contribute to one of the lowest per capita consumptions in the country
The overall water saving this year as a result of these measures 1s 3 26 Ml/d, which has contributed to
the continued reduction in our per capita consumption Last year our customers used an average of
121 litres per person per day

Protecting biodiversity

Severn Trent Water has a role in protecting and enhancing biodiversity at our sites or sites affected by
our activites We manage 12 public access sites where we work alongside volunteers and In
partnership with organisations to ensure the long term biodiversity value of the sites, whilst engaging
with our customers Across our region we also own or partly manage 37 sites of special scientific
interest, where we work with our regulators, tenants and others to safeguard them
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Finance

We aim to finance the company in an efficient and sustainable way, which helps to keep customer bills
low by keeping our financing costs low Our funding comes from payment of customer bills, 1ssuing
debt on the capital markets and by shareholders retaining equity In the business We have an
investment grade credit rating, with a stable outlook We also look to the long term sustainability of our
financing and during the year we published some further thoughts in ‘Changing course through
sustainable financing’ part of our continuing Changing course series of thought papers on the future of
our Industry

More information about our financial performance and our debt i1ssuance during the year ¢an be found
in the Financial review on pages 22 to 24

Outlook

We remain focused on achieving sustainable growth, by concentrating on our customers, people,
process and finance We am to deliver the benefits of our investment programmes and to
continuously improve the way we work, to raise standards and dnve efficiency Giving our customers
an even better service 1s an important part of this

Our operating environment will change as the Government passes the Water Bill and Ofwat completes

its preparations for PR14 We remain at the forefront of the industry’s debate about its future and will
continue to help shape the legislation and regulation as it progresses
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Business review
Looking forward

Since we published the first of our Changing Course documents back in 2010, we have played a
leading role in shaping the future of the UK water industry We've continued this engagement in the
last 12 months, with a sernies of new publications We issued a paper on designing balanced incentives
that drive the nght behaviour by water companies KPMG wrote a report for us on financing water
infrastructure beyond 2015 Alongside National Grd, we produced a paper on encouraging equity
financing in the water and energy sectors

We're pleased that our efforts have been productive The changes from the UK Government, in the
form of the Water BIll, and from Ofwat in its recently published consultation on the framework for
PR14, are aligned with our own proposals Together, these promise the most significant changes to
water industry regulation since privatisation in 1989

The challenges for the industry

Water industry regulation needs to change because the sector has to deal with significant challenges
n the coming years

Affordabilty 1s another key theme for the next five years Households are facing declining real incomes
and welfare reform, intensifying the need to keep water bills as low as possible Pressure 1s also
coming from business customers, who want to better manage their costs and have greater choice of
water suppler

We need to respond to climate change and water scarcity Recent experience shows that the UK's
weather patterns are changing, with droughts followed by floods Water comparnues need to effectively
manage customer demand, make better use of existing water resources on a national rather than
regional basis, and increase the network’s resihience This would also create more capacity to move
water, making water trading between regions easier

The water industry must also be more sustainable This means rebalancing abstraction and taking
less water from areas where it's already affecting the environment It also requires the industry to
reduce its bias towards capital expenditure and promote cperational solutions, such as improving
catchment management rather than buillding new treatment works

The Water Bill

The Government I1s responding to these challenges through the Water Bill, which ministers hope to
enact in 2013/14 This builds on its 2011 Water White Paper, which set out a vision for “a resilient,
affordable and sustainable water supply network”

The BIll covers four main areas First, it increases the scope for non-household retail competition This
Is already possible to a mited extent but the Bill will make it easier for business customers to switch
supplier However, while retaill competition 1s positive because it encourages efficiency and promotes
choice, it won't transform the sector's economics

Secondly, the Bill also allows more upstream competition and in particular water trading This will
enable better use of national water resources, a significant improvement on the current situation
where companies have to look within their region for solutions to water shortages This will lead to
better resiience and lower costs for customers However, the nght economic model needs to be
developed to enable water trading to happen

Thirdly, 1t 1s designed to enhance the physical resilience of the industry by, for example, encouraging
farmers and other land owners to store water and to clarify the duties of Ofwat to promote resilience

Finally, the Bill will reform the mergers and acquisitons regime While major mergers will still be
unlikely, the changes create the potential for a more efficient industry structure, reducing costs which
can be shared with customers
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Overall, the Water Bill includes measures which are broadly in line with those we set out In Changing
course, and we'll continue to support it as it passes through Parliament

The PR14 framework
In January 2013, Ofwat published a consultaton on its framework and approach for PR14 The
proposed framework has four key elements

First, it introduces separate price controls for the retail and wholesale parts of the business This gives
companies a greater incentive to provide the best customer service at lowest cost, and will create
more choice for non-household customers The regulated capital value (RCV) will stay with wholesale,
which currently generates around 90% of Severn Trent Water's revenue This means that the vast
majority of our revenues will still be based on the RCV and will be adjusted for the movement in the
RPI each year

Ofwat 1s aiming to be less prescriptive about what companies deliver during the next regulatory cycle,
s0 It's asking them to set the high level outcomes they will am to achieve These outcomes will be
focused on benefits for customers and will give companies more leeway to innovate in the way they
delver therr plans

Companies will alsc face fewer but greater incentives, which will focus regulation where it’'s needed
most Companies can choose larger incentives for outperformance but would also face more
significant penalties for underperformance The new regime will also, in theory, address the industry’s
bias towards capital expenditure, as the model will move more to a total expenditure {(or totex) basis
Companies will be able to choose whether to recover this expenditure on a ‘pay as you go’ basis,
which will be beneficial for cash flow, or by adding it to their RCV and earning a return, which will be
better for their long term returns

Finally, the framework has a much greater emphasis on customer and stakeholder engagement
Customer challenge groups (such as our Water Forum, which I1s discussed on page 12) will influence
compantes as they develop thewr plans, which should lead to plans that are better informed
Companies will still own therr plans but they must show that they have listened to their challenge
group and explain their approach where their view differs The customer challenge group will also
report on the qualty of the company’s engagement and whether it supports its business plan This will
determine the depth of Ofwat's review of the plan

Ofwat's proposals are still at the consultation stage and there are impoertant details that need to be
finalised For example, it's important to get the level of detall nght when setting outcomes Outcomes
that are too detailled will lose the benefits of risk based regulation Conversely, if there’s not enough
detall it will be hard to define meaningful measures of success We also need to know more about key
elements such as the basis for the average retall cost calculations and how the totex baseline
expenditure will be set Overall, though, the draft PR14 framework contains no surpnses for us and
we're supportive of it ams

Severn Trent Water's April 2013 consultation, “Your water Your choices’ sets out outline proposals for
what the company could achieve dunng 2015-2020, with customer bills forecast to rise by no more
than nflation during the period There are a number of mportant areas where there 158 scope for
choice, however customers’ and stakeholders’ views will directly influence the final business plan to be
submitted to Ofwat in December 2013
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Business Review
Finance

The company has delivered a good financial performance against a backdrop of continuing
revenue and cost challenges Revenues were negatively impacted by lower consumption, with bad
weather in the early part of the year also dnving higher operational activihes and thus costs, to
meet the operating performance standards our customers and regulators expect So, to have the
costs that we directly control reman flat year on year was a good performance in the
cireumstances For those costs where we have less influence — power, quasi taxes and bad debis,
we saw Increases In the first two, while we maintained performance on bad debts at 2 1% of nsing
revenues We maintained our long term plans for investment in year three of this five year
regulatory plan and invested £19 millicn more than the previous year In infrastructure which is
expensed under the FRS$101 reduced disclosure framework

The company continued to look to its long term financing, successfully 1ssuing its first bond into the
nascent UK retall bond market and issuing a new 13 year bond into the sterling wholesale market
raising £500m at 3 625%, the lowest cost Severn Trent has i1ssued In its recent history This
suggests that the bond markets remain supportive of the company and its strategy and this will
remain important as we manage the refinancing of some £400 million of debt which 1s to become
due by the end of AMP5

Results

PBIT 1s profit before interest and tax, underlying PBIT 15 PBIT excluding exceptional items
Turnover in Severn Trent Water increased by 3 7% in 2013 to £1,511 0 million Sales prices were
increased by Inflation from 1 Apnl 2012 which gave rnise to an increase In turnover of £76 2
millon Consumption from metered customers was lower year on year reducing turnover by £19 4
milhon New growth and meter optants increased turnover by £1 1 million and there were other
decreases amounting to £4 6 million

Underlying PBIT increased by £1 8 million from the previous year to £498 2 millon Employment
costs Increased by 11 8% to £228 0 millon as headcount increased by 5 7% and the average
employee cost iIncreased by 5 7% Hired and contracted costs decreased by £9 2 mullion to £130 2
miliecn Raw matenals and consumables at £43 3 millon were 7 5% lower than the same period In
the prior year Bad debts were 5 3% higher at £31 8 million, representing 2 1% of turnover (2012
2 1%) An increase of 17 0% in power costs (excluding quasi taxes) to £60 6 millon Quas taxes,
which comprise rates, service charges and the carbon reduction commitment (CRC), increased by
£2 5 milion to £110 1 millon Other costs increased by £9 5 million to £86 6 millon driven by
losses made on disposal of fixed assets Labour and related overheads capitaised were £10 2
milion higher than in 2011/12, mainly due to the higher level of capital expenditure in 2012/13
Infrastructure renewals expenditure increased by £18 8 million and depreciation increased by £9 3
million

There was an exceptional credit to PBIT of £13 3 million (2012 credit of £11 6 million), arising from
a profit realised on disposal of property assets in the year

Net interest payable fell by £10 2 mulion from the pnor year to £223 ¢ milhon Interest receivable
and similar income fell by £3 3 million Interest payable on bank loans, other loans and payable to
group companies decreased in total by £6 9 million Interest payable on finance leases fell by £1 3
million

The current tax charge before exceptional tax credits was £33 5 million including a credit ansing
from adjustments to prior year computations of £27 2 million These adjustments mainly arose from
industry wide agreement with HMRC regarding the timing of taxation of infrastructure income The
deferred tax credit before exceptional tax credits was £6 1 milion The exceptional tax credits
include
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Sustainable financing

In the longer term, the water industry will need more capital It has spent £100 billion since
privatisation but the challenges outined earlier will require further significant investment We believe
that investors will continue to fund this if they remain confident in the industry

In our view, It's unhkely that debt can provide all this funding High gearing transfers nsks to customers
and the failure of one company will affect all the others, by damaging their chances of raising further
debt The 2008/09 financial cnisis also showed that companies cannot guarantee access to debt
finance when they need it Our conclusion is that there’s a need for long term equity in a balanced
financing structure, which means that equity holders will have to be appropriately rewarded for
providing those funds

In the short term, we also need to look at the way the weighted average cost of capital (WACC) 1s
calculated for PR14 In current market conditions, the capital asset pnicing model, which i1s used to
calculate the WACC, could produce an unsustainable answer Other models should be used {0 cross
check and justify the cost of equity and debt We also believe that it's possible to differentiate the cost
of capital based on company rnisk We have made all these points In a series of publications over the
year and are engaged with stakeholders to discuss the future iImplications

Summary

In summary, we support the general direction of the Water Bill and the PR14 framework While the
changes they propose are evolutionary rather than revolutionary, they are still significant and will help
the industry to address its challenges We're pleased to have played an important part in shaping
these proposals and will continue to do so as they progress
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¢ a current tax credit of £40 5 milllon and a deferred tax charge of £38 8 million arising from
the adoption of FRS 101 (see below), and,

¢ a deferred tax credit of £38 3 million ansing from the reduction of the corporation tax rate to
23% with effect from 1 April 2013

Profit for the financial year was £250 7 million (2012 £198 2 milhon) The company measures its
return on capital using the ratio of post tax return on regulatory capital value, which 1s calculated as
current cost operating profit less current tax, over average regulatory capital value For the year
ended 31 March 2013 post tax return on capital was 6 7% (2012 § 7%) This 1s Ofwat's post-tax
return on capital key performance indicator

Capital structure

The company 1s funded using a mixture of equity and debt (including fixed rate, index-linked and
floating rate)

2013 2012
£m

Cash and cash equivalents 3286 03
Loans receivable from other group companies 1057 104 4
Loans payable to other group companies {3,845 0) (3,569 8)
Bank loans (717 7) (610 3)
Finance leases (5307) (561 7)
Cross currency swaps 361 67 1
Net debt {4,623 0) {4,570 0)

Net debt at 31 March 2013 was £4,623 0 millron (2012 £4,570 0 million) Of the net debt 72.6%
(2012 66 7%) was represented by fixed Iinterest borrowings and 63 9% (2012 62 7%) was
represented by amounts payable after five years Ofwat’s geanng KPI 1s net debt as calculated in
the regulatory accounts, as a percentage of year end regulatory capital value at 31 March 2013
was 61 3% (2012 63 1%)

Cash flows

Operating activities generated a net cash inflow of £704 4 million (2012 £571 6 million outflow)
Net interest paid was £184 3 milion (2012 £289 2 million) Net investing activities used £392 1
milion (2012 £514 9 million) which mamly included capital expenditure to meet the company’s
obhigations under the AMP5 capital programme Dividend outflows amounted to £72 0 million
(2012 £266 0 million)

Treasury management

The company's treasury affairs are managed centrally as part of the Severn Trent Plc group and in
accordance with its Treasury Procedures Manual and Policy Statement The treasury operation’s
primary role I1s to manage hquidity, funding, investment and the company’s financial risk, including
risk from volatihty in interest and, to a lesser extent, currency rates and counterparty credit risk Its
activities are subject to a set of controls commensurate with the magnitude of the borrowings and
investments under its management The Severn Trent Water Limited board (‘the board’)
determines matters of treasury policy and its approval I1s required for certain treasury transactions
The company uses financial denvatives solely for the purposes of managing risk associated with
financing 1ts normal business achvites The company does not hold or 1ssue derivative financial
instruments for financial trading purposes
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The company uses a number of currency swaps and interest rate swaps to redenominate external
borrowings into the currencies and interest rate coupon required for company purposes, and
energy swaps to fix future expected electricity costs The company’s policy for the management of
interest rate nisk 1s to have a balanced portfolio of debt with a mix of term and interest rate
structures that diversifies its rnisk and 1s appropriate to the long Iife of its asset base The details are
periodically reviewed to respond to changing market and regulatory condittons and with regard to
regulatory pronouncements Except for debt raised in foreign currency, which i1s fully hedged, the
company’s business does not involve significant exposure to foreign exchange transactions The
company continues to carefully monitor hiquidity At 31 March 2013 the company had £328 6 milion
in cash and cash equivalents and committed undrawn facilities amounting to £500 million, of which
£200m 1s held jointiy with Severn Trent Plc In Apnil 2012 the company borrowed £100m under a
bilateral bank faciity The faciity has a term of ten years and 1s fully drawn In January 2013 the
company borrowed £500 million from a subsidiary undertaking, Severn Trent Utilites Finance Plc,
at a rate of 3625% The loan has a 13 year term Cash 1s invested in deposits with highly rated
banks and hiquidity funds and the list of counterparties 1s regularly reviewed and reported to the
board The company's policy for the management of interest rate risk requires that no less than
45% of the company's borrowings should be at fixed interest rates, or hedged through the use of
interest rate swaps or forward rate agreements The company’s net interest charge, excluding net
finance costs from pensions, was covered 3 6 times (2012 3 5 times) by profit before interest, tax,
depreciation and exceptional items (this 1s used for Ofwat's interest cover key performance
indicator), and 2 3 times (2012 2 3 times) by underlying PBIT

The company's long term credit ratings are

Long term ratings

Moody's A3
Standard & Poor's BBB+

Adoption of FRS 101

The company has elected to adopt early the new accounting framework issued by the Financial
Reporting Council The company meets the defintion of a qualfying entity under FRS 100
(Financial Reporting Standard 100) Accordingly, in the year ended 31 March 2013, the company
has adopted the FRS 101 '‘Reduced Disclosure Framework’ and has ceased to apply all UK
Accounting Standards i1ssued pror to FRS 100 Therefore the recognition and measurement
requirements of EU-adopted IFRS have been applied As a result of these changes, the company’s
distnbutable reserves were reduced by £836 0 milion In order to restore these reserves the
company made a bonus issue of shares from the reserve of £378 0 milion that arose on transition
and then undertook a capital reduction of £1,278 0 milion which reduced share capital and
increased distnibutable reserves
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Directors’ report

The directors present their report, together with the audited financial statements of Severn Trent Water
Limited for the year ended 31 March 2013

Principal activities
The company 1s a wholly owned subsidiary of Severn Trent Plc

The principal activites of the company are the provision and the treatment of water and the removal of
waste water in the UK There have not been any significant changes to the company’s principal activities in
the year under review The directors are not aware, at the date of this report, of any likely major changes in
the company's activities in the next year

Business review

The company i1s required to set out in this report a fair review of the business of the company during the
financial year ended 31 March 2013, the position of the company at the end of the financial year and a
description of the principal nsks and uncertainties facing the company (known as a ‘business review’) The
information that fulfils the requirements of the business review can be found in the following sections of the
business review

Review of results pages 3 — 24

Strategy and growth pages 5 -6 and 19 — 21
Operational performance pages 10 — 18
Financial performance pages 22 — 24

KPIs page 104

Principal nsks and uncertainties are detailed on page 33

Dividends and reserves

The company's dividend policy 1s to declare dividends which are consistent with the company’s regulatory
obligations The amount declared 1s expected tc vary each year further to consideration of these
obligations The ordinary dividend declared by the company in 2013 amounted to £72 milion (2012 £266 0
million)

Directors

The directors of the company who served during the year and up to the date of this report are set out
below

Tony Ballance
Bernard Bulkin*
Richard Davey*
Andrew Duff*
Gordon Fryett*
Martin Kane*
Martin Lamb*
Michael McKeon
Baroness Noakes*
Andy Smith
Tony Wray

* non-executive director
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Directors’ interests

All of the directors at the year end are also directors of Severn Trent Plc In accordance with the UKLA
Listing Rule 9 8 6, their interests in the share capital of Severn Trent Plc are disclosed in the Annual Report
and Accounts of that company for the year ended 31 March 2013

None of the directors retain any notifiable interest in the shares of the company or any other subsidiaries as
at 31 March 2013

Directors’ remuneration and annual bonus scheme
Remuneration for executive directors compnises the following elements

base salary and benefits,

annual bonus scheme and share matching plan,
long term incentive plan, and

pension plan

As all directors are alsc directors of Severn Trent Plc, detalls of therr emoluments can be found in the
Annual Report and Accounts of Severn Trent Plc available on the Severn Trent Pic website

As outlined in the Severn Trent Plc Annual Report and Accounts, the non-executive Chairman, Andrew
Duff, and non-executive plc directors, do not participate in the company’s incentive arrangements, 1e
annual bonus or share schemes

Base salaries and benefits

Base salaries for directors are reviewed annually by the Severn Trent Plc Remuneration Committee (the
‘Remuneration Committee') and take effect from 1 July Salares are set in ine with reference to individual
performance, expenence, contribution, together with developments in the relevant employment market
(having regard to the market median for similar roles in publicly quoted compantes of a comparable size
and practice in other water companies) and intemal relativittes The Remuneration Committee gives due
consideration to the economic chmate, affordability and the broader employee salary review policy when
setting base salary levels

In addition to base salary, directors receive a benefits package which contractually includes car allowance,
membership of company pension scheme or cash allowance in heu, prnvate medical insurance, lfe
assurance and mcapacity benefits scheme Directors may also take advantage of the Severn Trent flexible
benefit scheme open to all employees

Annual Bonus Scheme

The directors’ Annual Bonus Scheme (‘ABS’) focuses on the achievement of specific strategic goals which
are intended to dnive the creation of operational efficiencies and improvements in business performance
The bonus scheme operates on a balanced scorecard of measures based on the company Key
Performance Indicators (KPIs), which include operational performance, leakage and customer service The
scheme attnbutes score points to each KPIl and the bonus outturn 15 determined by reference to the
aggregate number of points awarded across all the KPIs Bonus targets were set and measured for the
perniod 1 April 2012 to 31 March 2013 (detailed below)

Annual Bonus 2012/2013

In 2012/2013 each executive director had between 80% and 90% of ther maximum bonus opportunity
linked to the performance of Severn Trent Water (the CEO of Severn Trent Services had 10%) and a
proportion measured against personal objectives The Chief Executive, Finance Director and CEO of
Severn Trent Services were also measured against the performance of Severn Trent Services

The ABS Is designed to encourage improved performance, with targets established by the Severn Trent Pic
Remuneration Committee to align executive directors’ interests with shareholders The maximum annual
bonus opportunity for the executive directors 1s 120% of salary For the achievement of target performance,
60% of salary 1s awarded
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The bonus outturn in respect of Severn Trent Water performance was operated by reference to a balanced
scorecard of measures, based on the KPIs The Remuneration Committee believes that the use of the
Severn Trent Water KPls continues to be both an effective and challenging annual bonus metric and
meets the needs of the business The bonus entitiement was determined by reference to the aggregate
number of points awarded across all the KPIs The targets taken together are considered by the board to
have an impact on the longer term financial performance of the company and a number of them are
reported to Ofwat

The number of KPIs for the 2012/2013 financial year was reduced from 20 to 10 This change reflects the
revised suite of KPIs published by Ofwat aganst which they have indicated that they will assess water
companies, and It is therefore appropriate to measure the company’s performance consistently with those
externally published measures of success

The table below shows the points awarded by the Remuneratton Committee for bonus purposes under
each of the 10 KPIs in relation to the 2012/2013 ABS As a consequence the Severn Trent Water bonus
award was 77 7% of the maximum opportunity

2012113 | 2012/13 Points

Key Area KPIl | Measure target actual awarded
Employee 1 | Lost Time Incidents per 100,000 hours worked 031 021 130
2 | Employee motivation- Quest {engagement index) 75% 79% 130

Customer 4 | Service Incentive Mechanism- Qualitative 4 30 436 126
5 | Service Incentive Mechanism- Quantitative 203 166 7 130

7 | Serviceability —~ Waste Water 100 78 130

8 | Serviceabilty - Water 100 80 130

Financial 9 [ Capital Expenditure versus Final Determination 5491 5418 0
11 | Operating expenditure versus Final Determination 5725 567 2 130

Environment 12 | Pollution Incidents (cat 1,2 &3) 409 376 130
16 | Leakage ml/d- Post MLE 465 441 130

The bonus payments awarded are detalled below Please note that they incorporate amounts in respect of
personal targets and, in the case of the Chief Executive and Finance Director, Severn Trent Services’
performance

Director Value of bonus award £
Tony Ballance £195,704
Martin Kane £288,000
Michael McKeon £446,256
Andy Smith £253,744
Tony Wray £546,369

Half of the above bonus awards are deferred into shares to be held for three years following payment and
subject to continued employment If the executive 1s summanly dismissed without notice under his/her
employment contract then the deferred bonuses are forfeited In all other cases of cessation of employment
the deferred bonus 1s not lost and the shares automatically vest on the dealing day after the cessation of
employment The Remuneration Committee determines whether 1t 1s appropnate to release the shares in
‘good leaver’ cases A clawback provision continues to operate

Annual bonus payments to executive directors are not penstonable
Annual Bonus Targets for 2013/2014
The Remuneration Committee has reviewed the operation of the plan and concluded that it should operate

on a similar basis for 2013/14 and that the KPIs will remain the same as those shown in the table on the
previous page
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Share Matching Plan

Under the Share Matching Plan (‘SMP’) directors are eligible to receive matching share awards over those
shares which have been acquired under the deferred share component of the annual bonus scheme as
described above For each share deferred, half a matching share 1s awarded subject to satisfying the Total
Shareholder Return (‘TSR’) performance cntena Further details of the SMP can be found in the Severn
Trent Plc Annual Report and Accounts

Long Term Incentive Plan

Directors may also participate in the Severn Trent LTIP Under this plan conditional awards of performance
shares are made to directors up to an annual maximum imit and vest after three years subject to out
performance of the Return on Regulatory Capital Value (“RoRCV") set by Ofwat RoRCV replaced TSR In
2011 to focus attention towards the creation of long term value to algn with the interests of shareholders
and Ofwat Further details are contained in the Severn Trent Plc Annual Report and Accounts

Share Incentive Plan

A company-wide Share Incentive Plan (‘SIP’) operates which includes a performance condition based on
the award of points for the balanced scorecard KPls used for the Annual Bonus Scheme For the year
2012/13 awards of shares to the value of £583 will be made to all elgible employees

Shareholding Requirements

The company operates shareholding guidelines under which executive directors are expected to build and
maintain a mimimum holding of shares in the Severn Trent Plc The Chief Executive 1s expected to build
and maintain a holding of shares to the value of 1 5 x base salary and other executive directors 1 x base
salary Executive directors are expected to retain all of the net of tax number of shares they recewve through
the LTIP and other share based plans and good progress i1s being made to meet the guideline holdings
Full details of the shareholding requirements for directors can be found in the Annual Report and Accounts
of Severn Trent Plc

Directors’ and officers’ indemnities

The company maintains Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance in respect of legal action that might be
brought against its directors and officers In accordance with the company's Articles of Association, and to
the extent permitted by law, iIn November 2011 the company indemnified each of its directors and other
officers of the group agamst certain habiities that may be incurred as a result of their positions with the
group The company does not have In place any indemnities for the benefit of the auditor

Policy on the payment of creditors

The company either uses its own standard terms and conditions entitled ‘General Conditions of Contract
relating to the supply of Goods/Services or the Execution of Work' (copies are available from the
Purchasing Department, Severn Trent Water Limited, Severn Trent Centre, PO Box 5309, Coventry CV3
9FH) or nationally agreed terms and conditions of contract such as NEC Engineering and Construction
Contract Third Edition June 2005 (incorporating NEC Amendments dated June 2006) and NEC3
Professional Services Contract June 2005

Terms of payment are stated on each purchase order issued by the company Suppliers are able to
negotiate therr own payment terms which can differ from these, as part of the tender process Trade
creditors at the year end reflected 16 6 days purchases (2012 17 2 days)

Charitable and political donations

Donations to charntable organisations during the year amounted to £60,591 (2012 £57,023) Severn Trent
Water's policy 1s not to make any donations for political purposes in the UK, or to donate to EU poltical
parties or incur EU political expenditure Accordingly we have not made any political donations or incurred
any political expenditure in the financial year under review
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Research and development

Expenditure on research and development 1s set out in note 4 to the accounts on page 49 Details of the
research and development activity undertaken by the company during the year are set out in the operating
and financial review on pages 3 to 24

Employees
The average number of employees during the year was 5,458 (2012 5,162)

Severn Trent Water believes that a diverse and inclusive culture 1s a key factor in being a successful
business Apart from ensuring an individual has the ability to do the job we do not discnminate in any way
and make every effort to ensure that those with disabilities are able to be employed by us We endeavour
to retain employees in the workforce if they become disabled, we make all reasonable adjustments to their
role and, if necessary, look for redeployment opportunities to support them in seeking an alternative role
within Severn Trent Water We ensure that training, career development and promotion opportunities are
available for all our employees irrespective of their gender, race, age or disability

Regulation: ‘Ring fencing’

in accordance with the requirements of Ofwat, the board confirmed that, as at 31 March 2013, it had
available to it suffictent nghts and assets, not including financial resources, which would enable a special
administrator to manage the affairs, business and property of the company in order that the purposes of a
special administration order could be achieved if such an order were made

Regulation: ‘Cross directorships’

It 1s the policy of the company that directors and employees of the company may be directors of related
companies when this 1s in the best interests of the company, and where approprnate arrangements are In
place to avoid conflicts of interest

Conflict of interests

The board has a full process In place to authorise situational conflicts in accordance with the prowvisions of
the Companies Act 2006 At every board meeting there 1s a standing agenda item at the beginning of the
meeting to consider and discuss whether any potential conflicts exist If there 1s then that director would not
participate in the discusston on that item Half yearly reports are made to the board of all directors’ conflicts
and directors are reminded from time to time of their gbhgatons An annual review of conflicts 1s also
carrnied out and 1s incorporated into the year end process of venfying directors’ interests

Going concern

The company operates in an industry that 1s currently subject to economic regulation rather than market
competition Ofwat, the economic regulator, has a statutory obligation to set pnce limits that it believes will
enable the water companies to finance their activities As a consequence the directors believe that the
company and the group are well placed to manage theirr business nsks despite the current uncertain
economic outlook The company and the group are funded for their investment and cash flow needs at
least for the next year

The directors have a reasonable expectation that the company and the group have adequate resources to

continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future Accordingly we continue to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the Annual Report and Accounts
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Auditors

Deloitte LLP have indicated their willingness to continue as auditor and, in accordance with Section 487 of
the Companies Act 2006, are deemed to be reappointed

The directors confirmed that

» so far as each of them 1s are aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of which the company’s
auditors are unaware, and

= each of them has taken ali the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a director to make
himselffherself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the company’s auditors
are aware of that information

Relevant audit Information means information needed by the company’s auditors in connection with
preparing their report This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the
provisions of section 418 of the Companies Act 2006

By order of the board

Besdunm >

Bronagh Kennedy
General Counsel and Company Secretary
29 May 2013
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Governance

Severn Trent Governance

Severn Trent Plc 1s the ullimate holding company of Severn Trent Water Limited Since March 2007,
as part of the strategy of focusing on water, the boards of directors of Severn Trent Plc and Severn
Trent Water Limited have been identical

Severn Trent Plc and Severn Trent Water Limited operate as distinct legal entities The boards have
regard to the Severn Trent Plc Board Governance document and the Severn Trent Water Limited
Matters Reserved to the Board and are assisted through the management of separate agendas,
meetings and minutes by Company Secretanat and are advised in their meetings by the Company
Secretary where appropnate

The relationships between Severn Trent Water Limited, the regulated entity, and our non-regulated
businesses such as Severn Trent Services are momitored and controlled to ensure that we comply
with our Ofwat obligations on arm's length transactions

During the year ended 31 March 2013, Severn Trent Plc was compliant in its application of the UK
Corporate Governance Code 2010 (the ‘Governance Code’), with the exception that the adequacy of
arrangements In relation to the group’s whistleblowing procedures falls within the remit of the
Corporate Responsibiity Committee, rather than the Audit Committee

The Severn Trent Plc board has established an effective committee structure to assist in the discharge
of its responsibilities to the group The terms of reference of the Audit, Remuneration and Nominations
Committees comply with the provisions of the Governance Code and are available for inspection,
together with the terms of reference of the Corporate Responsibiity Committee and Executive
Committee, on the Severn Trent Plc website (www severntrent com) or on wntten request from the
Company Secretary at Severn Trent Centre, PO Box 5309, Coventry CV3 9FH

Severn Trent has made solid progress in implementing the key components of its governance
framework which are based on clear organisational structure and decision making, sound policies and
standards, and assurance of the outcomes The board and other key stakeholders need a transparent
methodology which delivers and validates the outcome of activities

The company expects roles to be performed in line with the specific annual job objectives Employees
performing therr roles properly, prepanng and reporting outcomes on time and to the required standard
1s a key component in our system of internal control

The company continues to embed the comphance, verification and performance activites In Severn
Trent These are within business areas and sometimes within discrete functions These confirm that
operational activities have been performed properly

Lastly, the company maintains an independent perspective on the overall framework by obtaining
confirmation that the governance structure 1s working properly In Severn Trent, this is obtained
primarily from the Internal Audit function

In order to provide an appropriate understanding of how these responsibilities come together for
Severn Trent, the company has developed a description of the key elements over which assurance 1s
required by the board Internal Audit deliver an audit plan to confirm that key business nisks are being
mitigated
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Severn Trent Water Limited

Operating structure

Day to day operational priorities within Severn Trent Water are led by the Chief Executive of Severn
Trent Pic and his executive management team, who together comprise the Executive Committee The
Executive Committee oversees the development and performance of the Severn Trent strategy It also
has accountability for achieving business results During the year the Executive Committee structured
its meetings to focus on strategy and business management, policy and planning and operational
performance

The operational structure algns the organisation with the processes that matter to customers and
drnives greater efficiency

Internal control and risk management

The board has overall responsibility for the company’s system of internal control and for reviewing its
effectiveness The board reviews the effectiveness of the system of internal control including financial,
operational, compliance and nsk management at least annually in accordance with the requirements
of the Governance Code and the guidance set out within it The system of internal control 1s reviewed
for effectiveness and adequacy

The internal control system can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against matenal
misstatement or loss, as it 1s designed to manage rather than eliminate the nsk of faillure to achieve
business objectives

The board reviews risk management and the adequacy of the system of internal control through the
Severn Trent Plc Audit Committee The board also keeps under review ways in which to enhance the
control and audit arrangements in the company The Audit Committee receives reports every six
months from the Chief Executive on the significant nsks faced by the company These include an
assessment of the effectiveness of controls over each of those nsks Action plans to improve controls
where necessary are monitored regularly Any significant control weaknesses that have been
dentified are also reported to the Audit Committee The Internal Audit department provides objective
assurance and advice on nsk management and control The external auditors also report on
significant control 1Issues to this committee

The board confirms that procedures providing an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and
managing the principal nisks faced by the company have been in place for the year to 31 March 2013
and up to the date of the approval of the Annual Repert and Accounts

Key elements of the company’s processes and procedures are

clearly defined and communicated strategic and business objectives,

an organisation structure with clear lines of accountability and responsibility,

performance management and succession planning systems,

regular, structured reviews of business rnisk by senior management and the Executive
Committee,

a scheme of delegated authonty, approval of plans, budgets and significant investments,
robust business planning including the 1dentification and mplementation of relevant
improvement plans, and

o moenthly reporting and monitoring of financial results, regulatory compliance and other
operational performance indicators, and independent assurance provided by both internal and
external auditors
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Principal risks and uncertainties
The board considers the principal risks and uncertainties affecting the business activities of the
company to be those detailed below

Customer Perception:

We may be unable to improve and maintain our levels of customer service sufficiently to deliver
what our customers tell us they want

We may be unable to respond effectively to the opening up of the business retaill market to
competition

Legal and Regulatory Environment:

L]

We may be unable to effectively anticipate and/or influence future developments in the UK
water industry resulting in our business plans becoming unsustainable

Cfwat may not support our business plan submission for the next price review period (AMPG)
for 2015 to 2020, or we may fall to meet some of the targets agreed with Gfwat 1n our current
business plan

The regulatory landscape 1s complex and subject to on-going change There I1s a nsk that
processes may fall or that our processes may not effectively keep pace with changes n
legislation leading to the nsk of non-compliance

Operations, Assets and People:

Our assets or processes may fail resulting in injury to an employee, contractor or member of
the public

We may fail to meet all of our regulatory targets including targets from Ofwat in relation to
ongoing operational performance of our assets resutting in regulatory penalties

Fallure of certain key assets may result in inability to provide a continuous supply of qualty
water to large populations withun our area, or in damage to third party property

Financial Risks:

The current economic climate may increase the difficulties associated with obtaining funding
for the company at similar rates to those assumed in our business plans

Changing demographics and fluctuations in the investment market may affect our ability to fund
pensions promises sustainably

Counterparties with whom we have invested money may fail putting our investment at nisk

These nsks and other significant risks are managed through our established Enterprise Risk
Management (ERM) process This requires risk owners to consider possible causes and potential
impacts of each nisk and to assess the adequacy of mitigating controls in place Where additional
mitigation is needed, nsk improvement actions are put in place and these are tracked to monitor that
they are completed to schedule and have the anticipated impact to improve the management of the
nsk Significant nsks identified within our ERM process are reported to the Executive Committee, the
Audit Committee and to the board on a regular basis
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Directors’ responsibilities statement

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that
law the directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with Financial
Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework Under company law the directors must not
approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period In preparing
these financial statements, the directors are required to

¢ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

e make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

o state whether Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework has been
followed, subject to any materal departures disclosed and explaned in the financial
statements, and

e prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 1s inappropriate to
presume that the company will continue in business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and
hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregulanties

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integnty of the corporate and financial

information included on the company’s website Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the
preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Severn Trent Water

Limited

We have audited the financial statements of Severn Trent
Water Limited for the year ended 31 March 2013 which
compnse the profit and loss account, the statement of
comprehensive income, the balance sheet, the statement
of changes in equity and the related notes 1 to 35 The
financial reporting framework that has been apphed in
their preparation 1s applicable law and Financial
Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework

This report 1s made solely to the company’s members as
& body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Compantes Act 2006 Our audit work has been
undertaken so that we might state to the company's
members those matters we are required to state to them
in an auditor's report and for no other purpose To the
fullest extent permitied by law we do not accept or
assume responsibilty to anyone other than the company
and the company's members as a body, for our audit
work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained mare fully in the directors’ responsibilities
statement, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being
satisfied that they give a true and farr view Our
respensibility 1s to audit and express an opinion on the
financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and Internationat Standards on Auditing (UK and
Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the
Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for
Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit nvolves obtaining evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the financial statements
are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether
the accounting policies are appropnate to the
company's circumstances and have been consistently
apphed and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by the
directors, and the overall presentation of the financial
statements In additon, we read all the financial and
non-financial information in the annual report to identify
matenal inconsistencies with the audited financial
statements If we become aware of any apparent
matenal misstatements or inconsistencies we consider
the implications for our report

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the financial statements

. give a true and fairr view of the state of the
company's affairs as at 31 March 2013 and of
its profit for the year then ended,

. have been properly prepared in accordance
with Financral Reporting Standard 101
Reduced Disclosure Framework, and

. have been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matter prescnibed by the
Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, the information given in the directors’
report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial
statements

Matters on which we are required to report by
exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following

matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to

report to you if, in our opinion

. adequate accounting records have not been
kept by the company, or retums adequate for
our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us, or

. the company financral statements are not in
agreement with the accounting records and
returns, or

. certain disclosures of directors' remuneration
spectfied by law are not made, or

. we have not received all the information and

explanations required for our audit

Whitlock (Senior Statutory Auditor)
and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
hartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
irmingham, United Kingdom
United Kingdoim
29 May 2013
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Severn Trent Water Limited

Profit and loss account
For the year ended 31 March 2013

Notes 2013 2012
£m £m

Turnover 3 1,511.0 1,4575
Operating costs hefore exceptional items 4 (1,012 8) (961 1)
Exceptional income 5 133 186
Total operating costs (999 5) (949 5)
Profit before interest and tax 5115 508 0
Income from share in group undertakings - 35
Interest receivable 8 101.0 1043
Interest payable 8 (324 9) (338 4)
Losses on financial instruments 9 (49 5) {70 3)
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 2381 2071
Taxation on profit on ordinary activities before exceptional items (27 4) (79 3)
Taxation on exceptional items 400 70 4
Total taxation on profit on ordinary activities 10 126 (89)
Profit for the financial year 2507 198 2

All results are from continuing cperations in both the current and preceding year
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Severn Trent Water Limited

Statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 March 2013

2013 2012

£m £m

Profit for the year 250.7 198 2

Losses on cash flow hedges (37 6) (81 0)
Deferred tax on losses on cash flow hedges 86 197

Amounts on cash flow hedges transferred to the profit and loss account 16 2 (0 4)
Deferred tax on transfers to the profit and loss account (37) 01

Actuanal losses on defined benefit pension schemes {51 4) (108 3)
Tax on actuanal losses 100 255
Deferred tax movement ansing from rate change (32) 22

Other comprehensive loss for the year {61 1) (142 2)
Total comprehensive income for the year 1896 560
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Severn Trent Water Limited

Balance sheet
As at 31 March 2013

Notes 2013 2012
£m £m
Fixed assets
Goadwill 12 13 -
Intangible assets 13 890 104 3
Tangible fixed assets 14 6,7380 6,551 5
[nvestments 15 3479 3479
Denvative financial assets 22 655 705
7,241 7 70742
Current assets
Stocks 16 61 63
Debtors amounts falling due after more than one year 17 3004 306 4
Debtors amounts falling due within one year 17 430 2 367 9
Denvative financial assets 22 09 234
Cash at bank and in hand 3286 03
1,066 2 704 3
Creditors amounts fallng due within one year 19 {596 2) (700 6)
Net current assets/(liabihties) 4700 37
Total assets less current liabihties 7,711 7 7,077 9
Craditors amounts falling due after more than one year 20 {5,628 3) (5,135 5)
Retirement benefit obligation 31 {383 7) (345 8)
Prowisions for habilites and charges 23 (832 2) (852 5)
Net assets 867 5 7441
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 25 100.0 1,000 0
Profit and loss account 902.4 (515 5)
Hedging reserve 26 (134 9) (118 4)
Infrastructure reserve 27 - 378 0
Total shareholder's funds 867 5 744 1

The financial statements were approved by the board of directors on 29 May 2013 They were signed on s behalf by

o

Andrew Duff

Chaiman

29 May 2013

Company Number 2366686

Dhrector

L

Michael McKeon
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Severn Trent Water Limited

Statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 March 2013

Share Share Hedging Infrastructure Profit and loss
capital premium reserves reserves account Total
Em £m £m £m £m £m

At 1 Apnl 2011 1,000 0 - (56 8) 3780 (369 7) 9515
Profit for the year - - - - 198 2 198 2
Losses on cash flow hedges - - (810} - - (81 0)
Deferred tax on losses on cash flow hedges - - 197 - - 197
Amounts on cash flow hedges transferred to
the profit and loss account - - {04) - - (0 4)
Deferred tax on transfers to the profit and loss
account - - 01 - - 01
Actuanal losses - - - - (108 3) (108 3)
Deferred tax on actuanal losses - - - - 177 177
Tax on pension contnbutions 78 78
Deferred tax ansing from rate change - - - - 22 22
Total comprehensive income for the year - - (61 6) - 117 6 560
Share options and LTIPs
- value of employees’ services - - - - 39 39
- shares purchased - - - - (18) (18)
Deferred tax on share based payments - - - - 05 05
Dividends paid - - - - (266 0) (266 0)
At 31 March 2012 1,0000 - (1184) 3780 (515 5) 744 1
Profit for the year - - - - 2507 2507
Losses on cash flow hedges - - (37 6) - - (37 6)
Deferred tax on losses on cash flow hedges - - 86 - - 86
Amounts on cash flow hedges transferred to
the profit and loss account ~ - 162 - - 16 2
Deferred tax on transfers to the profit and loss
account - - (37) - - (37)
Actuanal losses - - - - (51 4) (514)
Tax on pension contnbutions - - - - 13 13
Deferred tax on actuanal losses - - - - 87 B7
Deferred tax ansing from rate change - - - - (32) (32)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - {16 5) - 2061 1896
Share options and LTIPs
- value of employees' services - - - - 66 66
- shares purchased - - - - (14) (14)
Bonus I1ssue of shares 3780 - - (378 0) - -
Camtal reduction (1,278 0) - - - 12780 -
Current tax on share based payments - - - - 07 07
Other movements - - - - (0 1) 01)
Dividends paid - - - - (72 0) (72 0)
At 31 March 2013 1000 - (134 9) - 902 4 8675
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Severn Trent Water Limited

Cash flow statement

For the year ended 31 March 2013

2013 2012
Note £m £m
Cash generated from operations 29 757 9 6176
Tax pad {53 5) (67 8)
Net cash generated from operating activities 704.4 5498
Investing activities
Interest received 52 36
Dividends received from associates and joint ventures - 35
Investment in subsidianes - (177 8)
Receipts of amounts due from finance leases 05 1136
Proceeds on disposal of property, ptant and equipment and intangible assets 156 88
Purchases of intangible assets (14 9) (9 8)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (420 7) (364 6)
Contnbutions and grants received 274 228
Net cash used In investing activities {386 9) (399 9)
Financing activities
Interest paid (167 4) (183 5)
Closed out swap (44 3) -
Interest element of finance lease payments (22 7) (16 7)
Dividends paid to shareholders of the parent (72 0) (266 0)
Repayments of obligations under finance leases (29 1) {56 6)
Repayments of loans (287 4) (387 8)
New loans raised 6351 7527
Purchase of own shares (14) (18)
Net cash used i1n financing activities 108 (159 7}
Increasel/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 3283 (9 8)
Net cash and cash equivalents at beginning of penod 03 101
Net cash and cash equivalents at end of period 3286 03
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Notes to the financial statements

1. Accounting policies

a) Accounting convention

The financial statements have been prepared on the going concem basis (see Directors’ report) under the histoncal cost
convention as modified by the revaluation of certain financial assets and habilbes (including denvative instruments) at
fair value, and in accordance with applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards and comply with the requirements of
the United Kingdom Companies Act 2006 (‘the Act) The principal accounting policies, which have been applied
conststently in the current and preceding year are set out below

b) Basis of preparation

The company s a wholly owned subsidiary of Severn Trent Plc and s included in the consolidated accounts of Sevemn
Trent Plc Consequently, the directors have taken advaniage of the exemption availlable under section 400 of the United
Kingdom Companies Act 2006 from prepanng group accounts

The company has elected to adopt early the new accounting framework issued by the Financial Reporting Council The
company meels the definiion of a qualfying entity under FRS 100 (Financial Reporting Standard 100) Accordingly, in
the year ended 31 March 2013, the company has adopted FRS 101 ‘Reduced Disclosure Framework’ and has ceased to
apply all UK Accounting Standards 1ssued pnor to FRS 100 Therefore the recogniion and measurement requirements of
EU-adopted IFRS have been applied, with amendments where necessary in order to comply with Companies Act 2006
and The Large and Medum-sized Comparues and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 (S| 2008/410) as
these are Companies Act 2006 accounts

As permitted by FRS 101, the company has taken advantage of the disclosure exemphions available under that standard
in relatton to share based payments, financial instruments, capital management, presentation of comparative information
in respect of certain assets, standards not yet effective, mpairment of assets and related party transactions

Where required, equivalent disclosures are gwven in the group accounts of Severn Trent Plc The group accounts of
Severn Trent Plc are available to the public and can be obtained as set out in note 34

¢) First time adoption of FRS 101

The company’s date of transition to FRS 10115 1 Apn! 2011 and all comparative information 1n the financial statements
has been restated to reflect the company’'s adoption of FRS 101, except where otherwise required or permitted by
paragraphs 6 to 33 of International Financial Reporting Standard 1 - ‘First Time Adopton of Intemational Financial
Reporting Standards’ (IFRS 1) Details of this transition are given in note 35

The company 1s included In the consolidated accounts of its ulimate parent company Severn Trent Plc  Severn Trent
Plc adopted IFRS for the first tme In the year ended 31 March 2006 In accordance with IFRS 1, the company has
measured its assets and habilities at the carrying amounis that would be included in the Severn Trent Plc consolidated
financial statements

d) Turnover
Turmover represents the fair value of consideration recervable, excluding value added tax and trade discounts, in the
ordinary course of business for goods and services provided

Turmover 15 not recognised until the service has been provided 1o the customer or the goods to which the sale relates
have been despatched to the customer

Tumover includes an estimate of the amount of mains water and waste water charges unbilled at the year end The
accrual 1s estimated using a defined methodology based upon a measure of unbilled water consumed by tanff, which 1s
calculated from histoncat bilhing information

e) Interest receivable and similar income

Interest income 1s accrued on a time basis by reference to the pnncipal outstanding and at the effective interest raie
applicable Dividend income from investments 1s recogmsed when the company's nghts to receive payment have been
established Interest and dividend income are included in interest receivable and similar mcome
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f) Exceptional items

Exceptional items are income or expenditure, which indivdually or, If of a similar type, in aggregate should, in the opinton
of the directors, be disclosed by virtue of their size or nature if the financial statements are to give a true and fair view

g) Taxation

Current tax payable i1s based on taxable profit for the year Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported in the
profit and loss account because it excludes items of Income and expenses that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible The company's hability for current tax 1s calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred taxation i1s provided n full, using the hability method, on taxable temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilties and therr carrying amounts in the financial statements A deferred tax asset 1s only recognised to the
extent it 1s probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available in the future to utihse it Deferred taxation 1s measured
on a non-discounted basis using the {ax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet dale and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset 1s realised or the deferred tax hiability 1s settled

Deferred tax assets and liabliles are offset when there i1s a legally enforceable nght to set off current tax assets against
current tax habilites and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authonty and the company
intends to settle its current tax assets and habilities on a net basis

h) Goodwilll

Goodwill represents the excess of the fair value of purchase consideration over the fair value of the net assels acquired
Fair value adjustments based on provisional estmates are amended within one year of the acquisition, if required, with a
corresponding adjustment to goodwall

Goodwill 15 tested for impairment in accordance with the policy set out in note 1n} below and carned at cost less
accumulated impairment losses Goodwill 1s allocated to the cash-generating unit that denves benefit from the goodwill
for impairment testing purposes

1} Intangible fixed assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are capitalised at cost and are capitalised at fair value at the date of acquisition
Followang iitial recogmtion, the histoncal cost model 1s appled to intangible assets

Intangible assets are amortised on a straight line basis cver their estimated useful economic lives as follows

Years
Software 3-10
Other intangible assets 2.20

Amortisation charged on assets with finite ives 1s taken to the income statement through operating costs

Intangible assets are reviewed for impairment where indicators of impaiment exist
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J) Research and development

Research expenditure 1s expensed when 1t 1s incurred Development expenditure I1s capitalised and wnitten off over its
expected useful economic life where the following cntena are met

it 1s technically feasible to creale and make the asset available for use or sale,

there are adequate resources avallable to complete the development and to use or sell the asset,
there i1s the intention and ability to use or sell the asset,

it 1s probable that the asset created will generate future economic benefits, and

the development cost can be measured reliably

Expenditure on tangible fixed assets relating to research and development projects is capitalised and wntten off over the
expected useful Iife of those assets

k) Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are held at cost (or at deemed cost for infrastructure assets on transition to FRS 101) less
accumulated depreciation The cosis of like for hke replacement of infrastructure components are recogrused in the profit
and loss account as they anse Where it 1s probable that the expenditure will cause future economic benefits to flow to
the company, then costs are capitahsed

Where tangible fixed assets are transferred to the company from customers or developers, the far value of the asset
transferred 1s recognised in the balance sheet Fair value 1s determined based on estimated depreciated replacement
cost Where the transfer 1s in exchange for connection to the network and there i1s no further obligation, the
corresponding credit 1s recegrised immediately in turnover Where the transfer 1s considered to be inked to the provision
of ongoing services the corresponding credit 1s recorded in deferred iIncome and released to operating costs over the
expected useful lives of the related assets

Borrowing costs directly attnbutable to the acquisihon, construction or production of assets, that necessanly take a
substantial penod of ime to get ready for their intended use, are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are ready for their intended use

Tangible fixed assets are depreciated to ther estmated residual values over therr estmated useful lives, with the
exception of freehold land which 15 not depreciated Assets in the course of construction are not depreciated until
commissioned

The estimated useful hves are

Years
Infrastructure assets
Impounding reservoirs 250
Raw water aqueducts 250
Mains 80-150
Sewers 150-200
Other assets
Buildings 30-80
Fixed plant and equipment 20-40
Vehicles and mobile plant 2-15
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) Leased assets

Where the company obtains assets under leasing arrangements which transfer substantially ali the nsks and rewards of
ownership of an asset to the company as lessee (finance leases), the lower of the fair value of the leased asset or the
present value of the minimum lease payments 1s capitalised as an asset with a corresponding liability representing the
obligation to the lessor Lease payments are treated as consisting of a capital element and a finance charge, the capital
element reducing the obligation to the lessor and the finance charge being wntten off to the profit and loss account at a
constant rate over the penod of the lease in proportion te the capital amount outstanding Depreciation 1s charged over
the shorter of the estimated useful life and the lease penod

Leases where substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership remain with the lessor are classified as operating
leases Rental costs ansing under operating leases are expensed on a straight line basis over the term of the lease
Leases of land are normally treated as operating leases, unless ownership I1s transferred to the company at the end of
the lease

Where the company transfers substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership of an asset to a lessee (finance lease),
the assets are accounted for as if they had been sold, and the net iInvestment in the lease 1s shown as a receivable due
from the lessee Over the lease term, rentals are apportiocned between a reduction in the net investment in the lease and
finance lease income, such that finance lease income produces a constant rate of return on the net cash investment in
the lease Finance lease mcome 1s Included within interest receivable and similar iIncome

m} Grants and contributions

Granis and contnbutions received in respect of fixed assets, including certain charges made as a result of new
connections to the water and sewerage networks, are treated as deferred income and released to the profit and loss
account over the useful economic Iife of those fixed assets

Grants and contnbutions which are given In compensation for expenses incurred with no future related costs are
recognised In operating costs in the profit and loss account in the penod that they become receivable

Grants and contnbutions received in respect of non infrastructure assets are treated as deferred income and are
recognised in the profit and loss account over the useful economic life of those assets

n) Impairment of fixed assets

If the recoverable amount of goodwill, a tangible fixed asset, or any other fixed asset 1s estmated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carmrying amouni of the asset 1s reduced to its recoverable amount Where the asset does not
generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs Recoverable amount 1s the higher of fair value less costs to sell or estimated
value in use at the date the impairment review 1s undertaken Fair value less costs to sell represents the amount
obtamnable from the sale of the asset in an amm’s length transaction between knowledgeable and willing third parties, less
costs of disposal Value In use represents the present value of future cash flows expected to be derived from a cash-
generating unit, discounted using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the cost of capital of
the cash-generating unit or asset

The discount rate used i1s based on the estimated cost of capital of the asset or cash-generating unit

Goodwll 1s tested for impairment annually Impairment reviews are alsc camed out if there 1s an indication that an
impairment may have occurred, or, where otherwise required, to ensure that fixed assets are not carned above their
estimated recoverable amounts

Impairments are recogrused immediately in the profit and loss account

o} Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidianes are stated at cost less, where appropnate, provisions for impairment

p) Stocks

Stock and work In progress 1s stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost includes labour, matenals,
transport and attnbutable overheads
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q) Retirement benefits
The company 1s the sponsoring employer of the Severn Trent group’s defined benefit pension schemes

The difference between the value of defined benefit pension scheme assets and defined benefit pension scheme liabiliies 1s
recorded on the balance sheet as a retirement benefit asset or obligation

Defined benefit pension scheme assets are measured at far value using bid pnice for assets with quoted pnces Defined
benefit pension scheme liabiihes are measured at the balance sheet date by an independent actuary using the projected
unit method and discounted at the current rate of return on high quality corporate bonds of equivalent term and currency
to the habilty Service cost, which 1s the increase in the present value of the habilites of the group’s defined benefit
pension schemes expected to anse from employee service in the penod, 1s Included in operating costs The expected
return on the scheme’s assets and the increase dunng the period in the present value of the scheme's liabilites, ansing
from the passage of time, are included in other finance income or cost

Actuanal gamns and losses ansing from expenence adjustments, changes in actuanal assumptions and amendments to
pension plans are charged or credited to equity and recorded in the statement of comprehensive income

The company participates in the Severn Trent group's defined contribution pension schemes Contributions to defined
contnbution pension schemes are charged to the iIncome statement in the penod 1n which they fall due

r} Provisions
Provisions are recognised where

» there s a present obligation as a result of a past event,
¢ 111s probable that there will be an outflow of economic benefits to settle this obligation, and
+ areliable estmate of this amount can be made

Self-insurance provisions are recognised for claims notified and for claims incurred but which have not yet been notfied,
based on advice from the parent company’s independent insurance adwvisers

Where the effect 1s matenal provisions are discounted to present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects the nsks
specific to the hability

s} Financial instruments

() Financial assets
Financial assets are classified into the following categones
¢ at far value through prefit or loss,
» held to matunty investments,
+ availlable for sale financial assets, and
* loans and receivables

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset Is classified at far value through profit or loss if it 1s so designated or if i is classified as “held for
trading” Denvative financial assets that are not designated and effective as hedging instruments are required to be
classified as “held for trading” The company does not hold or 1ssue derivative financial instruments for trading

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses ansing on
remeasurement recogmsed in gains/losses on financial instruments in the profit and loss account Fair value is
determined using the methodology descnbed in note 22 (d) Interest received in respect of denvative financial assets 1s
included in interest recewvable

Held to maturity investments

Where the company has the ability and intent to hold an investment to matunty the financial asset I1s classified as held 1o
matunty Such financial assets are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, with any gains or
losses being recognised in the profit and loss account
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s) Financial instruments continued

Available for sale financial assets

After inthal recognition at cost {being the far value of the consideration pad), investments which are classified as
avallable for sale are measured at fair value, with gains or losses recognised in other comprehensive mcome When an
available for sale investment 1s disposed of or impaired, the gain or loss previously recogmised in other comprehensive
income Is taken 10 the profit and loss account Where there 1s no active market in the investments and the far value
cannot be measured reliably, the investments are held at cost

Loans and recevables

Trade recewvables, loans and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments and that are not quoted in an
active market are classified as loans and receivables Such assets are measured at farr value on inihal recognition and
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method unless there 1s objective evidence
that the asset 1s impaired, where it 1s wntten down to its recoverable amount and the irecoverable amount 1s recognised
as an expense

Trade receiwvables that are assessed not to be impaired individually are assessed collectively for impairment by reference
to the group’s histoncal collectton expenence for receivables of similar age

(n) Financial habilites

Financial habiities are classified as either
« financial kabihties at fair value through profit or loss, or
» other financial habilities

Financial habilitres at fair value through profit or loss

A financial hability 1s classified at farr value through profit or loss if it 1s so designated or «f it 1s classified as “held for
trading” Dernivative financial liabiities that are not designated and effective as hedging mstruments are required to be
classified as "held for trading” The company does not hold or issue denvative financial instruments for trading Financial
habiities at farr value through profit or loss are slated at farr value, with any gains or losses ansing on remeasurement
recogmised In gains/losses on financial instruments in the profit and loss account Fair value 1s determined using the
methodology descrnbed in Severn Trent Plc's group financial stalements Interest pad in respect of dervative financial
habilites 1s included in interest payable

Other financral abtitties

Other financial habilities, including borrowings, are imitially recognised at fair value less transaction costs After initial
recognition, other financial habilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method

{m) Hedge accounting

The company uses denvative financial instruments such as cross currency swaps, forward currency contracts and
interest rate swaps to hedge its nsks associated with foreign currency and interest rate fluctuations Such dernvative
instruments are recognised and measured in accordance with the accounting policies described above

At the inception of the hedge relationship, the company documents
a) the relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged item,
b) its nsk management objectives and strategy for undertaking hedge transactions, and
c) whether the hedging instrument 1s highly effective in offsetting changes in farr values or cash flows (as
appropnate) of the hedged item

The company continues to test and document the effectiveness of the hedge on an ongoing basis

Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when the hedging instrument expires, s sold, terminated or exercised, or no longer
qualifies for hedge accounting

Fair value hedges

Where a loan or borrowing 1s in a fair value hedging relationship it 1s remeasured for changes n fair value of the hedged
nsk at the balance sheet date, with gains or losses being recognised in gains/losses on financial instruments in the profit
and loss account The gan or loss on the hedging instrument 1s taken to gans/losses on financial instruments in the
profit and loss account where the effective portion of the hedge will offset the gain or loss on the hedged item

When hedge accounting 1s discontinued, the fair value adjustment to the carrying amount of the hedged item ansing from
the hedged nisk 15 amortised to the profit and loss account from that date
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s) Financial instruments continued

Cash flow hedges

The portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument that 1s determined to be an effective hedge 1s recogrised
directly in equity and the ineffective portion in gainsflosses on financial instruments in the profit and loss account The
gains or losses deferred in equity in this way are recycled through gains/losses on financial instruments in the profit and
loss account in the same period in which the hedged underying transaction or firm commitment is recognised in the profit
and loss account

When hedge accounting 1s discontinued any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument recognised in equity 1s
held in equity until the forecast transaction occurs, or transferred to gains/losses on financial iInstruments in the profit and
loss account If the forecast transaction 1s no longer expected to occur

{iv} Embedded denvatives

Denvatives embedded in other financial instruments or other host contracts are treated as separate denvatives when
their nsks and charactenstics are not closely related to those of the host contract and the host contract 1s not carned at
fair value, with gains and losses reported in gains/losses on financial instruments in the profit and loss account

t) Share based payments

The Severn Trent group operates a number of equity settled share based compensation plans for employees The fair value
of the employee services received in exchange for the grant 1s recognised as an expense over the vesting penod of the
grant

The fair value of employee services 1s determined by reference o the fair value of the awards granted, calculated using
an appropnate pncing model, excluding the impact of any non-market vesting conditions The number of awards that are
expected to vest takes into account non-market vesting conditions including, where appropnate, continuing employment
by the group The charge 15 adjusted to reflect shares that do not vest as a result of falling to meet a non-market
condition

The grant of awards of shares of the ultimate parent company I1s treated as a capital contnbution and credited to
reserves When awards vest, payments made to the ultimate parent company for the 1ssue of shares are charged
against the capital contnbutions previously received in respect of the same awards Any payments in excess of capital
contnbutions are treated as distnbutions

u} Foreign currency

Foreign currency transactions ansing dunng the year are translated into sterling at the rate of exchange ruling on the date of
the transaction All profits and losses on exchange ansing dunng the year are dealt with through the profit and foss account

Severn Trent Water Annual Report and Accounts 2013 47




Severn Trent Water Limited

Notes to the financial statements

2 Significant accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the process of applying the company's accounting policies, the company 1s required to make certan judgements,
estimates and assumptions that it believes are reasonable based on the information availlable

The more significant judgements were
a) Tax provisions
Assessing the outcome of uncertain tax positions requires Judgemenis to be made regarding the result of negotiations with

and enquines from tax authontes The assessments made are based on advice from independent tax advisers and the
status of ongoing discussions with the tax authonty

b) Provisions for other habilities and charges

Assessing the financial cutcome of uncertain commercial and legal positions requires judgements to be made regarding
the relative ments of each party's case and the extent to which any claim against the company 1s likely to be successful
The assessments made are based on advice from the parent company's internal counsel and, where appropnate,
independent legal advice

The key accounting estimates were
a) Depreciation and carrying amounts of langible fixed assels
Calculating the depreciation charge and hence the carrying value for tangible fixed assets requires estimates to be made

of the useful lives of the assets The estimates are based on engineenng data and the company’s expernence of similar
assets Details are set outin note 1 k)

b) Unbilled revenue

The company raises bills and recognises revenue In accordance with its nght to receive revenue in line with the imits
established by the penodic regulatory pnce review processes For water and waste water customers with water meters, the
amount recognised 1s dependent upon the volume supplied including an estmate of the sales value of units supplied
between the date of the last meter read and the year end Meters are read on a cyclical basis and the group recognises
revenue for unbilled amounts based on estimated usage from the last biling to the end of the financial year The estmated
usage 1s based on histoncal data, judgement and assumptions

¢) Prowvision for imparment of trade receivables

Provisions are made aganst trade receivables based on tustoncal expenence of levels of recovery from accounts In a
particutar agemng category The actual amounts collected could differ from the estimated level of recovery which could
impact operating results

d) Retirement benefit obligations

Determining the amount of the company’'s retirement benefit obligations and the net costs of providing such benefits
requires assumptions to be made concerming long term interest rates, inflation, salary and pension increases, nvestment
returns and longevity of current and future pensioners Changes in these assumptions could significantly impact the
amount of the obligations or the cosi of prowiding such benefits The company makes assumptions conceming these
matters with the assistance of advice from independent qualified actuanes Details of the assumptions made are set out
in note 31 to the financial statements

3. Revenue

The pnncipal activity of the company 1s the proviston and the treatment of water and the removal of waste water in the
UK The company's achivities consist solely of UK activities

2013 2012

£m £m

Water and sewerage services 1,5026 1,447 7
Other services 84 98
Total turnover 1,511 0 1,457 5
Interest receivable (note 8) 1010 104 3
Total revenue 11,6120 1,6618
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4. Operating costs

2013 2012
Before Before
Exceptional Exceptional Excepticnal
costs costs Total costs Excephional costs Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Wages and salanes 176.3 - 176 3 159 3 286 1619
Social secunty costs 16 3 - 16 3 14 0 01 141
Pension costs 288 - 288 267 (23 1) 36
Share based payments 66 - 66 39 - 39
Total employee costs 228.0 . 228.0 2039 {20 4) 1835
Power 606 - 60 6 518 - 518
Carbon reduction commitment §7 - 57 59 - 5¢9
Raw matenals and consumables 433 - 433 46 8 04 47 2
Rates 72.5 - 725 68 4 01 685
Charge for bad and doubtful debts 318 - 318 302 - 302
Service charges 319 - 319 333 - 333
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 2614 - 2614 252 1 - 2521
Amorhisation of intangible fixed assets 289 - 289 287 - 287
Infrastructure maintenance expenditure 147 7 - 147 7 1289 - 128 9
Hired and contracted services 1302 - 130 2 139 4 29 142 3
Operating lease rentals
- land and buildings 06 - 06 04 - 04
Hire of plant and machinery 39 - 39 48 - 48
Loss/(profit} on disposal of fixed assets 14 (13 3) (11 9) (4 2) - {4 2)
Research and development 47 - 47 41 - 41
Foreign exchange losses 01 - 01 01 - 01
Other operating costs 56 4 - 56 4 519 54 573
1,109 1 (13 3) 1,095 8 1,046 5 (11 6) 1,034 9
Release from deferred income (93) - {(83) (8 6) - (8 6)
Own work capitalised (87 0) - {87 0) (76 8) - (76 8)
1,012 8 (13.3) 999 5 961 1 {11 6) 949 5
Dunng the year the following fees were charged by the auditor
2013 2012
£m £m
Feas payable to the company's auditors for
- the audit of the company's annual accounts 02 03
Total audit fees 02 03
Fees payable to the company's auditors for non-audit services 01 -
03 03
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5. Exceptional items before tax

2013 2012
£m £m
Restructuring costs - 1156
Profit on disposal of fixed assets {13 3} -
Curtailment gains on defined benefit pension schemes - (23 1)
{13 3) (11 6)
6. Employee information

The average monthly number of employees (including executive directors) dunng the year was
2013 2012
Number Number
Average monthly number of employees 5,458 5,162

7. Directors’ interests and remuneration

a) Directors’ interests

All of the directors as at the end of the year are also directors of Severn Trent Plc, the ulimate parent undertaking, and
ther interests in the share capital of that company are disclosed in the Annua!l Report and Accounts of that company for
the year ended 31 March 2013 Share options were granted and exercised in accordance with the Sevemn Trent
Sharesave Scheme as appropnate

The executive directors have further interests in Severn Trent Plc ordinary shares of 97"/1gp each by virtue of having
received contingent awards of shares under the Sevemn Trent Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) on 21 June 2010, 22
June 2011 and 19 June 2012, deferred shares under the Severn Trent Annual Bonus Scheme on 21 May 2010, 20 May
2011 and 9 July 2012, and contingent shares under the Share Matching Plan on 21 May 2010, 20 May 2011 and 25 May
2012

The LTIP operates on a three year rolhing basis The Severn Trent Employee Share ownership Trust 1s operated in
conjunction with the LTIP and Annual Bonus Scheme Awards do not vest until they have been held in trust for three
years and specsfic performance cntena have been satisfied The performance cntena for the awards are based on either
the company’s achievement of Returmn on Regulated Capital Value in excess of the level included in the Severn Trent
Water AMP5 bustness plan or Severn Trent Pic’s Total Shareholder Retum (TSR)

Dunng the year, the executive directors received half of thesr bonus for the year ended 31 March 2013 in deferred
shares under the Annual Bonus Scheme and contingent matching shares (being 50% of ther deferred share award)
under the Share Matching Plan Performance targets apply to the Share Matching Plan award in the same manner as the
LTIP

The indmvidual Interests, which represent the maximum aggregate number of shares to which each indivdual could
become entitled, are disclesed in the Annual Report and Accounts of Severn Trent Plc for the year ended 31 March
2013
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b) Directors' remuneration

2012 2012
£'000 £'000

Aggregate directors’ emoluments dunng the year (excluding pension contnbutions) 4,7329 3,8101
Pension contnbutions 728 1212
4,8057 3,9313

1) The emaluments of the non-executive directors are paid by Severn Trent Plc

1} Retirement benefits are accruing to three directors (2012 three directors) under a defined benefit scheme and two

directors (2012 two directors) under a defined contnbution scheme

m) Five directors (2012 five directors) exercised share options or received LTIP awards which vested dunng the year

c) Highest paid director

Aggregate emoluments {excluding pension contnbutions})

2013 2012
£000 £000
1,3386 1,034 9

The accrued pension at 31 March 2013 for the highest paid director was £29,818 (2012 £29,471) The pension
entitlement 1s that which would be paid annually on retirement based on service to the end of the year The highest pad

director did not exercise any share options dunng the year

8. Net interest payable

2013 2012
£m £m
Interest payable and similar charges on
- Amounts payable to group undertakings (190 1) (206 6)
- Amounts payable to group undertakings from finance leases {11 1) (19
- Finance leases {11 3) (12 6)
- Bank and other loans {19 2) (18 8)
Pension interest cost (92 2) (97 7)
Other finance costs {(10) (0 8)
Total interest payable and similar charges (324 9) (338 4)
Interest recervable on
- Bank deposits 08 07
- Amounts due from group undertakings 13 13
- Amounts due from group undertakings for finance leases 51 09
Expected return on defined benefit scheme assets 88 2 1007
Other finance income 56 07
Total interest receivable and similar income 1010 104 3
(223 9) (234 1)

In accordance with IAS 23 borrowing costs of £10 4 million (2012 £10 5 milhon) incurred funding eligible capital projects

have been capitalised at an interest rate of 5 12% (2012 5 93%)
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9. Losses on financial instruments

2013 2012
£m £m
Loss on cross currency swaps used as hedging instruments in fair value hedges (33) (4 B)
Gain ansing on adjustment for foreign currency debt in fair value hedges 35 120
Exchange gain/(loss) on other loans 58 (0 6)
Amounts on cash flow hedges transferred from equity {16 2) 04
Loss ansing on swaps where hedge accounting 1s not applied {39 3) (77 3)
(49 5) (70 3)
10. Tax on profit on ordinary activities
a) Analysis of tax {credit)/charge in the year
2013 2012
Before
exceptional tax Exceptional tax Total Total
£m £m £m £m
Current tax
UK corporation tax at 24% (2012 26%)
- current year 607 {40 5) 202 729
- adjustment in respect of pnor years (27 2) - (27 2) (54)
Total current tax 335 {40 5) (70) 675
Deferred tax
Ongination and reversal of temporary differences
- current year {20) ag s 368 77
- adjustment in respect of pnor years {41) - (41) 41
Exceptional credit ansing from rate change - (38 3) (38 3) (70 4)
Total deferred tax (61) 05 (56) (58 6)
274 (40 0) (12 6) 89

The company has adopted the new accounting standard FRS 101 1n the current year which has impacted the basis for
the corporation tax computations The most significant :mpact of this change 1s that certain amounts that had been taxed
in previous years will now be recogmised as profits and taxed in future penods Therefore, to prevent such items being
taxed twice, the tax afready paid on such items i1s repayable The impact of this change was an exceptional credit of
£40 5 milhon to current tax and an exceptional charge of £38 8 million to deferred tax

The company eamns profits pnmanly in the UK Therefore the tax rate used for tax on profit on ordinary activities Is the
standard rate for UK corporatton tax, The standard rate of UK cormporation tax changed from 26% to 24% with effect from
1 April 2012

The exceptonal deferred tax credit anses from the reduction in the rate at which the temporary differences are expected
to reverse from 24% to 23% On 20 March 2013 the Government announced that the main rate of corporation tax in the
UK woeuld reduce to 23% with effect from 1 Apnl 2013 with subsequent reductions per annum te reach 20% by 1 Apnl
2015
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b) Factors affecting the tax (credit)/charge in the year

The tax assessed for the year i1s lower than (2012 lower than) the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 24%
(2012 26%) The differences are explained below

2013 2012
£m £m
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 2381 207 1
Profit on ordinary activiies multiplied by the standard UK corporation rate of 24% {2012 26%) 570 543
Tax effect of expenditure not deductible/(income not taxable) i determining taxable profits 19 136
Current year impact of rate change {(19) 127
Exceptional deferred tax credit ansing from rate change (38 3) (70 4)
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of pnor penods (31 3) (13)
Total tax (credit)/charge for the year (12 6) 89
¢) Tax credited to equity
In addition to the amount credited to the Income statement, the following amounts of tax have been credited tc equity
2013 2012
£m £m
Current tax
Tax on share based payments 07 -
Tax on pension contnbutions in excess of profit and foss charge 13 78
Total current tax credited to equity 20 78
Deferred tax
Tax on actuanal gains/losses 87 177
Tax on share based payments - 05
Effect of change In tax rate {3 2) 22
Tax on fransfers to the profit and less account {(37) -
Tax on cash flow hedges 8.6 197
Total deferred tax credited to equity 10.4 401
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11. Dividends on equity shares

Amounts recognised as distnbutions to equity holders in the penod

2013 2012
Pence per share £m_ Pence per share £m
Final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2012 - - 266 2660
Intenm dividend for the year ended 31 March 2013 72 720 - -
720 2660
The company’s dividend policy is to declare dividends which are consistent with the company’s regulatory obligations
and at a level which 1s decided each year after consideration of a number of factors, including regulatory uncertainty,
future cash flow requirements and balance sheet considerations
The amount declared is expected to vary each year as the impact of these factors changes
12. Goodwill
2013 2012
£m £m
At 1 Apnl - -
Additions 1.3 -
Cost and Net Book Value at 31 March 1.3 -
On 21 January 2013, the company acquired the operations and net assets of the Bndgend laboratory from Severn Trent
Laboratories Limited This resulted in purchased goodwill of £1 3 million
13. Intangible fixed assets
Computer software Cther
Internally Intemally
generated Purchased generated Total
£m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 Apnl 2012 1210 172 2 120 3052
Additions 59 77 - 136
At 31 March 2013 126 9 179 9 120 3188
Amortisation
At 1 Apnl 2012 (101 8) (90 2) (8 9) (200 9)
Amortisation for year (16 6) (117) (0 6) (28 9)
At 31 March 2013 (118 4) (101 9) (9 5} (229 8)
Net book value
At 31 March 2013 8.5 78.0 25 890
At 31 March 2012 19 2 820 31 104 3

Development costs have been capitalised in accordance with IAS 38 ‘'Intangible Assets’ and are therefore not treated, for

dividend purposes, as a realsed loss

Severn Trent Water Annual Report and Accounts 2013 54




Severn Trent Water Limited

Notes to the financial statements

14. Tangible fixed assets

Fixed plant and Vehicles and mobile

Land and buildings Infrastructure assets equipment plant Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 Apnl 2012 26469 43103 3,407 6 451 10,409 9
Additions 1291 1033 2132 60 451 6
Disposals (7 5) 01 {16 6} (36) {27 8)
At 31 March 2013 2,768 5 4,4135 3,604.2 475 10,8337
Depreciation
At 1 Apnl 2012 (856 7) (1,121 7} (1,853 4) (26 6) (3,858 4)
Charge for the year {59 9) (29 6} (166 7} (52) {261 4)
Disposals 58 - 150 33 241
At 31 March 2013 (910 8) (1,151 3) (2,005 1) (28 5) {4,0957)
Net book value
At 31 March 2013 1,857 7 3,2622 1,599 1 190 6,738 0
At 31 March 2012 1,790 2 3,1886 1,554 2 185 6,5515
Included in the above are assets under construction of £504 2 milion (2012 £380 8 milken) which are not depreciated
Cumulative borrowing costs capitalised mcluded in the cost of tangible fixed assets amount to £34 7 mithon (2012 £24 3
million)
The carrying amount of tangible fixed assets includes the following amounts in respect of assets held under finance
leases
Fixed
Land and Infrastructure plant and
bulldings assets equiprnent Total
£m £m £m £m
Net book value
At 31 March 2013 1841 120 6 548 3585
At 31 March 2012 188 0 1212 74 2 3834
The net book value of land and bulldings 1s analysed as follows
2013 2012
£Em £m
Freehold 1,857 4 1,780 9
Short leasehold 03 03
1,857 7 1,790 2
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15. Fixed asset investments

The company has the following investments which pnncipally affected its profits or net assets

Shares in

subsichary
undertakings

£m

Cost and net book value
At 1 April and 31 March 2013

3479

Subsidiary undertakings

Country of operation and
incorporation

Pnncipal activity

Percentage and class of share capital
held

East Worcester Water Limited

Severn Trent General Partnerstup Limited
Sevemn Trent LCP Limited

Severn Trent Leasing Limited

Sevemn Trent Reservoirs Limited

Severn Trent Utiites Finance Plc

England and Wales

Scotland
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales

Finance company
Finance company
Leasing company
Leasing company
Finance company
Finance company

100% Ordinary &
100% non-voting
100% Ordinary
100% Ordinary
100% Ordinary
100% Ordinary
100% Ordinary

The company also has an indirect investment in Severn Trent Limited Partnership, a imited partnership registered in
Scotland, as a result of Sevemn Trent General Partnership Limited being the general partner

In the opinion of the directors the fair values of the company’s investments are not less than the amount at which they

are stated in the balance sheet

16. Stocks

2013 2012
£m £m

Raw matenals and consumables

61 63
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17. Debtors

Amounts falling due within one year

2013 2012
£m £m
Trade debtors 267.1 246 7
Bad debt prowvision (111 3) (100 9)
Net trade debtors 155.8 1458
Amounts owed by group undertakings 26.0 89
Amounts recevable by group undertakings under finance leases 0.5 05
Other debters 27.9 287
Corporation tax 20.9 -
Prepayments and accrued income 199.1 184 0
430.2 3679

Amounts falling due after more than one year
2013 2012
£m £m
Loans owed by group undertakings 105.7 104 4
Amounts receivable by group undertakings under finance leases 101.3 102 6
Prepayments and accrued income 934 ag 4
3004 306 4
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18. Finance lease receivables

Minimum lease payments receivable are as follows

2013 2012
£m £m
Within one year 57 57
Between one and twe years 57 57
Between two and five years 170 170
After five years 2555 2611
2839 2895
Less uneamed interest receivable (182 1) (186 4)
1018 1031
The present values of minimum lease payments receivable are as follows
2013 2012
£m £m
Within one year 05 05
Between one and two years 05 05
Between two and five years 17 16
After five years 99 1 1005
1018 1031
Disclosed in the balance sheet as
Debtors amounts falling due within one year 05 05
Debtors amounts faling due after one year 1013 102 6
1018 1031

The company has granted 46-59 year finance leases In respect to concrete setlling tanks The interest terms were set at
the inception of the leases Leases with capital outstanding of £101 8 milhion (2012 £103 1 mulion) bear interest at a

weighted average interest rate of 5 1% (2012 5 1%)
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19. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

2013 2012
£m £m
Bank loans 1653 -
Loans due to parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings - 2296
Amounts owed to parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings under finance leases 126 232
Obligations under finance leases 05 -
Borrowings 1784 2528
Trade creditors 151 148
Amounts owed to parent and fellow subsichary undertakings 129 6 1208
Other creditors 62 88
Corporation tax payable - 368
Other taxation and social secunty 51 49
Accruals and deferred income 2614 2616
Denvative financial habilites 04 01
596 2 7006
20. Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
2012 2012
£m £m
Bank loans 5524 6103
Loans due to parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings 3,8450 3,340 2
Amounts owed 1o parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings under finance leases 316 4 3197
Obhgations under finance leases 2012 2188
Borrowings 49150 4,489 0
Accruals and deferred income 447 1 407 6
Denvative financial habilities 266 2 2389
5,628 3 51355
Borrowings are repayable as follows
2013 2012
Loans with other
repayment Finance Loans with other Finance
terms leases Total repayment terms leases Total
£m £m £m £m Em £m
Financial habilites due within one year (165 3) {(131) (178 4) (229 6) (23 2) (252 8)
Between ong and two years (174 8} (34 7) (209 5) (181 5) (41 5) (223 0)
Between two and five years {1,270 3) {117 0) {1,387.3) (905 2) {136 1) (1,041 3)
After more than five years (2,952 3) (3659)  (3,3182) (2,863 8) (3609)  (3,2247)
;g;arl financial habibties due after one (4,397 4) (517 6) (4,915.0) (3,950 5) (538 5) (4,489 0)
(4,562 7) (530 7) {5,093 4) (4,180 1) (561 7) (4,741 8)
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Loans repayable partly or wholly after five years comprnse

Weighted
average interest
Rate of interast rate 5-10 years 10-15 years 15-20 years >20 years 2013
% % £m £m £m £m £m
Loans due to parent and
fellow subsidiary
undertakings
Fixed rate 3663 51 - 789 4 597 9 2467 1,634.0
Floating rate 1012 10 - 208 16 8 - 377
RPI linked 1540 19 - 352 1416 8515 1,028.3
Bank loans
Fixed rate 45 45 1500 - - - 1500
RPI inked 15 15 102 4 - - - 1024
2524 8454 7563 1,098 2 2,952 3
Weighted
average interest
Rate of interest rate 5-10 years 10-15 years 15-20 years »20 years 2012
Yo % £m £m £m £m £m
Loans due to parent and
fellow subsidiary
undertakings
Fixed rate 4963 57 3970 2956 590 1 246 8 1,529 5
Floating rate 1019 12 - 194 174 - 368
RPI inked 1540 23 - 341 1373 826 1 997 5
Bank loans
Fixed rate 45 45 150 Q - - - 150 0
Floating rate 11 11 150 0 - - - 150 O
697 0 3491 744 8 10729 2,8638
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21. Finance lease creditor

The minimum payments under finance leases are as follows

2013 2012

£m Em
Within one year 315 307
Between one and two years 644 52 4
Between two and five years 1697 186 8
After five years 5350 5739

790 6 8438
Less future finance charges {259 9) (282 1)
Present value of lease obligations 5307 5617
The present values of minimum lease payments are as follows
2013 2012

£m £m
Within one year 131 232
Between one and two years 347 415
Between two and five years 117.0 136 1
Afier five years 3659 609
Present value of lease oblgations 5307 5617
Disclosed in the balance sheet as-
Creditors amounts falling due waithin one year 131 232
Creditors amounts faling due after more than one year 517 6 5385

5307 561 7

The remaining terms of finance leases ranged from 2 to 19 years at 31 March 2013 Interest terms are set at the
inception of the leases Leases with capital outstanding of £415 0 million (2012 £434 7 million) bear fixed interest at a
weighted average rate of 5 4 % (2012 5 4%) The lease obligations are secured over the related assets

There were no contingent rents, escalation clauses or matenal renewal or purchase options The terms of the finance
leases de not impose restnction on dvidend payments, additional debt or further leasing
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22. Financial instruments

a) Categories of financial assets held at fair value

2013 2012
£m £m

Fair value through profit and loss
Cross currency swaps - farr value hedges 445 677
Interest rate swaps - not hedge accounted 210 238
Energy swaps - cash flow hedges 09 24
Total denvative assets 664 939

b} Categories of financial habilities held at fair value

2013 2012
£m £m

Fair value through profit and loss
Cross currency swaps - not hedge accounted (84) {0 5}
Interest rate swaps - cash flow hedges (116 2) (80 4)
Interest rate swaps - not hedge accounted (140 1) (156 5)
Energy swaps - cash flow hedges {1 8) {1 4)
Foreign exchange forward contracts - not hedge accounted (01) (0 2)
(266 6) (239 0)

c) Derivatives

The company enters into a vanety of denvative financial mstruments to manage its exposure to interest rate and foreign
exchange rate nsk These nsks are managed centrally by the Severn Trent group treasury department Denvative
financtal instruments are not held for trading

interest rate swaps

The company has interest rate swaps In place to manage its exposure to interest rate nsk ansing from its anticipated
borrowing requirements for the remainder of AMP 5 Under the terms of the interest rate swaps, the company agrees
with other parties to exchange, mainly semi-annually, the difference between fixed contract and floating rate interest rate
swaps to hedge future debt Economically these act to fix the interest cost of debt which 1s denominated as floating rate,
but do not achieve hedge accounting under the stnct cntena of 1AS 39

Dunng the year the company terminated three of these contracts, with a notional value of £100 million, at a cash outlay
of £44 3 millien

The company has also entered into a number of interest rate swaps with future start dates in AMP 6 These contracis
enable the company to mitigate interest rate nsk on debt which 1s highly probable to be issued in AMP 6 to fund the
capital programme These have been accounted for as cash flow hedges

Cross currency swaps

The company holds cross currency swaps te manage the exchange rate nsk ansing from foreign currency borrowings
Under the terms of the contracts, the company agrees with other parties to swap the foreign currency proceeds into
sterling debt beanng interest based on LIBOR The terms of the receivable leg of the swap closely maich the terms of the
underlying debt hence these are expected to be effective hedges These are accounted for as far value hedges where
the strict cntena of IAS 39 are met
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Forward foreign exchange contracts
The company does not have a significant transactional exposure io exchange rates but holds a small number of forward

foreign exchange contracts which are not matenal These are not in designated hedge relationships and so are classified
as 'Held for trading’

Energy swaps

The company has entered into a senes of energy swaps under which it has agreed to exchange the difference between
fixed and market pnces of electncity at six-monthly intervals up to March 2015

d) Fair value measurements recognised in the balance sheet
The fair values of financial instruments that were measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, were based on
observable inputs other than quoted pnces for identical instnuments

The fair value of interest rate swaps 1s calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash flows esttmated and
discounted based on the application of yield curves denved from quoted interest rates

Cross currency swaps and forward exchange contracts are valued by reference to quoted forward exchange rates at the
balance sheet date and yield curves denved from quoted interest rates matching the matuntes of the contracts

e) Changes in value of financlal instruments at fair value
Changes in fair value which are included in the profit and loss account are set out in note 9

Changes in the amounts deferred in equity durning the penod retating to cash flow hedges were as follows

2013 2012

£m £m

Farr value losses deferred in equity at the start of the penod (87 0) (56)
Far value losses recognised in equity in the penod (37 6) (81 0)
Amounts transferred to finance costs in the penod 162 (0 4)
Fair value losses deferred in equity at the end of the penod (108 4) {87 0)

Severn Trent Water Annual Report and Accounts 2013 63




Severn Trent Water Limited

Notes to the financial statements

23. Provisions for liabilities and charges

Deferred taxation Restructunng Other provisions Total
£m £m £m £m
At 1 Apnl 2012 8431 18 76 852 5
Charged to profit and loss account {56} (07) (09) (7 2)
Utihsed in year (10 4) (0 4) 29) (137)
Unwinding of discount - - 06 06
At 31 March 2013 8271 07 44 8322
The restructunng provision reflects costs to be incurred in respect of committed programmes Substantially all of the
associated outflows are expected to occur within one year (2012 one year) of the balance sheet date
Other provisions consist of dilapidation costs and onerous leasehold property costs The associated outflows are
expected to anse over a penod of up to seven years (2012 eight vears) from the batance sheet date
24 Deferred tax
An analysis of the movements in the major deferred tax liabiibes and assets recognised by the company 1s set out
below
Fair value of
Accelerated tax Retrement financial
depreciation benefit obligation mnstruments Other Total
£m £m £m £m £m
At 1 Apnl 2011 1,0153 {75 9) (132) 161 9423
Charge to profit and loss account (22) 49 (17 6) 262 113
Credit to profit and loss account ansing from rate change (72 6} 31 05 (14} (70 4)
Credit to other comprehensive income - (17 7) (19 7) (0 5} (37 9)
Credit to other comprehensive income ansing from rate (55) 27 05 01 22)
change
At 1 Apnl 2012 9350 (829) (49 5) 405 8431
Charge to profit and loss account (50) - (14) 391 327
Credit to profit and loss account ansing from rate change (39 0) 14 11 (18) (38 3)
Credit to other comprehensive income - (B7) (49) - (13 8)
Charge to other comprehensive income ansing from rate — 21 10 01 32
change
At 31 March 2013 8910 (88 1) (537) 779 827 14
Deferred tax assets and liabiliies have been offset The offset amounts, which are to be recovered/settled after more
than 12 months, are as follows
2013 2012
£m Em
Deferred tax asset {151.2) (177 7}
Deferred tax habity 978 3 1,020 8
827 1 8431
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25. Share capital

2013 2012
£m £m

Total 1ssued and fully paid
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 10p each (2012 £1) 100 0 1,0000
1000 1,0000

On 22 March 2013 the company made a bonus 1ssue of 378 milhon £1 ordinary ‘B’ shares from the infrastructure reserve
that was created on transition to FRS 101 (see note 35) This increased share capital to £1,378 0 milkon

On the same date, the parent company passed a resolution to reduce the nominal value of each ordinary share to 10p
and cancelled the ordinary ‘B’ shares The reduction n share capital of £1,278 0 million that resulted has been credited
to reserves

26. Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve anses from gains or losses on Inferest rate swaps taken to equity under the hedge accounting
provisions of IAS 39 and the transition rules under IFRS 4

27. Infrastructure reserve

The infrastructure reserve arose on restating infrastructure assets to far value as deemed cost on transition to FRS 101
Dunng the year, bonus shares were Issued from this reserve Further details can be found in note 25
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28. Share based payments

At 31 March 2013 there were no options exercisable under any of the share based remuneration schemes (2012 i)
a) Long Term Incentive Plan {(LTIP)

Under the LTIP annual condittonal awards of shares in the ulimate parent company may be made to executive directors
and senior staff Awards are subject to performance conditions and continued employment throughout the vesting penod

Duning the year awards of 96,530 shares (2012 108,744 shares) were made with a fair value of £15 36 (2012 £12 16)
These awards are subject to achievement of tumover and profit targets in the year ending 31 March 2014

b) Employee Sharesave Scheme

Under the terms of the Sharesave Scheme, the board of the ulimate parent company may grant the nght to purchase
ordinary shares in Severn Trent Plc to those employees who have entered into an HMRC approved Save As You Eamn
contract for a penod of three, five or seven years

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options exercised dunng the pencd was £16 49
(2012 £1500) The options outstanding at 31 March 2013 had a weighted average option pnce of £10 26 (£9 49} and a
weighted average remaining contractual Iife of 3 13 years (2012 2 89 years)

c) Share Matching Plan {SMP}

Under the Share Matching Plan members of the Executive Committee receive matching share awards over those shares
which have been acquired under the deferred share component of the annual bonus scheme Matching shares may be
awarded at a maximum ratto of one matching share for every one deferred share and are subject to a three year vesting
penod Dunng the year matching shares were awarded ataratioof 0 510 1

Matching shares are subject to total shareholder retum over three years measured relative to the companies ranked 51-
150 by market capitalisation in the FTSE Index (excluding investment trusts) This replicates the LTIP performance
condition for the July 2010 award

The number of shares subject to an award will increase to reflect dmvidends paid through the performance penod on the
basis of such notional dividends being reinvested at the then prevailing share pnce Awards will normally vest as soon as
the Remuneration Committee determines that the performance condittons have been met prowvided that the participant
remains in employment at the end of the performance penod

During the year 17,676 {2012 18,251) matching shares with a fair value of £11 43 (2012 £8 84) were awarded to 9
(2012 9) employees

d) Share Incentive Plan (SIP)
Under the SIP the board may grant share awards to employees of group companies Dunng the year the board has
announced that it will make awards under the SIP based on perfermance against Severn Trent Water's targets for its Key

Performance Indicators Elgible employees will be entitled to shares to a maximum vale of £750 It 1s expected that
these awards will be made in August 2013 SIP shares vest with the employee on the date of grant
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29 Cash flow statement .

a) Reconciliation of operating profit to operating cash flows

2013 2012
£m £m
Profit before interest and tax 5115 508 0
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 2614 252 1
Amortisation of intangible assets 289 287
Pension service cost 232 226
Curtailment credit - (23 1)
Pension contnbutions (32 5) (51 1)
Share based payments charge 66 39
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment {(119) (4 2)
Deferred income movement ©3) (86)
Provisions charged to the income statement (16) 17
Utiisation of provisions for liabihties and charges (3 3) (4 2)
Decreasef/(increase) in stocks 0.2 (01}
Increase in debtors (19 6) {118 5)
Decrease In creditors 4.3 104
Cash generated from operations 7579 6176
Tax paid (53 5} (67 8)
Net cash generated from operating activities 704 4 549 8
b) Non-cash transactions
No additions to property, plant and equipment dunng the year were financed by new finance leases (2012 nil) Assets
transferred from developers were £23 0 milion (2012 £37 0 million)
c) Exceptional cash flows
The following cash flows arose from items classified as exceptional in the income statement
2013 2012
£m £m
Restructunng costs {4 4) (14 4)
Proceeds on disposal of fixed assets 151 -
107 (14 4)

Severn Trent Water Annual Report and Accounts 2013 67




Severn Trent Water Limited

Notes to the financial statements

d) Reconciliation of movement in cash and cash equivalents to movement in net debt

As at RP! uplift on Other As at

1 Apnl Farr value ingdex-inked non cash 31 March

2012 Cash flow adjustmenis debt movements 2013

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Cash and cash equivalents g3 3283 - - - 3286

Loans receivable from other group

companies 104 4 - - - 13 1057

Loans payable to other group companies (3,569 8) (247 6) 34 (32 4) 14 (3,845 0)

Bank loans {610 3) {1000} - (74) -~ (717 7)
Other loans - - - - - -

Finance leases (561 7) 291 - - 19 (5307)
Cross currency swaps 671 - (11 3) - (197) 361

Net debt {4,570 0) 98 (79) (39 8) (15 1) (4,623.0)

30. Financial commitments

Capial commitments are as follows

2013 2012
£m £m
Contracted for but not provided for 2149 1598

In addition to these commitments, the company has longer term expenditure plans which include investments to achieve
improvements in performance mandated by Ofwat and to provide for growth in demand for water and sewerage services

At the balance sheet date, the company had outstanding commitments for future mimimum lease paymenis under non-
cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows

2013 2012

£m £m

Within one year 19 13
Between two and five years 6.2 51
After five years 54 49
135 113

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the company for certain of its office properties, plant and

equipment
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31. Retirement benefit scheme

The company i1s the sponsonng employer of the defined benefit pension schemes operated by the Severn Trent group in
the UK As there 1s no contractual agreement cr stated policy for allocating the net defined benefit cost to individual
group entities this company has recognised the full cost and deficit

The amounts disclosed below are the plan as a whole as presented in these financial statements
a) Defined benefit pension schemes

(1) Amount included in the balance sheet ansing from the company's obligations under defined benefit pension
schemes

2013 2012
£Em £m
Fair value of scheme assets
Equities 877 2 798 6
Gilts 2746 2352
Corporate bonds 3609 3391
Property 147 8 1057
Hedge funds 558 526
Cash 80 260
Total fair value of assets 1,724 3 1,557 2
Present value of the defined benefit obligations - funded schemes {2,098 7) (1,894 4)
{374 4) (337 2)
Present value of the defined benefit obligations - unfunded schemes (9 3) (86)
Liability recogmised in the balance sheet (383 7) (345 8)
Movements in the fair value of the scheme assets were as follows
2013 2012
£m £m
Fair vatue at 1 Apnl 1,557 2 1,473 4
Expected return on scheme assets 88 2 1007
Company contnbutions 325 511
Contribution from intra-group asset backed funding arrangement 82 -
Other contnbutions from Severn Trent group companies 28 24
Contnbutions from scheme members 51 56
Actuanal gains/(losses) recogrised in the statement of comprehensive iIncome 101 3 (45)
Benefits paid (71 0) {71 5)
Fair value at 31 March 1,724 3 1,557 2

Other contnbutions from Severn Trent group companies are included in actuanal gains/lcsses recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income
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Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations were as follows

2013 2012
£m £m
Present value at 1 Apnl 1,903 0 1,7655
Service cost 228 226
Past service cost 04 -
Interest cost 92 2 977
Net curtailment gain - {23 1)
Contnbutions fream schemea members 51 56
Actuanal losses recognised in the statement of comprehensive iIncome 1555 106 2
Benefits paid {71 0) (71 5)
Present value at 31 March 2,1080 1,903 0
Of which
2013 2012
£m £m
Amounts relating to funded schemes 2,087 1,894 4
Amounts relating to unfunded schemes 93 86
Present value at 31 March 21080 1,903 0

(i) Amounts recognised in the profit and loss account in respect of these defined benefit pension schemes

2013 2012
£m £m
Amounts charged to operating costs
Current service cost (22 8) (22 6)
Exceptional curtalment gain - 231
Past service cost {0 4) -
(23 2} 05

Amounts charged to finance costs
Interest cost (92 2) (97 7)
Amounts credited to finance income
Expected return on scheme assets 882 1007
Total amount credited/(charged) to the profit and loss account (27 2) 35

The actual return on scheme assets was a gain of £189 5 milhon (2012 gain of £95 9 milhon)

Actuanal gatns and losses for the current and pnor year are reported in the statement of comprehensive iIncome The
cumulative amount of actuanal gains and losses recogrised In equity since the adoption of the recognition and
measurement principles of IFRS s a net loss of £334 2 million {2012 net loss of £280 1 milhon}

In addition, contnbutions made by other Severn Trent group entities are alsc included n actuanal gamns and iosses
recogruised in the statement of comprehensive income
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{in) Background

The Severn Trent group operates two defined benefit pension schemes in the UK, covenng the majonty of UK
employees The defined benefit pension schemes are funded to cover future salary and pension increases and their
assets are held in separate funds administered by trustees The trustees are required to act in the best interests of the
schemes' beneficlanes A formal actuarial valuation of each scheme 1s carried out on behalf of the trustees at tnennial
intervals by an independent professionally qualfied actuary Under the defined benefit pension schemes, members are
entitled to retirement benefits calculated as a proportion (varying between 'ty and Ygo for each year of service) of their
salary for the final year of employment with the group or, If higher, the average of the tughest three consecutive years’
salary in the last ten years of employment

The defined benefit pension schemes will close to future accrual on 31 March 2015 A new defined contnbution pension
scheme has been estabhshed and members of the defined benefit pension schemes will then become members of the
new defined contnbution pension scheme The existing defined contnbution pension scheme will alse be replaced by the
new pension arrangements with effect from 1 Apnl 2015

From 1 Apnl 2012 new employees have been automatically enrolled into this scheme and those employees who were
not members of a Severn Trent scheme were automatically enrolled into this scheme from 1 Apni 2013

The final salary sections of the pension schemes listed below are closed to new entrants and the age profile of scheme
participants 1s expected to nse and hence service costs are also expected 10 nse until the schemes are closed to future
accrual

The schemes typically expose the company to actuanal nsks such as market nsk, interest rate nsk and longevity nsk

The UK defined benefit pension schemes and the date of their last formal actuanal valuabon are as follows

Date of last formal actuaria) vatuation

Severn Trent Pension scheme (STPS)* 31 March 2010
Severn Trent Mirror Image Pension Scheme 31 March 2010

“The STPS 15 by far the largest of the Severn Trent group’s UK defined benefit schemes

The group has an obligation to pay pensions to a number of former employees, whose benefits would otherwise have
been restncted by the Finance Act 1989 earnings cap Prowvision for such benefits amounting to £9 3 million (2612 £8 6
million) 1s included as an unfunded scheme within the retirement benefit obligation

{iv) Actuarial assumptions

The major assumptions used in the valuation of the STPS (also the approximate weighted average of assumptions
used for the valuations of all group schemes) were as follows

2013 2012
% %
Prnce inflation 320 310
Salary increases 300 360
Pension increases in payment 320 310
Pension increases in deferment 320 310
Discount rate 4 40 490
Long term rate of return on
Equities 6 60 680
Gilts 310 330
Comporate bonds 430 490
Property 550 580
Hedge funds 6 00 630
Cash 310 390
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The assumption for pnce inflation 1s denved from the difference between the yields on longer term fixed rate gilis and
on index-inked gilts The discount rate 1s set by reference to AA rated stering 18 year corporate bonds

The expected rate of return on scheme assets 15 based on market expectations at the beginning of the penod for
returns over the life of the benefit obligation For gilts and corporate bonds the expected rates of return are based on
market yields For equities, property and hedge funds, a nsk premium has been added to the gilt rate

The mortality assumptions are based on those used n the tnennial valuation of the STPS as at 31 March 2010 updated
by a further investigaton camed out in connection with the 2013 valuation, which indicated that members' hfe
expectancy had not been as high as the previous investigation had predicted

The mortality assumptions adopted at the year end and the life expectancies at age 65 implied by the assumptions are
as follows

2013 2012
Mortality table used
- men "SAPS" SINMA_L "SAPS" S1NMA_L
- women SINFA_L SINFA_L
Morality table compared with standard table
- men 116% 110%
- women 92% 78%
Future improvement per annum 10% 0 5%
Remaining ife expectancy for members currently aged 65 (years)
- men 21.5 212
- women 24.6 251
Remaining Iife expectancy at age 65 for members currently aged 45 (years)
- men 22.7 218
- women 262 259

The calculation of the scheme liabiliies 1s sensitive to the actuanal assumptions and wn particular to the assumptions
relating to discount rate, pnice inflatton and mortality The following table summanses the estimated impact on scheme
labiites and service cost resulting from changes to key actuanal assumptions whilst holding all other assumptions
constant

Assumption Change in assumption Impact on scheme liabilities
Discount rate Increase/decrease by 0 1% Decrease/increase by £38 nmullion
Pnce inflation Increase/decrease by 0 1% Increase/decrease by £35 million
Mortality Increase in hfe expectancy by 1 year Increase by £55 million

In reality, interrelationships exist between the assumptions, particularly between the discount rate and pnce nflation The
above analysis does not take into account the effect of these interrelationships

{v) Effect on future cash flows
Contnbution rates are set in consultation with the trustees for each scheme and each participating employer

The average duration of the benefit obhgation at the end of the year 1s 18 years (2012 18 years) The expected cash
flows payable from the scheme are presented in the graph below
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Severn Trent Pension Scheme - expected benefit payments
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It 1s anticipated that normal contributions to the scheme in the year ended 31 March 2014 will be unchanged The
tnennial valuations for both schemes for the year ending 31 March 2013 is in progress Pending completion of this
valuation, future lump sum deficit coentnbutions will include a payment of £10 million per annum n cash and a further £8
rmillion per annum through an asset backed funding arrangement
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{vi} History of actual and expected performance of pension scheme assets and habilities

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

£m Em £m £m £m

Present value of defined benefit obligations {2,1080) (19030) (1,7655) (1,7479) (1,3080)
Fair value of scheme assets 1,724 3 1,557 2 1,473 4 1,393 0 1,075 0
Deficit in schemes (383 7) {345 8B) (292 1) {354 9) (233 0)
Difference between actual and expected return on scheme assets 1013 (45) 122 270 4 (329 8)
Expenence adjustments on scheme habilities (155 4) (106 2) 105 1 198 (79)

b) Defined contnibution pension scheme

The company also operates a defined contnbution scheme This scheme 1s operated as part of the Severn Trent Group
Pension Scheme and commenced operation on 1 September 2001 The pension charge for this scheme for the year
ended 31 March 2013 was £5 7 miliion (2012 £4 2 mullion)

32. Contingent liabilities

The banking arrangements of the company operate on a pooled basis with certain fellow group undertakings Under
these arrangements participating companies guarantee each others balances only to the extent that their credit balances

can be offset against overdrawn balances of cther Sevem Trent group companies As at 31 March 2013, the company
had contingent labiliies of £0 2 mullion (2012 £0 8 mullion)

33. Related party transactions

Transactions with the directors of the company are disclosed in note 7

The retirement benefit schemes entered into by the company are considered to be related parties Details of transactions
and balances with the retirement benefit schemes are disclosed in note 31

34. Ultimate parent undertaking

The immediate parent undertaking 1s Sevemn Trent Draycote Limited

The ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party 1s Severn Trent Plc, which is the parent underntaking and controlling
party of the smallest and largest group to consolidate these financial statements Copies of the Sevemn Trent Plc
consolidated financial statements can be obtained from Severn Trent Pic's registrars at Equiniti, Aspect House, Spencer
Road, Lancing, West Sussex BN99 6DA
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35. Transition to FRS 101

This 15 the first year that the company has presented its financial statements under FRS 101 The last financial
statements prepared under the previous UK accounting framework were for the year ending 31 March 2012 Therefore

the date of transition was 1 Apnl 2011

Reconciliation of equity at 1 April 2011

As
previously Effect of Under FRS
reported transibion 101
£m £m £m
Fixed assets
Intangible fixed assets - 123 5 1235
Tangible fixed assets 6,029 8 3728 6,402 6
Denvative financial assels - 776 776
Investments 2357 - 2357
6,265 5 5739 6,839 4
Current assets
Stock 63 (02) 61
Debtors amounts falling due in more than one year 432 27 459
Debtors amounts falling due within one year 345 4 - 345 4
Denvative financial assets - 257 257
Cash at bank and in hand 101 - 101
4050 28 2 433 2
Creditors amounts falling due within one year (552 3) (18 0) (570 3)
Net current liabilities (147 3) 10.2 (137 1)
Total assets less current liabilities 6,118 2 584 1 6,702 3
Creditors amounts faling due after more than one year (3,912 8) (594 8) {4,507 6)
Retirement benefit cbligation (198 4) (93 7) (292 1)
Prowvisions for habithes and charges (438 3) (512 8) (951 1)
Net assets 1,568 7 (617 2) 9515
Capital and reserves
Share capital 1,000 0 - 1,000 0
Profit and loss account 568 7 (938 4} (369 7)
Hedging reserve - {56 8) (56 8)
Infrastructure reserve - 3780 3780
Shareholder's funds 1,568.7 (617 2) 9515
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Reconciliation of equity at 31 March 2012

As
previously Effect of Under FRS
reported transition 101
£m £m £m
Fixed assets
Intangible fixed assets - 1043 104 3
Tangible fixed assets 86,1111 440 4 65515
Denvative financial assets - 705 705
Investments 4135 (65 6) 3479
6,524 6 5496 7,074 2
Current assets
Stock 64 (0 1) 63
Debtors amounts fallng due in more than one year 1376 168 8 306 4
Debtors amounts faling due within one year 3706 (27) 3679
Denvative financial assets - 234 234 |
Cash at bank and in hand 03 - 03 |
514 9 189 4 7043
Creditors amounts falling due within one year (686 8) (57 1) (743 9)
Net current (liabilities)/assets (171 9) 1323 {39 6)
Total assets less current liabilities 6,3527 6819 7,0346
Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year (4,348 2) (744 0} (5,092 2)
Retirement benefit obhigation (170 1) (175 7) (345 8)
Provisions for habihties and charges (513 8) (338 7) (852 5)
Net assets 1,320 6 {576 5) 744 1
Capital and reserves
Share capital 1,000 0 - 1,000 0
Profit and loss account 3206 (836 1) (515 5)
Hedging reserve - (118 4) (118 4)
Infrastructure reserve - 3780 3780
Shareholder’s funds 1,320 6 (576 5) 744 1
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Reconcihiation of profit for the year ended 31 March 2012

As

previously Effectof  Under FRS

reported transition 101
£m £m £m

Turnover 1,457 5 - 1,457 5
Operating costs before exceptional items (954 7) (5 4) {961 1)
Net exceptional iIncome 103 13 1186
Total operating costs (944 4) (4 0) {949 5)
Profit before interest and tax 513 1 (51) 508 0
Income from share in group undertakings 35 - 35
Interest receivable 927 1186 104 3
Interest payable (334 9) {3 6) (338 4)
Losses on financial instruments - {70 3} (70 3)
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 274 4 {67 3) 207 1
Taxation on profit on ordinary activites (176 0) 167 1 (89)
Taxation on exceptional items 984 998 198 2

Transitional adjustments

Under FRS 101, the company applies the recognition and measurement requirements of EU-adopted IFRS, but makes
amendments where necessary n order to comply with the Companies Act 2006 Act and The Large and Medium-sized
Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 (S| 2008/410), given that the financial statements that
it prepares are Companies Act accounts

The company 1s included in the consolidated accounts of its ultmate parent company Severn Trent Plc Severn Trent Pl
adopted IFRS for the first time in the year ended 31 March 2006 In accordance with IFRS 1 ‘First-tme adoption of
International Financial Reporting Standards’, the company has measured its assets and liabihties at the carrying amounts
that would be included in the Severn Trent Plc consolidated financial statements

The differences between the amounts previously reported and those under FRS 101 are shown above
The key areas of difference are as follows
Fixed assets

Intangtble assets
Under IAS 38 ‘Intangible Assets’, software and development costs, which are capitalised as tangible fixed assets under
the previous reporting framework, are classified as intangible assets This has led to a reclassification of £104 3 million
at 31 March 2012

Infrasiructure assets

Previously, the company's water and waste water infrastructure assets were accounted for in accordance with the
renewals accounting provisions of Financial Reporting Standard 15 ‘Tangible Fixed Assets’ Such provisions are not
present within International Accounting Standard 16 '‘Property, plant and equipment’ {IAS 16)

Under renewals accounting, the water and waste water infrastructure networks are assumed to be single assets
Expenditure on infrastructure assets relating to increases in capacity or enhancements to the networks and on
maintaining the operating capability of the networks in accordance with defined standards of service 1s capitaised The
depreciation charged is the estimated anticipated level of annual expenditure required to maintain the operating
capability of the networks Grants and contnbutions relating to the maintenance of the operating capability of the
infrastructure network are taken nto account in determining this charge Grants and contnbutions relating to
enhancement of the infrastructure network are deducted from the costs of fixed assets
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Under IAS 16 this treatment may not be apphed Significant parts within the infrastructure networks have been identfied
and useful lives and residual values determined so that each significant part may be depreciated indmdually

Infrastructure assets have been valued at the carrying amount at which they have been included in Severn Trent Pic's
consohdated financial statements This increases net assets by £540 0 nullion as at 31 March 2012 compared with that
previously reported Included in this figure are capitabsed borrowing costs of £23 9 million and assets transferred from
customers of £131 0 milhon which have been recognised at fair value under IFRIC 18 'Transfers of assets from
customers” Grants and contrnbutions of £234 5 million relating to the enhancement of the infrastructure network have
been credited to deferred iIncome Those related to maintaining the operating capability of the infrastructure network are
recognised in the profit and loss account

The significant parts recogrised within the water and waste water networks have been based upon asset class since no
single pipe or section of sewer 1s significant compared with the total value of the networks This has led to the
identfication of 4 significant parts (impounding reservoirs, raw water aqueducts, mains and sewers) which have been
assigned zero residual values at the end of their useful ives The lives allocated to these significant paris range from 80
— 250 years The depreciation on these assets results in an additional charge of £28 2 million in the 2012 FRS 101 profit
and loss account compared with that previousty reported

Under the previous reporting framework, maintenance expenditure was included in the calculation of the infrastructure
renewals charge and was smoothed over an Asset Management Penod (AMP) Under JAS 16, repairs and maintenance
expenditure is charged to the profit and loss account in the penod i1 which it 1s incurred This wall introduce a level of
volatihity into the profit and loss account since the level of such expenditure can fluctuate significantly from one reporting
penod to the next, over a single AMP The difference in the infrastructure renewals charge previously reporied and the
repairs and maintenance expenditure for the year results in an additional credit to the profit and loss account of £7 4
million to that previousty reported

Financial instruments
Under FRS 101, the company must apply fAS 3§ ‘Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement’ {(IAS 39)

investments

Amounts of £65 6 milhon, which were previously recognised as investments in subsidiary entities, are classified as locans
and other receivables under IAS 39 and therefore, have been reclassified as debtors in the balance sheet as at 31 March
2012

Derivatives
The most significant impact of applying IAS 39 i1s in relation to denvatives, principally interest rate swaps and cross
currency swaps that are held to hedge the company’s exposure to changes in interest rates and exchange rates

Under IAS 39 the fair value of these denvatives must be recognised on the balance sheet, with fair value movements
being recognised 1n the profit and loss account unless cash flow hedge accounting 1s applied This has the potential to
introeduce considerable volatility in the profit and loss account and balance sheet The net impact of recognising the fair
value of denvatives on the balance sheet at 31 March 2012 1s {0 reduce net assets by £145 2 millon and reduce the
profit for the year by £82 0 millon

Hedge accounting

Where strict critena are met, IAS 39 permits hedge accounting to be applied to reduce volatiity in the profit and loss
account and balance sheet Where debt instruments are designated for fair value hedge accounting, the carrying value
of debt 1s adjusted through profit and loss for changes in value that are attnbutable to the hedged nsk  The change in
value offsets the fair value movement on the denvative In order to apply this treatment, it must be demonstrated that
the denvative has been, and will continue to be, an effective hedge of the hedged nsk in the underying debt within the
cntena set out n IAS 39 Any hedge ineffectiveness, provided it 1s wathin the range deemed acceptable by IAS 39,15
recogrised immediately within the profit and loss account

Fair value hedge accounting has been applied for the majonty of the company's currency debt instruments, resufting in a
fair value adjustment to debt of £66 1 mihon as at 31 March 2012 A fair value gain on debt of £5 9 million was
recognised in the year ended 31 March 2012, offsetting a loss on the hedging instruments of £4 8 million  All designated
hedges were effective in the penod

Where hedge accounting 1s not applied, currency debt has been revalued at the spot rate at the balance sheet date
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In additicn, the company holds a portfolio of forward starting interest rate swaps which are designated as cash flow
hedges for future debt instruments expected to be raised in the remainder of AMP 5 to finance the company’s capital
programme The fair value of these swaps at 31 March 2012 was £80 4 millon Fair value movements are deferred in
equity until they can be recycled through the profit and loss account to offset the future profit and toss effect of changes
in hedged nsk

Finance leases

Leases which were previously classidied as operating leases under the previous reporting framework have been
reclassified as finance leases under the provisions of IAS 17 ‘Leases’ This has resulted in a reduction In net assets as
at 31 March 2012 of £113 2 million

Retirement benefit obligations

Under FRS 17 'Retirement Benefits’ (FRS 17) the company recognised its share of the underlying assets and ltabilities of
the two defined benefit pensions schemes that are operated by the Severn Trent group

Under IAS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’ (IAS 19) the sponsoning employer recognises the net defined benefit cost and
associated retirement benefit obligation of the pension scheme The company 1s the sponsorning employer of the Sevemn
Trent Pension Scheme and the Severn Trent Mirror Image Pension Scheme As a result the company 1s required to
recognise the net defined benefit cost and associated retirement benefit obligation of both schemes in full  This has
resulted in a reduction in net assets of £27 7 million at 31 March 2012 and in profit of £0 2 millson for the year ended 31
March 2012

In 2012 the company made a payment of £98 million to a subsidiary entity, being the net present value of future cash
flows to be made into the pension scheme as part of an asset backed funding arrangement, as agreed with the Trustees
Under the previous reporting framework this was treated as a reduction to the retirement benefit obigation This
payment does not reduce the deficit from a Severn Trent Plc group perspective and therefore, 1s presented as a
prepayment within debtors under FRS 101

In additton, under FRS17 a deferred tax asset of £53 7 million was disclosed as a reduction to the pension deficit on the
balance sheet Deferred tax on pensions is disclosed within the deferred tax provision under IAS 19

Deferred tax

Under the previous reporting framework, the company had elected to apply discounting to ts deferred tax labihity Under
IAS 12 'Income Taxes' (IAS 12}, discounting of deferred tax balances i1s not permitted

The impact of eiminating discounting from the accounting for deferred tax is o reduce the deferred tax charge in the
year ended 31 March 2012 by £156 3 milhion and to increase the deferred tax liability at that date by £210 0 million

1AS 12 takes a different conceptual approach o deferred tax from that applied by FRS 19 'Deferred Tax' (FRS 19)
Under IAS 12 deferred tax must be provided for on all temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset or
hability in the balance sheet and its tax base whereas under FRS 19 deferred tax must be provided for on timing
differences between the treatment of items in the tax computation and the profit and loss account This change in
approach results in deferred tax provisions under FRS 101 for items which under FRS 19 would be permanent
differences and hence would not be prowided for The impact on the company’s FRS 101 financial statements 1s to
decrease the deferred tax charge in the year ended 31 March 2012 by £20 1 million and to increase the deferred tax
hability at that date by £190 2 million

Other FRS 101 adjustments result in an increase in the deferred tax charge of £9 0 milhon in the year ended 31 March
2012 and a decrease In the deferred tax liability at that date of £7 8 million

The net impact of the above adjustments and the reclassification of the deferred tax pension asset from the retirement
benefit obligaticn to deferred tax provisions i1s to increase the deferred tax liability as at 31 March 2012 by £338 7 million
These adjustments change the deferred tax charge of £108 5 rmihon in the year ended 31 March 2012 to a £58 9 milhion
credit
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Statement of disclosure of information to auditor

In the case of each of the persons who are directors of the
company at the date when this report was approved so far
as each of the directors are aware, there I1s no relevant audit
information of which the company’s auditor 1s unaware, and
each of the directors has taken all the steps that he/she
ought to have taken as a director In order to make
himselffherself aware of any relevant audit information and
to establish that the company’s auditor 1s aware of that
information

Relevant audit iInformation means information needed by the
company's audstor in connection with prepanng their report
This confirmation 1s given and should be interpreted In
accordance with the provisions of section 418 of the
Companies Act 2006

Water Industry Act 1991

Further to the requirements of company law, the directors
are required to prepare financial statements which comply
with the requirements of Condition F Instrument of
Appointment of the company as a water and sewerage
undertaker under the Water Industry Act 1991 and
Regulatory Accounting Guidelines ssued by the Water
Services Regulation Authonty This additionally requires the
directors to

a) Confirm that, in their opinion, the company has sufficient
financal and management resources for the next twelve
months,

b) Coanfirm that, in their opinion, the company has sufficient
nghts and assets which would enable a special admunistrator
to manage the affarrs, business and property of the
company,

¢) Report to the Water Services Regulation Authonty
changes in the company’s activittes which may be matenal
in relation to the company's ability to finance its regulated
activities,

d) Undertake transactions entered into by the appointed
business, with or for the benefit of asscciated companies or
other businesses or activikes of the appointed business, at
arm’s length, and

e) Keep proper accountng records which comply with
Condiion F

Diversification and the protection of the core business -~
Condition F6a

Sevem Trent Water hereby advises

a) That in the opinion of the directors, the Appointee will
have available to it suffictent financial resources and facilities
to enable it to carry out, for at least the next 12 months, the
Regulated Actmvity (including the investiment programme
necessary to fulfil the Appomntee’s obligations under the
Appeintment), and

b) That in the opinion of the directors, the Appointee will for
at least the next 12 months, have avalable to 1t
management resources which are sufficient to enable it to
carry out those functions

Ring Fencing — Condition K3 1

In accordance with the requirements of the Water Services
Regulation Authonty, the board confirmed that, as at 31
March 2013, it had available to it sufficient nghts and assets,
not including financial resources, which would enable a
special administrator to manage the affars, business and
property of the company in order that the purposes of a
special administration order could be achieved d such an
order were made

Tony Wray _{
Chief Executive

For and on behalf of the board
29 May 2013
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Report of the auditor

To the Water Services Regulation Authonity and the Directors of Severn Trent Water Limited

Report of the independent auditor to the Water Services
Regulation Authornity (“WSRA") and Directors of Severn
Trent Water Limited

We have audited the Regulatory Accounts of Sevemn Trent
Water Limited for the year ended 31 March 2013 on pages
83 to 101 which compnse

» the regulatory histoncal cost accounting statements,
compnsing the regulatory tustoncal cost profit and loss
account, the regulatory histoncal cost balance sheet,
the regulatory histoncal cost statement of total
recognised gains and losses and the histoncal cost
reconcihation between statutory and regulatory
accounts and the related notes to the histoncal cost
accounting statements Including the statement of
accounting pohcies, and

» the regulatory current cost accounting statements for
the appointed business, comprising the current cost
profit and loss account, the current cost balance sheet,
the current cost cash flow statement and the related
notes to the current cost financial statements, including
the statement of accounting policies

These Regulatory Accounts have been prepared
accordance with the basis of preparaton and accounting
policies set out in the Statement of Accounting Policies

This report s made, on terms that have been agreed, solely
to the Company and the WSRA n order to meet the
requirements of Conditon F of the Instrument of
Appointment granted by the Secretary of State for the
Environment {o the Company as a water and sewerage
undertaker under the Water Industry Act 1991 Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Company and the WSRA those matters that we have agreed
to state to them in our report, In order (a) to assist the
Company to meet its obligation under Condition F to procure
such a report and (b) to facilitate the camrying out by the
WSRA of its regulatory functions, and for no other purpose
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company
and the WSRA, for our audit work, for this report or for the
opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of the WSRA, the directors
and auditors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’
Responsibilities set out on page [x], the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the Regulatory Accounts
and for therr farr presentation in accordance with the basis of
preparation and accounting policies Our responsibility 1s to
audit and express an opinion on the Regulatory Accounts In
accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK
and Iretand), except as stated in the *‘Scope of the audit of
the Regulatory Accounts’ below, and having regard to the
guidance contained in Audit 05/03 ‘Reporting to Regulators
of Regulated Entities’ 1ssued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales Those standards require
us to comply with the Audiing Practices Board's Ethical
Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the Regulatory Accounts

An audit nvolves obtaining evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the Regulatory Accounts sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the Regulatory Accounts are free
from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or
error This ncludes an assessment of whether the
accounting policies are appropnate to the company's
crcumstances and have been consistently appled and
adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant
accounbing estimates made by the directors, and the overall
presentation of the Regulatory Accounts In addibon, we
read all the financial and non-financial information presented
with the regulatory accounts to identfy matenal
inconsistencies with the audited Regulatory Accounts If we
become aware of any apparent misstatemenis or
inconsistencies, we consider the implications for our report

We have not assessed whether the accounting policies are
appropnate o the circumstances of the Company where
these are laid down by Condition F Where Condition F does
not give specific guidance on the accounting policies to be
followed, our audit includes an assessment of whether the
accounting policies adopted in respect of the transactions
and balances requred to be included in the Regulatory
Accounts are consistent with those used n the preparation
of the statutory financial statements of the company
Furthermore, as the nature, form and content of Regulatory
Accounts are determined by the WSRA, we did not evaluate
the overall adequacy of the presentation of the information,
which would have been required if we were to express an
audit opinion under Interational Standards on Auditing (UK
& Ireland)

The Company has presented the allocation of operating
costs and assets n accordance with the accounting
separation policy set out in note 2(y) to the accounts and its
Accounting Separation Methodology Statement published on
the Company’'s website in June 2013, (the *Methodology
Statement™) We are not required to assess whether the
methods of cost allocation set out in the Methodology
Statement are appropnate to the circumstances of the
Company or whether they meet the requirements of the
WSRA, which would have been required If we were to
express an audit opimion under International Standards on
Auditing (UK & lretand)

Opinion on Regulatory Accounts
In our cpinion, the Regulatory Accounts

o faily present in accordance with Condiion F, the
Regulatory Accounting Guidelines 1ssued by the WSRA,
in respect of the Accounting Separation Tables the
Methodology Statement, and the accounting policies
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Report of the auditor

To the Water Services Regulation Authonty and the Directors of Severn Trent Water Limited

Opimon on Regulatory Accounts continued

set out on page 89, the state of the Company’s affairs at
31 March 2013 on an histoncal cost and current cost
basis, and its histoncal cost and current cost profit and
its current cost cash flow for the year then ended,

« have been properly prepared in accardance with
Condition F, the Regulatory Accounting Guidelines, the
accounting policies and the Methodology statement

Emphasis of matter - Basis of preparation

Without modifying our opinion on the Regulatory Accounts,
we draw attention to the fact that the Regulatory Accounts
have been prepared in accordance with Condition F of the
Appointment and the Regulatory Accounting Guidetines, the
accounting policies set out in the statement of accounting
policies and, in the case of the regulatory histoncal cost
accounting statements, under the histoncal cost convention

The Regulatory Accounts are separate from the statutory
financial statements of the Company and have not been
prepared under the basis of Financial Reporting Standard
101 Reduced Disclosure Framework (‘FRS101') Financial
information other than that prepared on the basis of FRS
101 does not necessanly represent a true and far view of
the financial performance or financial position of a company
as shown n statutory financial statements prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 2006 Furthermore, the
regulatory histoncal cost accounting statements on pages 83
and 84 have been drawn up in accordance with Regulatory
Accounting Guideline 3 07, in that infrastructure renewals
accounting as applied in previous years should continue to
be applled and accordingly, that the relevant sections of
International Accounting Standards 16 and 37 have been
disapphed The effect of this departure from FRS 101 and a
reconciliation of the balance sheet drawn up on this basis to
the balance sheet drawn up in accordance with FRS 101
under the Companies Act 2006 1s given on page 85

QOpinion on other matters prescribed by Condition F

Under the terms of our contract, we have assumed
responsibility to provide those additional opinions required
by Condition F in relation to the accounting records In our
opincn

= proper accounting records have been kept by the
appointee as required by paragraph 3 of Condition F,
and

« the Regulatory Accounts are in agreement with the
accounting records and retumns retatned for the purpose
of prepanng the Regulatory Accounts

age\Whitlock (Senior statutory auditor)
f& bnd on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Chgrterad Accountants and Statutory Auditor
Birmingham, United Kingdom
29 May 2013

Other matters

The nature, form and content of Regulatory Accounts
are determined by the WSRA [t 1s not appropnate for us
to assess whether the nature of the information being
reported upon 1s suitable or appropnate for the WSRA's
purposes Accordingly, we make no such assessment

Our opinion on the Regulatory Accounts Is separate
from our opinion on the statutory financial statements of
the Company for the year ended 31 March 2013 on
which we report, which are prepared for a different
purpose Our audit report in relation to the statutory
financial statements of the Company (our 'statutory
audit’) was made solely to the Company’s members, as
a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 QOur statutory audit work was
undertaken so that we nmight state to the Company's
members those matters we are required to state to them
in a statutory audit repert and for no other purpose In
these circumstances, to the fullest extent permitted by
law, we do not accept or assume responsibility for any
other purpose or to any other person to whom our
statutory audit report 1s shown or into whose hands it
may come save where expressly agreed by our prior
consent in wnting
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Regulatory accounts — historical cost financial statements

Profit and loss account year ended 31 March 2013

2013 2012
Non- Non-
Appointed  appointed Inter Appointed appointed Inter
business business segment Total business business segment Total
£m £&m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Turnover 1,492 2 104 - 15026 1,4385 90 - 14475
Operating costs {710 2) {10 1) 63 (7140) (6689} {(97) 61 (672 5)
Histoncal cost depreciation {256 5) - - (256.5) (2488) - - (248 8)
Other operating tncome 118 63 {6 3) 118 41 61 (61) 41
Operating profit 5373 66 - 543 9 5249 54 - 5303
Other income 21 18 - 39 19 22 - 41
Net interest payable {278 3) - - (278.3) (2454) - - {245 4)
Profit on ordinary activities hefore
taxation 2611 84 - 269 5 2814 76 - 2890
Taxation on profit on ordinary activities
- Current tax 92 (22) - 7.0 (65 6) {19 - (67 5)
- Deferred tax 30 - - 30 (108 5) - - (108 5)
Taxation 122 (22) - 100 (174 1) {19) - (176 Q)
Profit on ordinary activities after
taxation 2733 6.2 - 2795 107 3 57 - 1130
Dvidends {65 8) {6 2) - (7T20) (2603) 57) - (266 0}
?:at:med profit/(loss) for the financial 207§ ) ) 2075 (153 0) ) ) (153 0)
Statement of total recognised gains and losses year ended 31 March 2013
2013 2012
Non- Non-
Appointed appointed Inter Appointed appointed Inter
business business segment Total business business segment Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Profit for the financial year 2733 6.2 - 2795 107 3 57 - 1130
Actuanal gain/(loss) {47.2) - . (472) (1057) - - (105 7)
Tax (charge)/credit on actuanal
gain/(loss) 110 - - 110 283 - - 283
Tax on share based payments 07 - - 07 - - - -
Adjustment i respect of tax rate
change on deferred tax {22) - - {22) 29) - - (29)
Tax charge on pension contnbutions 13 - - 13 29 - - (2 9)
Total recognised gains and losses 236 9 62 . 243 1 24 1 57 B 29 8

for the financial year

Severn Trent Water Annual Report and Accounts 2013 83




Regulatory accounts — historical cost financial statements |

Balance sheet as at 31 March 2013

2013

2012

Appointed Non-appointed Appointed  Non-appointed
business business Total business business Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 6,257.5 - 6,257 5 6,113 4 - 6,113 4
Intangible assets 13 - 13 - - -
Investments - loan to group company 656 - 656 656 - 656
Investments - other 3479 - 3479 3479 - 3479
6,6723 - 6,672 3 6,526 9 - 6,526 9
Current assets
Stock 6.1 - 61 63 - 63
Debtors 427.5 - 4275 406 4 - 406 4
Short term deposits 326.6 - 3266 01 - 01
Cash at bank and in hand (54) 74 20 02 - 02
754.8 T4 762 2 4130 - 4130
Creditors amounts falling due
within one year
Creditors (391 8) (7 4) (399 2) (392 9) - (392 9)
Borrowings {169 4) - (169 4) (3,534 7) - (3,534 7)
Comoration tax payable 209 - 209 {36 8) - (36 8)
Infrastructure renewal accrual 47 - 47) (17 2) - {17 2)
{545 0) (7 4) (552 4) (3,981 6) - (3,981 6}
Net current habilities 2008 - 2098 (3,568 6) - (3,568 6)
Total assets less current habilities 6,882 1 - 6,882 1 2,958 3 - 2,958 3
Creditors amounts falling due after
more than one year
Borrowings (4,773 1) - {4,773.1) (1,044 4) - (1,044 4)
Other creditors (7 - (17) (18) - (18)
(4,774 8) - {4,774 8) (1,046 2) - (1,046 2)
Prowisions for kabilities and charges
- Deferred taxation {498 5) - (498 5) (504 6) - (504 6)
- Other provisions (51) - s1) (93) - (93)
Deferred income (37 6) - {37 6) (37 7) - (37 7)
Pension deficit {199 4) - {199 4) (170 1) - (170 1)
Net assets 1,366 7 - 1,366 7 1,190 4 - 1,190 4
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 1000 - 1000 1,0000 - 1,000 0
Profit and loss account 1,266 7 - 1,2667 190 4 - 190 4 |
Shareholder's funds 1,366 7 - 1,3667 1,190 4 - 1,190 4
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Regulatory accounts - historical cost financial statements

Reconciliation between statutory accounts and historical cost regulatory accounts

2013
£m
Profit and Loss Account/Income Statement
Turnover
Per FRS101 statutory accounts 1,511 0
Renewables Obligation Certfficate (ROC) income (8 4)
Per regulatory accounts 1,502 6 I
Operating profit
Per FRS101 statutory accounts 5115
Non operating income (3.9)
Histoncal cost infrastructure assets 06
Difference between infrastructure renewals charge and depreciation 11.9
Capitalisation difference - depreciation 24 4
Impairment of trade debtors (15)
Pensions 10
Other {01)
Per regulatory accounts 543 9
Balance Sheet
Tanglble assets
Net book value per FR$101 statutory accounts 6,7380
Infrastructure renewals accrual (117)
Cumulative impact of transfernng assets from customers {1551)
Grants and contnbutions deducted against fixed assets (231 7)
Recognition of Intangible assets 890
Transibonal fair value adjustment {378 0)
Capitalised borrowing costs {33.3)
Infrastructure renewals expenditure 989 1
Infrastructure renewals charge (962 7)
Infrastructure depreciation 2111
Other 28
Per regulatory accounts 6,257.5
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Regulatory accounts — current cost financial statements

Profit and loss account: appointed business year ended 31 March 2013

2013

2012

Water Sewerage Total Water Sewerage Total
Notes £m £m £m £Em £m £m
Turnover 4a
Unmeasured - household 3540 3733 727 3 3426 362 2 704 8
Unmeasured - non-household 34 92 12.6 34 92 126
Measured - household 1865 164 0 3505 176 3 160 7 3370
Measured - non-hgusehold 127 2 1755 3027 1320 159 0 2910
Trade effluent - 123 123 - 107 107
Bulk suppliesfintercompany paymentis 50 - 50 48 - 48
Other third party services 386 388 774 355 383 738
Other sources 18 26 44 11 27 38
Total Turnover 716 5 7757 1,492 2 6957 742 8 1,4385
Current operating cost - wholesale 4c (456 0) (443 6) (899.6) {423 8) {419 3) (843 1)
Current operating cost - retail 4c (58 7) (64 8) (123 5) (60 7) (65 8) (126 5)
Other operating iIncome 49 55 104 19 20 39
Working capital adjustment (30) {3 4} (6 4) (15) (17) {(32)
Current cost operating profit 2037 2694 4731 2116 2580 4696
Other income 21 19
Net interest payable {278 3) (245 5)
Financing adjustment 1138 114 4
Current cost profit before taxation 3107 3404
Taxation on profit on ordinary actvities
- Current tax 92 (65 6)
- Deferred tax 3.0 (108 5)
Taxation 122 (174 1)
Current cost profit attributable to
shareholders after taxation 3229 166 3
Dwidend (65 8) (260 3)
Current cost retained profit/(loss) 257 1 (94 0)
Net revenue movement out of tanff
basket 02 (0.4) {0 2) (0 2} 14 12
Back-billing amount identified 04 12 16 04 23 27

Statement of total recognised gains and losses: appointed business year ended 31 March 2013

2013

2012

£m £m
Profit for the financial year 3229 166 3
Actuanal gain/(loss) {47 2) (105 7)
Tax on actuanal ganfloss 110 283
Tax on share based payments 07 -
Adjustment i respect of tax rate change on deferred tax (22) (29)
Tax charge on pension contnbutions 13 (29)
Total recognised gains and losses for the financial year 2865 831
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Regulatory accounts — current cost financial statements

Balance sheet: appointed business as at 31 March 2013

2013 2012
Notes £m £m

Fixed assets
Investments 4135 4135
Tangible assets 5 72,3643 69,9484
Intangible assets 13 -

Third party contnbutions since 1989/90

{22,204 8) (21,454 1)

50,5743 48,9078
Working capital 7 2245 1956
Short term deposits 3212 03
Infrastructure renewals accrual (47) (17 2)
Working capital 51,1153 49,0865

Non-operating assets and liabilities
Borrowings

Non trade debtors

Non trade creditors due within one yeas
Corporation tax payable

(1694) (3,5347)

. 06
(1827) (176 6)
209 (36 8)

Total non-operating assets and liabilities

(3312) (3,747 5)

Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year
Borrowings
Other creditors

(4,7731) (1,044 4)
(18) (17)

(4,7749) (1,048 1)

Provision for habilities and charges

Deferred taxation {498 5) (504 4)
Other provisions {51) (9 4)
Pension deficit (199 4) {170 1)
Net provisions {703 Q) {683 9)
Net assets 453062 436090

Capital and reserves
Called up share capital

1000 1,000 0

Profit and loss account 1,004.5 (118 4)
Current cost reserve 442017 42,727 4
453062 43,6090
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Reguilatory accounts — current cost financial statements

Cash flow statement year ended 31 March 2013

2013 2012
Non- Non-
Appointed  appointed Appointed  appointed
business business Total business business Total
Notes £m £m £m £m £m £m
Net cash inflow from cperating activities 8 B88 6 158 904 4 8595 76 867 1
Returns on investments and servicing of finance (228 6} - (228 6) (289 1) - (289 1)
Taxation paid {51 3) (2 2) (53 5) (659) (19) (67 8)
Capital expenditure
Gross cost of purchase of tangible fixed assets (443 2) - (443 2) (375 9) - (375 9)
Grants and contnbutions received 362 - 362 243 - 243
Investment in subsidianes - - - (177 8) - (177 8)
Infrastructure renewals expenditure (147 7) - (147 7) (128 9) - (128 9)
Proceeds on disposal of fixed assets 156 - 156 88 - 88
Net cash outflow from investing activities (539 1) - (539.1) (649 5) - {649 5)
Equity dividends paid {65 B) (6 2) {72.0) (260 3) {(57) (2660)
Net cash outflow before management of hquid
resources and financing 38 74 112 (405 3) - (405 3)
Management of iguid resources (326 5) - {326 5) 39 - 39
Net cash flow before financing (322 7) 74 (315 3) (401 4) - {401 4)
Net cash inflow from financing 371 - 3171 3955 - 3955
Net (decrease)/increase 1n cash {5 6} 74 1.8 (59) - {(59)
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Notes to the regulatory accounts

Year ended 31 March 2013

1 Regulatory reporting

The regulatory accounts as reported on pages 83 to 102
should be read In conunction with the operatng and
financial review on pages 3 to 24 for further understanding of
the performance of the business

In particular, attention 1s drawn to pages 26 and 27 of the
Directors’ repart which sets cut the link between Directors’
pay and standards of performance

2 Accounting policies for historical cost
and current cost financial statements

a) Basis of preparation

The regulatory financial statemenis are separate from the
statutory financial statements of the company They have
been prepared on a going concern basis (see Directors’
Report on page 29)

The regulatory financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Condition F of the Instruments of
Appointment of the Water and Sewerage Undertakers and
the Regulatery Accounting Guidelines as issued by the
WSRA

Where the Regulatory Accounting Guidelnes do not
specifically address an accounting issue, then they require
UK GAAP to be followed IN13 does not permit the
regulatory accounts to be based on the new FRS100
accounting framework 1ssued by the Financial Reporting
Council and therefore UK GAAP pnor to FRS 100 has been
appled mn preparnng these regulatory accounts Financial
information other than that prepared wholly on the basis of
UK GAAP may not necessarly represent a true and fair view
of the financial performance or financial positon of a
company as shown In financial statements prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 2006

In previous years the regulatory accounts have been based
on the consolidated statutory accounts of Severn Trent
Water Limited and its subsidianes Following the adoption of
FSR 101 the company no longer prepares consolidated
statutory accounts These regulatory accounts have
therefore been prepared for the company as a stand alone
entity and do not include the resulls or net assets of its
subsidianes

b} Turnover

Tumover represents income recelvable from regulated water
activities, excluding value added tax

Tumover includes an estimation of the amount of mains
water and waste water charges unbilled at the year end The
accrual 1s estimated using a defined methodology based
upon a measure of unbilled water consumed by tanff, which
1s calculated from histoncal billing information There has
been no changes in methodology In the year

Turmnover 1s not recognised In respect of unoccupted
propertes Properties are classified as unoccuped when

¢ The company I1s inforred that a customer has left a
property and it 1s not expected to be reoccupied
immediately,

» New properties are connected but are not
occupied,

= Properties are disconnected following a customer's
request, or

e The identity of the customer 15 unknown

The following activites are undertaken to ensure properties
classified as unoccupred are in fact not occupied

» Where the company 1s informed that the customer
has left a property and the property 15 expected to
be occupied by someone else, a welcome letter 1s
sent to the property encouraging the occupier to
contact the company

¢« |f there 1s no response to the welcome letter within
two months a void letter 1s sent to the property
explaining that we have classified the property as
empty and may schedule the property for
disconnection

+ Meter readings are taken for metered unoccupied
properties, where consumption 1s recorded, a letter
15 sent to the property

» Inspections are orgarised throughout the year by
geographical area

c) Operating costs

Income relating to electncity generation (Renewable
Oblgation Certfficate income) 1s deducted from operating
costs

d} Bad and doubtful debts

Prowisions are charged to operating costs 1o reflect the
company's assessment of the nsk of non recoverabiiity of
debtors Prowisions are calculated based on the age of the
debtor balance and the company's previous collection
experience for balances of that age The bad debt
provisicning rates are updated annually to reflect the latest
collection performance data from the company's billing
system

The company's bad debt wrte off policy has remained
unchanged and has been consistently applied m the current
and the pnor years

The policy specifies that debt can only be wntten off if the
following cntena are met

+« The debt s actually a legiimate charge aganst the
debtor If it 1s considered that part or ali of the debt
1s incerrect or unsubstantiated, then such elements
are dealt with through the 1ssue of a credit note,
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Notes to the regulatory accounts

2 Accounting policies continued

« All avalable economic options for collection of the
debt have been pursued or that debt recovery
procedures have proved to be abortive or
uneconomic to continue Uneconomic
crcumstances are those where, following the
apphcation of debt recovery procedures

— the customer could not be traced without
incurnng  an unreasonable degree of
expenditure,

— the company has an nsufficiently sound
case to justify further expenditure on debt
recovery procedures, or

- the hkehhood of recovenng the debt 1s so
small 1n particular circumstances that
further expenses on debt recovery cannot
be justified

» The customer does not have any assets or has
insufficient assets on which to levy execution,

e The customer 15 bankrupt or has gone into
hiquidation and no dividend has been, or s ltkely to
be, recewved,

¢ The customer has died without leaving an estate or
has left an insufficient estate on which to levy
execution, and

« The company has been unable to prove iis case in
court

The above wnte-off nules apply pnmanly to customers to
whom the company has ceased to provide a service Only In
exceptional circumstances 15 debt relating to continuing
customers considered for wnite off

e} Research and development

Expenditure on research and development projects 1s
charged to the profit and loss account in the year in which it
Is incurred

f) Leased assets

Where the company obtains assets under leasing
arrangements which transfer substantially all the nsks and
rewards of ownership of an asset to the lessee (finance
leases), the assets are accounted for as if they had been
purchased and the far value of the minimum lease
payments 1s shown as an obligation to the lessor Lease
payments are treated as consisting of a capital element and
a finance charge, the capital element reducing the obligation
to the lessor and the finance charge being written off to the
profit and loss account over the period of the lease in
proportion to the capital amount outstanding Depreciation 1s
charged over the shorter of the estimated useful life and the
lease penod

Where the company obtains assets under leasing
arrangements where substantally all the nsks and rewards
of ownership remam with the lessor, these are classified as
operating leases Rental costs ansing under operating
leases are expensed on a straight ine basis over the term of
the lease

Where the company transfers substantially all the nsks and
rewards of ownership of an asset to a lessee (finance lease),
the assets are accounted for as if they had been sold, and

the net investment in the lease Is shown as a recervable due
from the lessee Over the lease term, rentals are
apporhoned between a reduction in the net investment in the
lease and finance lease income, such that finance lease
income produces a constant rate of return on the net cash
investment in the lease Finance lease income I1s Included
within interest recetvable and similar income

g) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the fair value of purchase
consideration over the fair value of the net assets acquired
Farr value adjustments based on provisional estimates are
amended within one year of the acquisibon, if required, with
a corresponding adjustment to goodwill

Goodwill 1s amortised over its estimated useful life which s 5
years Provision for any impairment 1s made as descnbed
below

h) Impairment of goodwill and fixed assets

Impairments of goodwill and fixed assets are calculated as
the difference between the carrying value of the net assels
of income generating units, including where appropnate
investments and goodwill, and theirr recoverable amounts
Recoverable amount 1s defined as the higher of net
realisable value or esimated value in use at the date the
imparment review 1S undertaken

Net realisable value represents the net amount that can be
generated through sale of assets Value in use represents
the present value of expected future cash flows discounted
on a pre-tax basis, using the estimated cost of capital of the
ncome generating unit

Impairment reviews are carned out f there 1§ some
indication that imparment may have occurred, or, where
otherwise required, to ensure that goodwill and fixed assets
are not camed above their esttimated recoverable amounts

Impairments are recogmised in the profit and loss account
and, where matenal, are disclosed as exceptional

i) Investments

Investments held as fixed asseis are stated at cost less
amounts wntten off

) Stock

Stock 1s stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value
Cost includes labour, matenals, transport and attnbutable
overheads

k) Provisions
Prowvisions are recognised where
a) There s a present cbligation as a result of a past event,

b) [t s probable that there will be an outflow of economic
benefits to settle this obligation, and

c) Arehable estimate of this amount can be made

Self-nsurance provisions are recogrused for claims notfied
and for claims incurred but which have not yet been notified,
based on advice from the parent company’s independent
Iinsurance advisers
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2 Accounting policies continued

Prowisions are discounted to present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects the nsks specific to the hability
where the effect 1s maternal

)] Pension costs

The company operates both defined benefit and defined
contnbution schemes

For defined benefit schemes the amounts charged to
operating profit are the current and past service costs and
gains and losses on settlements and curtaiiments They are
ncluded as part of staff costs Past service costs are
recognised immediately tn the profit and loss account If the
benefits have vested If the benefits have not vested
immediately the costs are recogmsed over the penod until
vesting occurs The interest costs and the expected retum
on assets 1s shown as a net amount of other finance costs or
credits adjacent to interest Actuanal gains and losses are
recogrused immediately in the statement of total recognised
gains and losses

Defined benefit schemes are funded, with the assets of the
scheme held separately from those of the company, In
separate trustee administered funds Pension scheme
assets are measured at bid pnce and habilites are
measured on an actuanal basis using the projected unit
method and discounted at a rate equivalent to the current
rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent
currency and term to the scheme liabibties The actuanal
valuations are obtained at least tnenmially and are updated
at each balance sheet date The resuling defined benefit
asset or hability, net of the related deferred tax, 1s presented
separately

Costs of defined contnbution pension schemes are charged
to the profit and loss account when they fall due

m) Current and deferred taxation

Current taxation 1s provided at amounts expected 1o be pad
{or recovered) using the tax rates and laws that have been
enacted ar substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred taxation 1s provided in respect of timing differences
between the treatment of certain items for taxation and
accounting purposes only to the extent that the company
has an obligation to pay more tax in the future or a nght to
pay less tax in the future Deferred tax 1s measured on a
non-discounted basis using the tax rates and laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related deferred
tax asset 1s realised or the deferred tax liability 15 settled

n) Denvatives and other financial instruments
Debt instruments

The costs of debt instruments are charged to the profit and
loss account over the term of the debt at a constant rate on
the carrying amount Such costs include the cost of 1ssue
and any discount to face value ansing on Issue, or any
premium ansing on matunty

Dernivative financial instruments

Financial instruments, in particular, interest rate swaps and
currency swaps, are used to manage the financial nsks
ansing from the business activiies of the company and the
financing of those activities

Energy swaps are used to manage the nsks of future
fluctuations in efectncity prices There 1s no trading activity in
financial Instruments

Financial instruments are accounted for as follows

Interest rate swaps are used to hedge the company's
exposure to movements in interest rates The nterest
payable or receivable on such swaps 1s accrued in the same
way as interest ansing on deposits or borrowings Interest
rate swaps are not revalued to farr value

Currency swaps are used to hedge the company's exposure
to movements In foreign exchange rates The interest
payable or receivable on such swaps 1s accrued in the same
way as Interest ansing on deposits or borrowings Currency
swaps are not revalued to farr value but are recognised In
the balance sheet at the difference between the swap rate
and the spot rate at the balance sheet date and offset
against the associated hedged borrowings

Energy swaps are not revalued to fair value
o) Share based payments

The company operates a number of equity settled, share
based compensation plans for employees utlising the
shares of the ultiimate parent company The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for the grant Is
recognised as an expense over the vesting penod of the
grant

The farr value of employee services 15 determined by
reference to the farr value of the awards granted, calculated
using an appropnate pricing model, excluding the impact of
any non-market vesting conditions The number of awards
that are expected to vest takes into account non-market
vesting conditions ncluding, where appropnate, continuing
employment by the company The charge 1s adjusted to
reflect shares that do not vest as a result of faling to meet a
non-market condition

P} Foreign currency

Foreign cumrency transactions ansing dunng the year are
translated into sterling at the rate of exchange ruling on the
date of the transacticn All profits and losses on exchange
ansing during the year are dealt with through the profit and
loss account

The following pohcies apply to the historical cost
financial statements only
q) Basis of preparation

The histoncal cost financial statements have been prepared
under the histoncal cost convention

r) Tangible fixed assets and depreciation
Tangible fixed assets compnse
Infrastructure assets

Infrastructure assets compnse a network of systems being
mains and sewers, mmpounding and pumped raw water
storage reservoirs, dams, and sludge pipelines
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2 Accounting policies continued

Expenditure on infrastructure assets relating to increases n
capacity or enhancements of the network and on
maintaiming the operating capabibty of the network In
accordance with the defined standards of service Is treated
as an addition and included at cost after deducting grants
and contnbutions {see note 2t)

The depreciation charged for infrastructure assets ts the
estimated, antictpated level of annual expenditure required
to maintain the operating capabiiity of the network less the
estimated, antcipated level of relevant annual grants and
contnbutions, calculated over a medium to long penod
(being 15 years} In accordance with RAG 105 the
difference between the infrastructure renewals charge and
infrastructure renewals expenditure 1s held as an accrual or
prepayment on the balance sheet This 1s a departure from
the provisions of FRS 15, which requires the infrastructure
renewals charge to be recorded as a depreciation charge
and deducted from the carrying amount of the asset, and
FRS 12 which does not allow prowsions for future
maintenance

Other assels

Other assets are included at cost less accumulated
depreciation

Cost includes all costs which are directly attributable to
bnnging the asset into working condition for its intended use
Directly attnbutable costs on self constructed assets include
an element of the ‘overhead burden’, which 1s the cost of
overheads which would not have been incurred in the
absence of capital works Directly attnbutable costs on self
constructed assets are capitalised up to the point where the
asset 1s capable of operating in the manner intended by
management

Finance costs are not capsitalised

Freehold land 1s not depreciated Assets in the course of
construction are not depreciated until comnmussioned  Other
assets are depreciated on a straight line basis over therr
estimated economic lives, which are pnncipally as follows

Years
Buildings 30-80
Fixed plant and equipment 20 - 40

Vehicles, mobile plant and computers 2 - 15

s) Grants and contnbutions

Grants and contrnbutions received In respect of non
infrastructure assets are treated as deferred income and are
recogrused in the profit and loss account over the useful
economic Iife of those assets

In accordance with industry praclice, grants and
contnbutions relating to infrastructure assets have been
deducted from the cost of fixed assets

Those grants and contnbutions relating to the maintenance
of the operating capability of the infrastructure network are
taken into account In determining the depreciation charged
for infrastructure assets

The foltowing policies apply to the current cost financial
statements only

t} Basis of preparation

These accounts have been prepared for the Appointed
Business In accordance with gutdance issue by the WSRA
for modfied real term financial statements suitable for
regulaton in the water industry They measure profitability
on the basis of real financial capital maintenance, in the
context of assets which are valued at their current cost value
to the business, with the exception of specialised operational
and infrastructure assets

The accounting policies used are the same as those appled
in the histoncal cost accounts except where set out below

u} Tangible fixed assets

Assets in operational use are valued at the replacement cost
of their operating capability To the extent that the regulatory
regime does not allow such assets to eam a retum high
enough to justify that value, this represents a modification of
the value 1o the business pnnciple Also, no provision IS
made for the possible funding of future replacements of
assets by contnbutions from third parties and, to the extent
that some of the tangible fixed assets would on replacement
be so funded, replacement cost again differs from value to
the business Redundant assets are valued at therr
recoverable amounts

An Asset Management Plan (AMP) survey of existing assets
as at 31 March 2008 was undertaken dunng 2008/09 and
the adjustments to asset values as a result of that exercise
were Included within tangible fixed assets In the intervening
years, between AMP surveys, values are restated to take
account of changes in the general level of inflation, as
measured by changes in Retal Pnce Index (RPI), and any
other significant changes 1n asset records identified dunng
the year

i) Non infrastructure assets

Specialised operational assets

The gross replacement cost of specialised operational
assets has been denved using the latest cost information
provided by the AMP

The unamortised portion of third party contnbuticns received
15 deducted in armving at net operating assets, as descnbed
in note 1t)

Non-specialised operational assels

Non-specialised operational assets are valued on the basis
of open market value for existing use at 31 March 1991 and
have been expressed in current terms by adjustng for
movements In property values i

i) Infrastructure assets

Mains, sewers, impounding and pumped raw water storage
reservowrs, dams and sludge pipelines are valued at
replacement cost, determined pnncipally on the basis of unit
cost data provided by the AMP

1)) Other assets

All other assets are valued an the basis of data provided by
the AMP
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2 Accounting policies continued
v) Surptus land

Surplus land was valued at the current market vatue for the
purposes of the AMP Any proceeds on disposal to be
passed onto customers will be taken into account, In
accordance with the requirements contained in Condition B
of the Instruments of Appointment as Water and Sewerage
Undertakers

v) Grants and other third party contributions

Grants, infrastructure and other third party contnbutions
received since 31 March 1990 are carned forward to the
extent that any balance has not been credited to revenue
The balance carmed forward 1s restated for the change in
RPI for the year and treated as a reduction to fixed assets

w} Real financial capltal maintenance adjustments

These adjustments are made to histoncal cost operating
profit in order to amve at profit after the maintenance of
financial capttal in real terms

Working capiial adjustiment ~ this 1s calculated by applying
the change in RP1 over the year to the opening total of trade
debtors and stock, less trade creditors

Financing adjustment - this 1s calculated by applying the
change 1n RPI over the year to the opening balance of net
finance, which compnses all assets and liabiites in the

3 Directors’ Remuneration

balance sheet apart from those included in working capital
and excluding fixed assets, deferred taxation prowision,
index hinked debt and dividends payable

x} Transferred assets

Assets transferred to the company include assets
transferred at 1 October 2011 under the Private Drains and
Sewers Transfer Regulatons (June 2011) These are
included in fixed assets at their Modem Equivalent Asset
value with a corresponding credit to third party contnbutions

y) Accounting separation

The tables presentng the analysis of operating costs and
fixed assets (the ‘'accounting separation’ tables, as
descnbed in note 4 and 5) have been prepared in
accordance with our Accounting Separation Methodology
Statement which can be found at
www sevemntrentwater co uk The methodology statement
explains the bases for allocations of costs and assets and
has been updated for changes to the requirements m the
year There have otherwise been no major changes
Wherever possible, direct costs and assets have been
directly atinbuted to business units Where this 1s not
possible, appropnate cost allocations have been apphed as
descnbed in the methodology

Information regarding Directors’ Remuneration can be found on pages 57 to 70 of the Sevem Trent Plc Annual Report and

Accounts 2013

4 Analysis of current cost turnover and operating costs

a) Reconciliation of current cost turnover to actual outturn per Final Determination (FD)

2013
£m

Final Determination (appcinted only) 1,3905
Impact of higher/(lower} inflation 871
Final Determination adjusted for inflation movement 1,477 6
Optants 13
New Properties (72)
Demolitions (13)
Ceonsumption changes - commercial 77
Consumption changes - domestic 202
1,498 3
Cther 61)
Actual cutturn (appointed only) 1,492 2

Actual income for the year ended 31 March 2013 1s £101 7m more than allowed for in the final determination Of this, £87 1m
ts dnven by huigher RP| Higher consumption accounts for £27 9m The remaiming £13 3m 1s accounted for by a combination

of optants, new properties, demolitions and other
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4 Analysis of current cost turnover and operating costs

b} Reconciliation of amounts billed and amounts recorded as historical cost turnover

2013
£m
Billed 1,490 8
Movement in accrual 118
Total turnover (appointed and non-appointed) 1,502 6
c) Analysis of operating costs
Water
Raw water Treated Water
Resources  distnbution Treatment  distnbution total
2013 £m £m £m £m £m
Operating expenditure
Power 72 19 223 69 383
Income treated as negative expenditure (0 3) - - - (03)
Service charges 109 - 03 - 112
Bulk supply imports 70 - 43 - 113
Other operating expenditure 100 16 476 856 144 8
Local authonty rates 47 15 195 170 427
Exceptional items - - - - -
Total operating expenditure excluding third party services 395 50 94 0 1085 2480
Capital maintenance
infrastructure renewals charge 16 47 - 801 86 4
Current cost depreciation 89 46 48 9 538 116 2

Recharges to other business units - - - - -
Recharges from other business units - - - - -
Amortisation of deferred credits (01 {0 1) (10) (0 8) (18)
Amortisation of intangible assets - - - - -

Total capital maintenance excluding third party services 104 92 479 1333 2008
Third party services

Operating expenditure 37 - 10 10 57
Infrastructure renewals charge -
Current cost depreciation 02 - 13 - 156
Total operating costs - 538 14 2 144 2 243.8 456 0
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4 Analysis of current cost turnover and operating costs

c) Analysis of operating costs continued

Sewerage
Sewage Sewage Sludge Sludge Sewerage
collection treatment treatment disposal total
2013 £m £m £m £m £m
Operating expenditure
Power 88 265 47 - 400
Income treated as negative expenditure - (107) (10 7) - (21 4)
Service charges 35 55 - - 90
Other operating expenditure 454 68 1 363 g0 158 8
Local authonty rates 02 243 KN - 281
Exceptional items - - - - -
Total operating expenditure excluding third party services 579 1137 339 90 2145
Capital maintenance
Infrastructure renewals charge 488 - - - 48 8
Current cost depreciation 347 1178 271 05 180 1
Recharges to other business units - - - - -
Recharges from other business units - - - - -
Amortisation of deferred credits (14) (02} - - (16)
Amortisation of intangible assets - - - - .
Total capital maintenance excluding third party services 821 1176 271 05 227 3
Third party services
Operating expenditure - - 18 - 18
Infrastructure renewats charge - - - - -
Current cost depreciation - - - - -
Total operating costs 140 0 2313 628 95 443 &
Retail
Non- Retail
Household household total
2013 £m £m £m
Qperating expenditure
Customer services 312 22 334
Debt management 83 156 98
Doubtful debts 297 36 333
Meter reading 52 08 60
Services to developers - 02 02
Other operating expenditure 184 36 220
Local authonty rates 03 - 03
Exceptional items - . -
Total operating expenditure excluding third party services 931 19 1050
Third party services operating expenditure - - -
Total operating expenditure 931 119 1050
Capital maintenance
Current cost depreciation 17 0 15 185
Amortisation of deferred credits - - -
Amortisation of intangible assets - - -
Total capital maintenance 170 15 185
Total operating costs 1101 134 1235
Debt written off 187 48 235
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5 Analysis of tangible fixed assets by asset type within service
Water
g 85 £ &
5 23 € 33
g 33 g i
o xo = [
£m £m £m £m Em
Non-Infrastructure assets
Gross replacement cost
At 1 Apnl 2012 404 3 118 3 1,630 8 1,516 5 3,669 9
Reclassification adjustment - 06 85 2658 2749
RPI adjustment 136 40 516 566 1258
Disposals (07) (0 1} (7 5) {88) (17 1)
Additions 18 01 635 639 129 3
At 31 March 2013 4190 1229 1,746 9 1,894 0 4,182 8
Depreciation
At 1 Apnl 2012 2687 66 6 9157 9359 2,1869
Reclassification adjustment (0 2) 04 41 164 5 168 8
RPI adjustment 92 23 313 375 803
Disposals (04) (0 1) (6 9) (7 6) {150)
Charge for the year 91 46 50 2 538 117 7
At 31 March 2013 286 4 738 994 4 1,184 1 25387
Net book value
At 31 March 2013 1326 49.1 7525 7099 1,644 1
At 1 Apnl 2012 1356 517 7151 580 6 1,4830
Infrastructure assets
Gross replacement cost
At 1 Apni 2012 1,025 3 1,333 6 33 11,7613 14,1235
RPI adjustment 336 437 04 3891 466 8
Additions 12 18 - 47 7 507
At 31 March 2013 1,060 1 1,379 1 37 12,1981 14,641 0
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5 Analysis of tangible fixed assets by asset type within service continued
Sewerage

S A 7 S B}

H 3 g E 28 28

[%7] 7] nsS o

£m £m £m £m £m

Non-Infrastructure assets
Gross replacement cost
At 1 Apnl 2012 9240 39010 6729 64 5,504 3
Reclassification adjustment {19 4) (16 4) (18 0) (0 B) {54 6)
RP| adjustment 297 1180 256 02 174 5
Cisposals (2 5) (11 9) (20) (02) (16 6)
Additions 318 159 9 265 - 218 2
At 31 March 2013 963 6 41516 7050 56 5,825.8
Depreciation
At 1 Apnt 2012 5225 2,037 3 3842 a7 2,947 7
Reclassification adjustment (7 3) (61) 60) (0 1) (19.5)
RPI| adjustment 18 1 67 6 150 01 100 8
Disposals (21) (10 3) {18) (02) (14.4)
Charge for the year 47 117 8 27 1 05 180 1
At 31 March 2013 5659 2,2063 418.5 40 3,1947
Net book value
At 31 March 2013 3977 1,9453 286.5 16 2,6311
At 1 Apnl 2012 4015 18637 2887 27 2,556 6
Infrastructure assets
Grass replacement cost
At 1 Apnil 2012 51,597 3 85 - - 51,6058
RP! adjustment 1,693 4 01 - - 1,693 5
Disposals ©1) - - - {0 1)
Additions 514 30 - - 54 4
At 31 March 2013 53,3420 116 - - 53,3536
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5 Analysis of tangible fixed assets by asset type within service continued
Retail
2 -
[=]

£ 85 Total

£m £m £m
Non-Infrastructure assets
Gross replacement cost
At 1 Apnl 2012 448 0 511 499 1
Reclassification adjustment (1929) (274) (2203)
RPI adjustment 82 o8 90
Disposals 27 (03) (30)
Addiions 21 02 23
At 31 March 2013 2627 244 287 1
Depreciation
At 1 Apnl 2012 2872 324 3196
Reclassification adjustment (1309) (184) (149 3}
RPI adjustment 56 05 61
Disposals 21) {02) (2 3)
Charge for the year 170 15 18 5
At 31 March 2013 176 8 158 1926
Net book value
At 31 March 2013 859 86 945
At 1 Apnl 2012 160 8 187 1795
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6 Analysis of capital expenditure, grants and land sales
2013 2012
]
“ ; g 0 g §
S ] z & G 3 2
£m £Em £m £m £m £m
Capital expenditure - water
Base
Infrastructure renewals expenditure (IRE) 105 4 (7.5) 97 9 810 (0 1) 90 9
Maintenance non-infrastructure (MNI) 98 3 {3.3) 950 692 (20) 67 2
Enhancements
Infrastructure enhancements 507 {157 350 44 8 (127) 321
Non-infrastructure enhancements 323 {0 4) 319 313 (0 8) 307
Total capital expenditure - water 2867 (269) 2598 2363 (154) 2209
Grants and contributions - water
Developer contnbutions {11 0) (89)
infrastructure charge receipts - new connections {6 0) (4 4)
Other contnbutions {9 9) (z1)
Total grants and contnbutions - water {26 9) (15 4)
Capital expenditure - sewerage
Base
Infrastructure renewals expenditure ({IRE) 511 (13) 498 399 {19) 380
Maintenance non-infrastructure {MNI) 1516 (0 1) 1515 146 2 - 146 2
Enhancements
Infrastructure enhancements 349 59 290 259 (50) 209
Non-infrastructure enhancements 64 2 (22) 620 505 (2 B8) 479
Large projects capex
Infrastructure enhancements - - - - -
Non-infrastructure enhancements - . - . -
Total capital expenditure - sewerage 3018 {(95) 2923 2625 (95) 2530
Grants and contnibutions - sewerage
Developer contributions {(17) (2 5)
Infrastruciure charge receipts - new connections {6 4) (51)
Other contnbutions {14) (19)
Total grants and contnbutions - sewerage (9 5) (95)
Total capital expenditure - water and sewerage 588 6 (36.4) 5521 498 8 (249) 4739
Land sales - Proceeds from disposals of protected land 156 88
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7 Working capital

2013 2012

£m £m

Stock 61 64

Trade debtors

Measured household 477 433
Unmeasured household 785 693
Measured non-household 217 257
Unmeasured non-household 05 08

Other 27 26
Measured income accrual 1658 1556
Prepayments and other debtors 166 0 1651

Trade credstors (151) {14 8)

Deferred iIncome - customer advance recepts

(1302) (1329)

Capital creditors and accruals (337) (36 1)
Accruals and other creditors (85 5) (89 4)
Working capital 2245 1956
Total revenue outstanding - household 2196 1957

- non-household 29.3 338

Total gross debt outstanding 1s £248 9 milkon (2012 £229 3 mullion) which represents an increase of £19 6m (8 5%) The
increase has been largely driven by a combination of pnce increase and by timing of bad debt wnite offs

The company’s overall cash coltection performance has remained consistent with pnor years

8 Reconciliation of appointed business current cost operating
profit to net cash inflow from operating activities

2013 2012
Em £m
Current cost operating profit 4731 469 6
Working capital adjustment 64 32
Movement in working capital (30 7) 258
Recerpts from other income 21 19
Current cost depreciation after amortisation of deferred incoms 3129 3010
Current cost profit on disposal of tangible fixed assets (10 4) (39)
Infrastructure renewals charge 1352 127 2
Other non-cash profit and loss items - (65 3)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 888.6 B59 5
The 2012 other non-cash profit and loss items consist pnmanly of £561 8 million excess of pension contnbutions paid and
curtaiiment gain over pension current service charge
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9 Analysis of net debt

Fixed interest Floating

rale interestrate  Index inked Touwal

£m £m £m £m
Bank Loans 1500 3000 2677 77
Loans due from parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings - (121 2) - (121 2)
Loans due to parent and fellow substdiary undertakings 26165 168 1 1,028 3 38129
Finance Lease receivables {101 8) - - (101 8)
Finance Lease payables 4150 1157 - 5307
Total net borrowings 30797 462 6 1,296 0 4,8383
Impact of interest rate swaps entered into by the company 1399 (139 9) - -
Total borrowings 32196 3227 1,296 0 48383
Total borrowings 4,838.3
QOverdraft 54
Short term deposits (326 6)
Net Debt 4,517.1
Regulatory capital vatue 7,364 2
Geanng 61 3%
Full year equivalent nominal interest cost 1756 40 698 249 4
Full year equivatent cash interest payment 1756 40 262 2058
Indicative interest rates
Indicative weighted average nominal interest rate 55% 12% 54% 52%
Indicative weighted average cash interest rate 5 5% 12% 2 0% 4 3%
Weighted average years to matunty 120 37 318 165
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Supplementary Regulatory Accounting Disclosures — unaudited
Year ended 31 March 2013

Information in respect of transactions during the year with any other business or activity of the
appointee or any associated company

a) Borrowings or sums lent
Sums borrowed and repaid by the appontiee dunng the year from associated companies were

Pnncipal
amounts Repayment dates Interest rates
£m %
East Worcester Water Limited Borrowed 110 July 2012 3 Months LIBID
Severn Trent Plc Borrowed 4015 Apnl 2012 to March 2013 LIBOR + D 825%
Sevemn Trent Plc Repad 4170 Apnl 2012 to March 2013 LIBOR + 0 825%
Severn Trent Reservoirs Limited Borrowed 03 October 2012 3 Months LIBID
Severn Trent Leasing Limited Repaid 08 January 2013 4 75%
Severn Trent Leasing Limited Borrowed 82 March 2013 4 75%
Severn Trent Utiities Finance Repaid 01 Apnl 2012 3 Months LIBID

b) Dividends

The company’'s dwvidend policy 1s to declare dvidends which are consistent with the company’s regulatory obligations and at
a level which 1s decided each year after consideration of a number of factors, including regulatory uncertainty, market
expectations, actual and potential efficiencies, future cash flow requirements and balance sheet considerations

The amount declared i1s expected to vary each year as the impact of factors changes The ordinary dividend declared and
paid by the company in 2012/13 amounted to £72 0 million (2012 £266 million), being 7 2p per share (2012 26 6p per
share}

c) Transfer of assets/liabilities

Dunng the year, the appointee acquired the following assets from associated companies as follows Severn Trent
Laboratones Limited, fixed assets £1 9m, stock £0 3m and goodwill £1 3m, Midland Land Portfolio Limited, land and builldings
£4 2m

d) Supply of services
Services supplied by the appointee to associated companies

Nature of transactions Company Terms £m
Service charges in respect of payroll, legal, transport and other Vanous Cost 04
Water, tankenng, reception, treatment and disposal of waste Vanous Market rent 07
Sale of crops Severn Trent Green Power Ltd  Cost 06
Management charge Severn Trent Plc Cost 63

80

Services supplied to the appointee by associated companies
Services supplled to the appointee

Competitve Other market
Company Turnover  Nature of transactions letting testing Mo market Total
£m £m £m £m
Derwent Insurance Ltd 7 6 Insurance services - 60 - 60
Severn Trent Laboratones Ltd 195 Analytical services 14 - 23 37
Severn Trent Metenng Services Ltd 39 Meter installation and maintenance 25 - 01 26
Supply of matenals and other

Severn Trent Services Ltd 42 engineenng services 16 ) ) 16
Severn Trent Green Power Ltd 2 7 Supply of Electncity - 10 - 10
Cognica Ltd 09 Assel management 01 - - 01
Severn Trent Plc {mgmt charge) - Pass through costs - - 12 12
388 56 70 36 16 2

e) Omission nghts
None

f) Waivers
None

g) Guarantees
None

Sevem Trent Water Annual Report and Accounts 2013 102




Supplementary Regulatory Accounting Disclosures — unaudited

Year ended 31 March 2013

Analysis of properties

2013 2012

Water Sewerage Water Sewerage
Number of properties ("000s}
Households billed 3,1268 3,563 8 3,124 0 3,5565
Non-households billed 183.5 2000 186 1 2032
Householtd voids 124.7 1541 109 2 1333
Non-household voids 287 419 261 391
Properties served by the appointee in supply area as at 1 Apnl 2009 60 60 40 40
Per capita consumption (excluding supply pipe leakage} t/h/d
Unmeasured household 1299 133 1
Measured household 104 6 109 4
Volume (Ml/d)
Bulk supply export 592 - 567 -
Bulk supply import 3700 - 3779 -
Distnbution input 1,766 3 1,8306
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Supplementary Regulatory Accounting Disclosures — unaudited
Year ended 31 March 2013

Delivering against our Key Performance Indicators (KPls)

KPI 201112 2012113
Basis No KPI Performance Performance
MAT 1 Lost ime incidents per 100,000 hrs worked' 03 02
QR 2 Employee motivation %* 75% 79%
MAT 3 DWI Reportable events (Category 3,4.5)° 30 23
MAT 4 Service Incentive Mechanism - Qualitative ° 396 4 36
MAT 5 Service Incentive Mechanism - Quantitative °° 205 167
MAT 6 Unplanned interruptions (per 1000 properues) 1112 12 48
MAT 7 Serviceabiity Waste N/A 78
MAT 8 Serviceabiity Water NIA 80
ACT 9 Capex - £m NIA 5418
ACT 10 Debtor days > 358 367
ACT 11 Opex - £m 548 567 2
MAT 12 Pollution inaidents (Category 1,2,3) °° 458 376
ACT 13 Sewage treatment works - falling consent hmits % | 2 54% 0 85%
ACT 14 Secunty of Supply3 99 29
MAT 15 Net energy use GWh' 679 690
MLE 16 | Leakage Ml/d - Post MLE® 464 441
Notes

MAT = Moving Annual Total

QR = Quarterly Review

MLE = Maximum Likelihood Estimate
ACT = Year end actual

1 Actual performance across all employees and agency staff

2 Performance based on annual survey of alt employees

3 Asreported in the Annual Regulatory Performance Report Performance figures are provisional at this stage as the
Annual Regulatory Performance Report will be published on the Company’s website (www stwater ¢o uk) on 17 June
2013

4  Actual performance based whally or partially on internal data

5 Actual performance based on audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013

6  Measure for calendar year to 31 December 2012

KPI 3
Dnnking Water Inspectorate — Reporlable events This KPI measures the number of significant events reported to the DWI

KP{7

Serviceability Waste Water This KPIis an index based on pollutions and blockages (both measures of how our below ground
assets are performing) and sewage treatment works non compliance (above ground) The index reflects a 50 50 weighting for
above and below ground assets

KPI 8

Serviceability Water This index 15 based on mains bursts and supply interruptions greater than 12 hours {both measures of
how our below ground assets are performing) and Water Treatment Warks (WTW) non compliance (above ground) The
index reflects a 50 50 weighting for above and below ground assets

KPI 14

Security of Supply Index {SOSI) 1s a measure of how resilient we are against penods of drought The index calculation 1s
based upon the difference between the water available to use and the volume of water we expect to put into our supply
network in order to meet demand
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